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Fidelity Southern Corporation Fidelity Georgia corporation incorporated on

August 1979 is registered as bank holding company under the Bank Holding

Company Act of 1956 as amended

Fidelity Bank was founded in 1974 and is one of the largest community banks in metro

Atlanta

Fidelity Southern Corporation through its operating subsidiaries Fidelity Bank and

LionMark Insurance Company provides banking services and credit-related insurance

products through 27 branches in metropolitan Atlanta Georgia branch in Jacksonville

Florida and an insurance office in Atlanta Georgia SBA Indirect Automobile and

Mortgage loans are provided through employees located throughout the South

As of December 31 2011 Fidelity had total assets and shareholders equity of $2.23

billion and $167 millionrespectively

Our Mission

Fidelitys mission is to continue growth improve earnings and increase shareholder value

to treat customers employees community and shareholders according to the Golden Rule

and to operate within culture of strong internal controls

Common Stock

Fidelitys common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol

LION

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Thursday April 26 2012 at 300 p.m

in Fidelitys Board Room Suite 1550 at 3490 Piedmont Road N.E Atlanta Georgia 30305



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

March 19 2012

Dear Shareholders and Friends

Our goal has been to be the number one community bank with the best customer service in town

Our path of steady planned growth has served us well Circumstances beyond our control have certainly

helped contribute to this goal Most important though is that we hire bright energetic happy and

committed folks and follow up with on-going training

Your board plans to continue to participate in FDIC-.assisted transactions which are strategically as

well as economically meaningful for us Our focus on capital credit and liquidity will not change While

2011 continued to be building time we expect good results to show this year from what we accomplished

over the last several years

We appreciate your business and your interest

Sincerely

L4Ur

James Miller Jr

Chairman
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PART

Item Business

General

Fidelity Southern Corporation FSC or Fidelity is bank holding company headquartered in Atlanta Georgia We
conduct operations primarily though Fidelity Bank state chartered wholly-owned subsidiary bank the Bank The Bank was

organized as national banking corporation in 1973 and converted to Georgia chartered state bank in 2003 LioriMark Insurance

Company LIC is wholly-owned subsidiary of FSC and is an insurance agency offering consumer credit related insurance

products FSC also owns five subsidiaries established to issue trust preferred securities The Company we or our as used

herein includes FSC and its subsidiaries unless the context otherwise requires

At December 31 2011 we had total asetsof $2.235 billion total loans of $1 .757 billion total deposits of $1 .872 billion

and shareholders equity of $167.3 million In addition in October 2011 we acquired Decatur First Bank with approximately $79.4

million in loans and $169.9 million in deposits in an FDIC-assisted acquisition For more general information about our business and

recent material transactiofis see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Forward-Looking Statements

This report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of

1933 as amended and Section 1E- of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended that reflect our current expectations relating

to present or future trends or factors generally affecting the banking industry and.specifically affecting our operations markets and

services Without limiting the foregoing the words believes expects anticipates estimates projects intends and

similar expressions are intended to identifr forward-looking statements These forward-looking statements are based upon

assumptions we believe are reasonable and may relate to among other things the difficult economic conditions and the economys

impact on operating results credit quality liquidity capital the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses changes in interest rates

and litigation results These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties Actual results could differ materially

from those projected for many reasons including without limitation changing events and trends that have influenced our assumptions

These trends and events include risks associated with our loan portfolio including difficulties in maintaining quality loan

growth greater loan losses than historic levels the risk of an insufficient allowance for loan losses and expenses associated with

managing nonperforming assets uniqUe risks associated with our construction and land development loans our ability to maintain and

service relationships with automobile dealers and indirect automobile loan purchasers and our ability to profitably manage changes in

our indirect automobile lending operations risks associated with adverse economic conditions including risk of continued

stagnation in real estate values in the Atlanta Georgia metropolitan area and in eastern and northern Florida markets conditions in

the financial markets and economic conditions generally and the impact of efforts to address difficult market and economic

conditions stagnant economy and its impact on operations and credit quality the impact of recession on our consumer lOan

portfolio and its potential impact on our commercial portfolio changes in the interest rate environment and their impact on our net

interest margin and inflation risks associated with government regulation and programs including risks arising from the terms of

the U.S Treasury Departments the Treasurys equity investment in us and the resulting limitations on executive compensation

imposed through our participation in th TARP Capital Purchase Program uncertainty with respect to future governmental economic

and regulatory measures including the ability of the Treasury to unilaterally amend any provision of the purchase agreement we
entered into as partof the TARP Capital Purchase Program new regulatory requirements imposed by the Bureau of Consumer

Financial Protection new regulatory requirements for residential mortgage loan services the winding down of governmental

emergency measures intended to stabilize the financial system and numerous legislative proposals to further regulate the financial

services industry the impact of and adverse changes in the governmental regulatory requirements affecting us and changes in

political legislative and economic conditions the ability to maintain adequate liquidity and sources of liquidity our ability to

maintain sufficient capital and to raise additional capital the
accuracy and completeness of information from customers and our

counterparties the effectiveness of our controls and procedures our ability to attract and retain skilled people greater

competitive pressures among financial institutions in our market 10 failure to achieve the revenue increases expected to result from

our investments in our growth strategies including our branch additions and in our transaction deposit and lending businesses 11 the

volatility and limited trading Of our common stock 12 the impact of dilution on our common stock 13 risks related to FDIC
assisted transactions compliance with certain requirements under our FDIC loss share agreements changes in national and local

economic conditions resulting in higher charge-offs not covered by the FDIC loss share agreement and 14 risks associated with

technological changes and the possibility of Cyber fraud

This list is intended to identify some of the principal factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those

described in the forward-looking statements included herein and are not intended to represent complete list of all risks and

uncertainties in our business Investors are encouraged to read the risks discussed under Item 1A Risk Factors



Market Area Products and Services

The Bank provides an array of financial products and services for business and retail customers primarily through 26 branches

in Fulton DeKaib Cobb Clayton Gwinnett Rockdale Coweta Henry Morgan Greene and Barrow Counties in Georgia branch in

Jacksonville Duval County Florida and on the Internet at www.lionbank.com The Banks customers are primarily individuals and

small and medium sized businesses located in Georgia Mortgage and construction loans are also provided through branch in

Jacksonville Florida Mortgage loans automobile loans and Small Business Administration SAloans are provided through

employees located throughout the South

The Bank is pnmanly engaged in attracting deposits from individuals and bnsinesses and using these deposits and borrowed

funds to originate commercial and industrial loans commercial loans secured by real estate SBA loans construction and residential

real estate loans direct and indirect automobile loans residential mortgage and home equity loans and secured and unsecured

installment loans The Bank offers business and personal credit card loans through third party agency relationship Online banking

including online bill pay and online cash matiagement services are available to individuals and businesses respectively Additionally

the Bank offers businesses remote deposit services which allow participating compames to scan and electronically send deposits to

the Bank for improved security and funds availability The Bank also provides international trade services Trust services and

merchant services activities are provided through agreements with third parties Investment services are provided through an

agreement with an independent broker-dealer

We have generally grown our assets deposits and business internally by building on our lending products expanding our

deposit products and delivery capabilities openmg new branches and hiring experienced baikers with existiig customer relationships

in our market We do not purchase loan participations from any other financial institution We have participated FDIC-assisted

transaction and will continue to review the opportunities

Deposits

The Bank offers full range of depository accounts and services to both indivi4uals ad businesses As of December 31

2011 deposits totaled $1 .872 billion consisting of

December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Amount Amount

Dollars in millions

Noninerest-bearing demand deposits
270 14.4% 186 11.5%

Interest-bearing demand deposits and money market accounts 527 28.2 428 26.5

Savings deposits
389 20.8 398 24.7

Time deposits 667 35.6 539 33.5

Brokered time deposits 19 1.0 62 3.8

Total $1872 100.0% $1613 100.0%

Dunng 2011 the Bank continued marketmg program to increase the number and volume of our personal and business

demand deposit accounts with the goals of building relationships with existing customers adding new custoners increasing

transaction accounts and helping manage our cost of funds Deposits also increased due to the FDIC-assisted acquisition of Decatur

First Bank We believe the marketing program has been contributing factor to the growth in the Bank core deposits 2011

Based on the success of this program the Bank intends to continue this marketing program during 2012

Lending

The Banks primary lending activities include commercial loans to small and medium sized businesses SBA sponsored

loans consumer loans primarily indirect automobile loans construction loans and residential real estate loans Commercial lending

consists of the extension of credit for business purposes primarily in the Atlanta metropolitan area SBA loans originated in the

Atlanta metropolitan area and throughout the South are primarily made through the Bank SBA loan production offices located in

Georgia Tennessee Florida North Carolina and Texas Indirect loans are originated in Georgia Florida North Carolina South

Carolina Alabama Mississippi Virginiaand Tennessee The Bank offers direct installment loans to consumers on both secured and

unsecured basis Secured construction loans to homebuilders and developers and residential mortgages are primarily made in the

Atlanta Georgia and Jacksonville Florida metropolitan areas



As of December 31 2011 the Bank had total loans outstanding including loans held-for-sale consisting of

Total Loans Held-for-Sale Loans

In thousands

Comniercia1 549340 12942 5622R
Construction 97710 97710

857l75 30O00 887175

Mortgage 119646- 90907 210553

Total I849 i757O

Certain of the following discussions ate in part based on the Bank defined loan-portfolios and may not conform to the above

classifications

Commercial and Industrial Lending

The Bank originates commercial and industrial loans which inchidecertain SBA loans comprised of partially guaranteed

loans and.other credit enhanced loans that are generally scured by business property.such as inventory equipment and acoounts

receivable All commercial loans are eva1uatedfor the adequacy of repayment sources at the time of approval and are regularly

reviewed for any deterioration in the ability of the borrower to repay the loan In most instances collateral is required to provide an

additional source of repayment in the event of default by the borrower The amount and type of the collateral vary from loan to loan

depending onthepurpose of the loan the financial strength of the borrower and-the-amount and terms of the loan In general the

Bank additionally requires personal guarantees on these loans

Commercial Real Estate Lending

The Bank engages in commercial real estate lending through direct originations The Bank does not purchase loan

participations from other banks although in 2011 the Bank did purchase approximately $12 million of commercial real estate loans

from the FDIC through failed bank acquisition The Banks primary focus is on originating owner-occupied loans to finance real

estate out of which an individual or company will operate their business Non-owner occupied real estate loans-for investment

purposes are made on selective basis and only where the borrowers or guarantors add substantial support to their credit Loans

where the sole source ofrepayment is.derivedfrom the project or where the absence of the projects success would call into question

the ability of the borrower to service the debt are avoided The Banks commercial real estate loans are made to individuals and to

small and medium sized businesses to provide loan diversification to generate assets that are sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates

and to generate deposit and other relationships Commercial real estate loans are generally prime-based floating-rate loans or shorter-

term one to flve5year flxedrate loans.. Approximately 57% of ourcommercial real estate loans are owner occupied real estate loans

The remaining non-owner occupied loans were made to established commercial customers for purposes other.than retail development

The Banks portfolio of SBA loans and SBA loans held-for-sale are primarily commercial real estate related with portion

of each loan guaranteed by the SBA or with other credit enhancements provided by the government.

Indirect Automobile Lending

The Bank purchases ona nonrecourse basis consumer instailmeilt contracts secured by new and used vehicles purchased by

consumers from franchised motor vehicledealers and selected independent dealers located throughout the Southeast portion of the

indirect automobile loans the Bank originates is generally sold with servicing retained During 2011 the Bank produced

approximately $644 million of indirect automobile loans while profitably selling $140 million to third parties with servicing retained

At December 31 2011 we were servicing $206 million in loans we had sold primarily to other financial institutions.

Consumer Lending

The Banks consumerlending activity primarily consists of indirect-automobile lending The Bank also makes direct

consumer loans including direct automobile loans residential mortgage and home equity loans and secured and unsecured personal

loans

Real Estate Construction Lending

The Bank originates real estate construction loans -that consist primarily of one-to-four family residential construction loans

made to builders Loan disbursements are closeLy monitored by management to ensure that funds are being used strictly for the

purposes agreed uponin-the loan covenahts.- The Bank employs both internal staff and external inspectors to ensure that requests for

loan disbursements are substantiated by regular inspections and reviews Construction.and5development loans are similarto all

residential loans in that borrowers are underwritten according to their adequacy of repayment sources at the time of approval Unlike



conventional residential lending however signs of deterioration in construction loan or development loan customers ability to

repay
the loan are measured throughout the life of the loan and not only at origination or when the loan becomes past due In most

instances loan amounts are limited to 80% of the appraised value upon completion of the construction project The Bank originates

real estate construction loans throughout Atlanta Georgia and Jacksonville Florida

Real Estate Mortgage Lending

The Banks residential mortgage loan business focuses on one-to-four family properties We offer Federal Housing

Authority FHA Veterans Administration VA and conventional and non-conforming residential mortgage loans The Bank

operates our retail residential mortgage banking business from multiple locations in the Atlanta metropolitan area Jacksonville

Florida Colorado Springs Colorado Savannah Georgia and Loudon Virginia We also operate wholesale lending division

purchasing loans from qualified brokers and correspondents in the Southeast and Mid-Atlantic regions The Bank is an approved

originator and servicer for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation FHLMC and the Federal National Mortgage Association

FNMA and is an approved originator for loans insured by the Department of Housing and Urban Development HUD
The balances of mortgage loans held-for-sale fluctuate due to economic conditions interest rates the level of real estate

activity the amount of mortgage loans retained by the Bank and seasonal factors During 2011 we originated and sold to third

parties approximately $1.3 billion in mortgage loans As seller the Company makes certain standard representations and warranties

with respect to the loans being transferred To date the Companys repurchases of mortgage loans previously sold have been de

minimus

At December 31 2011 we employed 174 employees including 89 loan originators The Bank primarily sells originated

residential mortgage loans and brokered loans to investors retaining servicing on significant amount of the sales Management

expects mortgage banking division activity for 2012 to be comparable to 2011

Credit Card Services

The Bank offers business and personal credit cards through third party agency relationship

Brokerage Services

The Bank offers full array of brokerage products through an agreement with an independent full service broker-dealer

International Trade Services

The Bank provides services- to individuals and business clients to meet their international business requirements Letters of

credit foreign currency drafts foreign and documentary collections export finance and international wire transfers represent some of

the services provided

Investment Securities

At December 31 2011 we owned investment securities totaling $278 million Managements conservative investment

philosophy attempts to limit risk in the portfolio which results in less yield through less risky investments than would otherwise be

available if we were more aggressive in our investment philosophy Investment securities include debt securities issued by agencies of

the U.S Government mortgage backed securities issued by U.S Government agencies -bank qualified municipal bonds and FHLB

stock

Significant Operating Policies

Lending Policy

The Board of Directors of the Bank has delegated-lending authority to our managementwhich in -turn delegates lending

authority to our loan officers each of whom is limited as to the amount of secured and unsecured loans he or she can make to single

borrower or related group of borrowers As our lending relationships are important to our success the Board of Directors of our Bank

has established loan approval committees and written guidelines for lending activities In particular the Officers Credit Committee

reviews lending relationships with aggregate relationship exposure exceeding $250000 in addition the Officers Credit Committee

approves all credit for commercial loan relationships up to $5 million and for residential construction loan relationships up to $5

million The Loan and Discount Committee must approve
all credit for commercial loan-relationships exceeding $5 million and all

residential construction loan relationships exceeding $5 million The Banks policy on calculating total exposure to an entity or

individual or related group
of entities or individuals is more encompassing than that required under law and calls for the combining of

all debt to all related entities regardless of-the presence
of independent sources of repayment or other conditions that might otherwise

allow portion of debt to be excluded



The Banks written guidelines for lending activities require among other things that

secured loans be made to persons
and companies who maintain depository relationships with the Bank and who are well-

established and have adequate net worth collateral and cash flow to support the loan

unsecured loans be made to persons who maintain depository relationships with the Bank and have significant financial

strength

real estate loans be secured by real property located primarily in Georgia or primarily in the South for SBA loans

working capital loans be repaid out of conversion of assets or earnings of the commercial borrower and that such loans

generally be secured bythe assets of the commercial borrower and

loan renewal requests be reviewed in the same manner as an application for new loan

Residential construction loans are made through the use of officer guidance lines which are approved when appropriate by

the Banks Officers Credit Committee or the Loan and Discount Committee These guidance lines are approved for established

builders and developers with track records and adequate financial strength to support the credit being requested Loans may be

granted for speculative starts or for pre-sold residential property to specific purchasers

All mortgage loans are originated to FNMA FHLMC GNMA and other similar investor standards and guidelines

Loan Review and Nonperforming Assets

The Banks Credit Review Department reviews the Banks loan portfolios to identif potential deficiencies and recommends

appropriate corrective actions The Credit Review Department reviews more than 30% of the commercial and construction loan

portfolios and reviews 10% of the consumer loans originated annually In 2011 we reviewed more than 80% of the construction and

commercial portfolios The results of the reviews are presented to the Banks Loan and Discount Committee on monthly basis

The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses which is established and maintained through provisions charged to

operations Such provisions are based on managements evaluation of the loan portfolio including loan portfolio concentrations

current economic conditions the economic outlook past loan loss experience adequacy of underlying collateral and such factors

which in managements judgment deserve consideration in estimating losses

Management also models the valuation of collateral dependent real estate loans and Other Real Estate ORE based on the

latest appraised value trends of similarproperty values within the Banks market and the Bank own observations and experience

with similarproperties At least quarterly valuations are decreased to take into account the aging of the appraisals Loans are charged

off when in the opinion of management such loans are deemed to be uncollectible Subsequent recoveries are added to the

allowance

Asset/Liability Management

The Companys Asset/Liability Committee ALCO manages on an overall basis the mix of and terms related to the

Companys assets and liabilities ALCO attempts to manage asset growth liquidity and capital in order to reduce interest rate risk

and maximize income ALCO directs our overall acquisition and allocation of fundsand reviews and sets rates on deposits loans and

fees

Investment Portfolio Policy

The Companys investment portfolio policy is designed to maximize income consistent with liquidity risk tolerance

collateral needs asset quality regulatory constraints and asset/liability objectives The policy is reviewed at least annually by the

Boards of Directors of FSC and the Bank The Boards of Directors are provided information on regular basis concerning significant

purchases and sales of investment securities including resulting gains or losses They are also provided information related to average

maturity Federal taxable equivalent yield and appreciation or depreciation by investment categories The Board of Directors is

responsible for the establishment approval implementation and annual review of interest rate risk management strategies

comprehensive policies procedures and limits Senior management is responsible for ensuring that board approved strategies

policies and procedures are appropriately executed through robust interest rate risk measurement process and systems to assess

exposures



Supervision and Regulation

-The following is brief summary of FSCs and the Banks supervision and regulation as financial instituUons and is not

intended to be complete discussion of all NASDAQ Stock Market state or federal rules statutes and regulations affecting their

operations or that apply generally to business corporations or NASDAQ listed companies Changes in the rules statutes and

regulations applicable to FSC and the Bank can affect the operating environment in substantial and unpredictable ways

General

We are registered bank holding company subject to regulation by the Board ofGovemorsofthePederal-Rserve System

the Federal Reserve under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 as amended the Act We arerequired to file annual and

quarterly fmancial infonnation with the- Federal Reserve and are subject to periodic examination by the Federal Reserve

The Act requires every bank holding cömpàny to obtain the Federal Reserves prior approval before 1-it may acquire direct

or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% ofthØvotiæg shares of any bank that it does not Æbead control it or any of i-ts

non-bank subsidiaries may acquire all or substantially all of the assets of bank and it may merge or consolidate with any other

bank holding company In addition bank holding company is generally prohibited from engaging in or acquiring direct or indirect

control of the voting shares of any company engaged in noæ-bankirtg activities This prohibition does not apply to activities listed in

the Act or found by the Federal Reserve by order or regulation to be closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to

be proper incident thereto Some of the activities that the Federal Reserve has determined by regulation or order to be closely related

to banking are

making or servicing loans and certain types of leases

performing certain data processing services

acting as fiduciary or investment or financial advisor

providing brokerage services

underwriting bank eligible securities

underwriting debt and equity securities ona limited basis through separately capitalized subsidiaries and

making investments in corporations or projects designed primarily to promote community welfare

Although the activities of bank holding ompanishave ftaditionally
been limited to the business of banking and activities

closely related or incidental to banking as discussed above the GrammLeach-B1i1ey Act the GLB Act relaxed the previous

limitations and permitted bank holding companies to engage in broader range of financial activities Specifically bank holding

companies may elect to become financial holding companies which may affiliate with securities firms and instirance companies and

engage in other activities that are financial in nature -Among the activities that are deemed financial in nature include

lending exchanging transferring investing for others or safeguarding money or securities

insuring guaranteeiiig or indemnifying against loss harm 4amag illness disability or death or providing and issuing

annuities and acting as principal agent or broker with respect thereto

providing financial investment or economic advisory services including advising an investment company

issuing or selling instruments representing interest in poo1s of assets permissible for bank to hold directly and

underwriting dealing in or making market in securities

bank holding company may become financial holding company under this statute only if each of its subsidiary banks is

well capitalized is well managed and ha at least satisfactory rating under- the Community Reinvestment Act bank holding

company that falls out of compliance with such requirement may2be required to cease engaging in certain- activities Any bank holding

company that does not elect to becothe financial holding company remains subject to the bank holding company restrictions of the

Act Fidelity has no current plans to register as financiaF holding company

Fidelity must also register with the Georgia Department of Banking and Finance GDBF and file periodic information

with the GDBF As part of such registration the GDBF requires information with respect to the financial condition operations

management and intercompany relationships of Fidelity and the Bank and related matters The GDBF may also require such other

information as is necessary to keep itself informed as to whether the provisions of Georgia law and the regulations and orders issued

there under by the GDBF have been complied with and the GDBF may examine Fidelity and the Bank The Florida Office of

Financial Regulation FOFR does not examine or directly regulate out-of-state holding companies for banks with branch located

in the State of Florida

Fidelity is an affiliate of the Bank under the Federal Reserve Act which imposes certain restrictions on loans by the

Bank to Fidelity investments in the stock or securities of Fidelity by the Bank the Banks taking the stock or securities of an

affiliate as collateral for loans by the Bank to borrower and the purchase of assets from Fidelity by the Bank Further bank



holding company and its subsidiaries are prohibited from engaging in certain tie-in arrangements in connection with any extension of

credit lease or sale of property or furnishing of services

The Bank is regularly examined by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the FDIC As state banking association

organized under Georgia law the Bank is subject to the supervision of and is regularly examined by the GDBF The Banks Florida

branch is subject to examination by the FOFR Both the FDIC and GDBF must grant prior approval of any merger consolidation or

other corporation reorganization involving the Batik

TARP Capital Purchase Program

On October 14 2008 the Treasury announced the Troubled Asset Relief Program TARP Capital Purchase Program the

Program The Program was instituted by the Treasury pursuant to the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 EBSA
to provide up to $700 billion to the Treasury to among other things take equity positions in financial institutions The Program is

intended to encourage U.S Financial institutions to build capital and thereby increase the flow of financing to businesses and

consumers

On December 19 2008 as part of the Program Fidelity entered into Letter Agreement Letter Agreement and

Securities Purchase Agreement Standard Terms with the Treasury pursuant to which Fidelity agreed to issue and sell and the

Treasury agreed to purchase 148200 shares the Preferred Shares of Fidelitys Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock

Series having liquidation preference of $1000 per share and tert-year warrant the Warrant to purchase up to 2266458

shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $3.19 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $48.2 million in

cash

In connection with Fidelitys participation with the Program Fidelity adopted the Treasurys standards .for executive

compensation and corporate governance set forth in section 111 of EESA and any guidance or regulations adopted thereunder for the

period during which the Treasury holds equity issued under the Program To ensure compliance with these standards within the time

frame prescribed by the Program Fidelity has entered into agreements with its senior executive officers who would be subject to the

standards The executive officers have agreed to among other things clawback provisions relating to the repayment by the

executive officers of incentive compensation based on materially inaccurate financial statement or performance metrics and

limitations on certain post-termination parachute payments In addition the Letter Agreement provides that the Treasury may

unilaterally amend any provision of the Letter Agreement to the extent required to oomply with any changes in applicable federal law

On January 262012 the Office of the Special Inspector General for the Troubled Asset Relief Program SIGTARP released

its latest Quarterly Report to Congress SIGTARP has recommended that Treasury develop clear TARP exit path for community

banks including criteria pertaining to restructurings exchanges and sales of its TARP investments Additionally Treasury should

assess whether it should renegotiate the terms of the Program contracts for those community banks that will not be able to exit TARP

prior to the dividend rate increase in order to help preserve the value of taxpayers investments

The Treasury has engaged consultant to provide capital markets disposition services for its remaining Program investments

including

analyzing reviewing and documenting financial business regulatory and market information related to potential transactions of

program investments

advising and monitoring restructuring strategies prior to the disposition of Program investments

reporting on the potential performance of certain Program investments and their disposition given range of market scenarios and

transaction structures

analyzing and proposing disposition alternatives and structures including the use of additional underwriters brokers or other

capital markets advisors for the best means and structure to dispose of such assets and

maintaining compliance program designed to detect and prevent violations of Federal securities laws and identifying

documenting and enforcing controls to mitigate conflicts of interest

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of2009

On February 172009 the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ARRA was enacted and the Treasury

implemented interim final rules under ARRA on June 15 2009 the ARRA Regulations The ARRA commonly known as the

economic stimulus or economic recovery package includes wide variety of programs intended to stimulate the economy and provide

for extensive infrastructure energy health and education needs In addition ARRA imposes certain new executive compensation and

corporate expenditure limits on all current and future TARP recipients including Fidelity until the institution has repaid the Treasury

which is now permitted under ARRA without penalty and without the need to raise new capital subject to the Treasurys consultation

with the recipients appropriate regulatory agency The executive compensation standards set forth in the ARRA and ARRA

Regulations include but are not limited to prohibitions on bonuses retention awards and other incentive compensation to certain



executive officers and other highly compensated employees other than restricted stock grants which do not fully vest during the

TARP period up to one-third of an employees total annual compensation iiprohibitions on golden parachute e.g severance

payments for departure from company iii an expanded clawback of bonuses retention awards and incentive compensation if

payment is based on materially inaccurate statements of earnings revenues gains or other criteria iv prohibitions on compensation

plans that encourage manipulation of reported earnings retroactive review of bonuses retention awards and other compensation

previously provided by TARP recipients if found by the Treasury to be inconsistent with the
purposes

of TARP or otherwise contrary

to public interest vi required establishment of company-wide policy regarding excessive or luxury expenditures and vii
inclusion in participants proxy statements for annual shareholder meetings of nonbinding say on pay shareholder vote on the

compensation of executives

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 201

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act Dodd-Frank Act was signed into law on July 21

2010 The Dodd-Frank Act affects financial institutions in numerous ways including the creation of new Financial Stability

Oversight Council responsible for monitoring and managing systemic risk granting additional authority to the Federal Reserve to

regulate certain types of non-bank financial companies granting new authority to the FDIC as liquidator and receiver abolishing the

Office of Thrift Supervision changing the manner in which insurance deposit assessments are made requiring the regulators to

modify capital standards establishing new Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection to regulate compliance with consumer laws and

regulations capping interchange fees which banks charge merchants for lebit card transactions and imposing new requirements on

mortgage lenders There are many provisions in the Dodd-Frank Act mandating regulators to adopt new regulations and conduct

studies upon which future regulation may be based It is anticipated that these new regulations will increase Eidelitys compliance

costs over time and could have unforeseen
consequences as the new legislation is implemented over time

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program

On November 21 2008 the Board of Directors of the FDIC adopted final rule relating to the Temporary Liquidity

Guarantee Program TLG Program The TELG Program was announced by the FDIC on October 14 2O08 preceded by the

determination of systemic risk by the Treasury as an initiative to counter the system-wide crisis in the nations financial sector

Under the original TLO Program the FDIC will guarantee through the earlier of maturity or June 30 2012 certain newly issued

senior unsecured debt issued by participating institutions and ii provide full FDIC deposit insurancç coverage
for noninterest-bearing

transaction deposit accounts Negotiable Order of Withdrawal NOW- accounts paying less than 0.5% interest per annum and

Interest on Lawyers Trust Accounts held at participating FDIC-insured institutions through June 30 2010 On June 22 2010 the

program was extended through December 31 2010 and the maximum interest rate for guaranteed NOW accounts was lowered from

.50% to .25% The fee assessment for coverage of senior unsecured debt ranges froo 50 basis points to 100 basis points per annum

depending on the initial maturity of the debt The fee assessment for deposit insurance coverage is 10 basis points per quarter on

amounts in covered accounts exceeding $250000

On November 2010 the FDIC issued final rule to implement Section 343 of the Dodd-Frank Act that provides temporary

unlimited deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts at all FDIC-insured depository institutions The

separate coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts became effective on December 31 2010 and terminates on December

31 2012 Fidelity elected to participate in both guarantee programs From the inception of the TLG Program through December 31

2011 Fidelity did not issue any senior unsecured debt The termination of the guarantee is not expected to have material impact on

the Company

FDIC Insurance Assessments

The FDIC maintains the Deposit Insurance Fund DIF by assessing depository institutions an insurance premium The

amount each institution is assessed is based upon statutory factors that include the balance of insured deposits as well as- the degree of

risk the institution poses to the DIF The Dodd-Frank Act permanently raised the FDIC insurance coverage limit
per depositor to

$250000 In 2009 the FDIC increased the amount assessed from financial institutions -by increasing its risk-based deposit insurance

assessment scale The assessment scale for 2010 ranged from seven basis points of assessable deposits for the strongest institutions to

77.5 basis points for the weakest In 2009 the FDIC approved rule that required insured institutions to prepay
their estimated

quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 2011 and 2012 An insured institutions risk-

based deposit insurance assessments will continue to be calculated on quarterly basis but will be paid from the amount the

institution prepaid until the later of the date that amount is exhausted or June 30 2013 at which point any remaining funds would be

returned to the insured institution On February 2011 the FDIC approved final rule implementing changes to the deposit

insurance assessment system mandated by the Dodd-Frank Act The base on which deposit insurance assessments are charged was

revised from one based on domestic deposits .to one based on assets The assessment rate schedule was also revised to to 35 basis

points annually and fully adjusted rates will range from 2.5 to 45 basis points annually The overall impact of these changes has

resulted in reduction in the Banks FDIC insurance premiums
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Payment of Dividends

FSC is legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank Most of the revenue we receive results from dividends paid to us

by the Bank There are statutory and regulatory requirements applicable to the payment of dividends by the Bank as well as by us to

our shareholders

Under the regulations of the GDBF dividends may not be declared out of the retained earnings of state bank without first

obtaining the written permission of the GDBF unless such bank meets all the following requirements

total classified assets as of the most recent examination of the bank do not exceed 80% of equity capital as defined by

regulation

the aggregate amount of dividends declared or anticipated to be declared in the calendar year does not exceed 50% of the

net profits after taxes but before dividends for the previous calendar year and

the ratio of equity capital to adjusted assets is not less than 6%

The payment Of dividends by Fidelity and the Bank may also be affected or limited byother factors such as the requirement

to maintain adequate capital above regulatory guidelines In addition if in the opinion of the applicable regulatory authority bank

under its jurisdiction is engaged in or is about to engage in an unsafe or unsound practice which depending upon the financial

condition of the bank could include the payment of dividends such authority may require after notice and hearing that such bank

cease and desist from such practice TheFDIC has issued policy statement providing that insured banks should generally only pay

dividends out of current operating earnings In addition to the formal statutes and regulations regulatory authorities consider the

adequacy of the Banks total capital in relation to its assets deposits and other such items Capital adequacy considerations could

further limit the availability of dividends to the Bank

For 2011 the Bank did not pay cash dividend to FSC while FSC did pay $0.01 cash dividend during the third and fourth

quarters to its common stockholders In addition in 2011 FSC declared quarterly stock dividend of one share for every 200 shares

owned in the first second and third quarters In January 2012 FSC declared stock dividend of one new share for every 60 shares

owned The Board of Directors for both the Bank and FSC will review on quarterly basis whether to declare and pay dividends for

the remainder of 2012 with the declared and paid dividend consistent with current regulatory limitations earnings capital

requirements and forecasts of future earnings

CapitalAdequacy

The Federal Reserve and the FDIC have implemented substantially identical risk-based rules for assessing bank and bank

holding company capital adequacy These regulations establish minimum capital standards in relation to assets and off-balance sheet

exposures as adjusted for credit risk Banks and bank holding companies are required to have minimum level of Total Capital as

defined to risk-weighted assets of eight percent 8% and minimum Tier Capital as defined to risk-weighted assets of four

percent 4% In addition the Federal Reserve and the FDIC have established minimum three percent 3% leverage ratio of Tier

Capital to quarterly average total assets for the most highly-rated banks and bank holding companies Tier Capital generally

consists of common equity excluding unrecognized gains and losses on available for sale securities plus minority interests in equity

accounts of consolidated subsidiaries and certain perpetual preferred stock less certain intangibles The Federal Reserve and the FDIC

will require bank holding company and bank respectively to maintain leverage ratio greater than four percent 4% if either is

experiencing or anticipating significant growth or is operating with less than well-diversified risks in the opinion of the Federal

Reserve The Federal Reserve and the FDIC use the leverage ratio in tandem with the risk-based ratio to assess the capital adequacy

of banks and bank holding companies The FDIC and the Federal Reserve consider interest rate risk in the overall determination of

banks capital ratio requiring banks with greater interest rate risk to maintain adequate capital for the risk

Section 38 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act implemented the prompt corrective action provisions that Congress enacted

as part of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 the 1991 Act The FDIC has adopted regulations

implementing the prompt corrective action provisions of the 1991 Act which place financial institutions in the following five

categories based upon capitalization ratios well capitalized institution has Total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10%
Tier risk-based ratio of at least 6% and leverage ratio of at least 5% an adequately capitalized institution has Total risk-

based capital ratio of at least 8% Tier risk-based ratio of at least 4% and leverage ratio of at least 4% an undercapitalized

institution has Total risk-based capital ratio of under 8% Tier risk-based ratio of under 4% or leverage ratio of under 4%
significantly undercapitalized institution has Total risk-based capital ratio of under 6% Tier risk-based ratio of under 3% or

leverage ratio of under 3% and critically undercapitalized institution has leverage ratio of 2% or less Institutions in any of

the three undercapitalized categories would be prohibited from declaring dividends or making capital distributions The FDIC

regulations also establish procedures for downgrading an institution to lower capital category based on supervisory factors other

than capital Regulators are also empowered to place in receivership or require the sale of bank to another depository institution

when banks capital leverage ratio reaches 2% Better oapitalized institutions are generally subject to less onerous regulation and

supervision than banks with lesser amounts of capital
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To continue to conduct its business as currently conducted FSC and the Bank will need to maintain capital well above the

minimum levels As of December 31 2011 and 2010 the most recent notifications from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well

capitalized under current regulations

In 2004 the Basel Committee published new capital accord Basel II to replace Basel Basel II provides two

approaches for setting capital standards for credit risk an internal ratings-based approach tailored to individual institutions

circumstances and standardized approach that bases risk weightings on external credit assessments to much greater extent than

permitted in existing risk-based capital guidelines Basel II also sets capital requirements for operational risk and refines the existing

capital requirements for market risk exposures

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the Federal Reserve Board the 0CC and the FDIC to adopt regulations imposing continuing

floor of the Basel I-based capital requirements in cases where theBasel IT-based capital requirements and.any changes in capital

regulations resulting from Basel III see below otherwise would permit lower requirements

In December 2010 the Basel Committee released its final framework for strengthening international capital and liquidity

regulation now officially identified bytheBasel Committee as Base III Basel Ill when implemented by the U.S banking

agencies and fully phased-in will require bank holding companies and their bank sUbsidiaries to maintain substantially more capital

with greater emphasis on common equity

The Base III final capital framework among other things introduces as new capital measure Common Equity Tier

CETI ii specifies that Tier capital cotisists of CET1 and Additional Tier capital instruments meeting specified

requirements iiidefines CET1 narrowly by requiring that most adjustments to regulatory capital measures be made to CET1and not

to the other components of capital and iv expands the scope of the adjustments as compared to existing regulations

When fully phased-in on January 2019 Base III requires banks to maintain ias newlyadopted international standard

minimum ratio ofCET1 to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5% plus 2.5% capital conservation buffer which is added to the 4.5%

CETI ratio as that buffer is phased in effectively resulting in minimum ratio of CET1 to risk-weighted assets of at least 7% ii

minimum ratio of Tier capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0% plus the capital conservation buffer which is added to the

6.0% Tier capital ratio as that btiffer is phased in effectively resulting in minimum Tier capital ratio of 8.5% upon full

implementation iii minimum ratio of Total that is Tier plus Tier capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0% plus the

capital conservation buffer which is added to the 8.0% total capital ratio as that buffer is phased in effectively resulting in

minimum total capital ratio of 10.5% upon full implementation and iv as newly adopted international standard minimum

leverage ratio of 3% calculated as the ratio of Tier capital to balance sheet
exposures plus certain off-balance sheet exposures

computed as the average for each quarter of the monthend ratios for the quarter

Basel III also provides for countercyclica capital buffer generally to be imposed when national regulators determine that

excess aggregate credit growth becomes associated with buildup of systemic risk that would be CET1 add-on to the capital

conservation buffer in the iange of 0% to 2.5% when fully implemented potentially resulting in total buffers.of between 2.5% and

5%

The aforementioned capital conservation buffer is designed to absorb losses during periods of economic stress Banking

institutions with ratio of CET1 to risk-weighted assets above the minimum but below the conservation buffer or below the

combitied capital conservation bufferand countercyclical capital buffer when the latter is applied will face constraints on dividends

equityrepurchases and compensation based on the amount of the shortfall

The implementation of the Basel III final framework will commence January 2011 On that date banking institutions will

be required to meet the following minimum capital ratios

3.5% CET1 to risk-weighted assets

4.5% Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

8.0% Total capital to risk-weighted assets

The Basel III fiUàl framework provides for ahumber of new deductiohs fron and adjustments to CET1 These include for

example the requirement that mortgage servicing rights deferred tax assets dependent upon future taxable income and significant

investments in non-consolidated financial entities be dedUcted from CET to the extent that ah one such category exceeds 10% of

CET or all such categories in the aggregate exceed 15% of CETL

Implementation of the deductions and other adjustments CET will begin on January 2014 and willbe phased-in over

five-year period 20% per year The implementation of the capital conservation buffer will begin On January 2016 at 0.625% and

be phased-in over four-year period increasing by that amOunt on eaôh subsequent January until it reaches 2.5% on January

2019
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The U.S banking agencies have indicated informally that they expect to adopt Basel III implementing regulations in mid

2012 Notwithitanding its release of the Basel III framework as a.final framework the Easel Committee is considering further

amendments to Basel III including the imposition of additional capital surcharges on globally systemicallyimportant
financial

institutions In addition to Basel III Dodd-Frank requires or permits the Federal banking agencies to adopt regulations affecting

banking institutions capital requirements in number of respects including potentially more stringent capital requirements
for

systemically important financial institutions Accordingly the regulations ultimately applicable to the Bank may be substantially

different from the Basel III final framework as published in December 2011 Requirements to maintain higher levels of capital or to

maintain higher levelsof liquid assets could adversely impact the Banks net income and return on equity

Internal Control Reporting

The 1991 Act also imposes substantial auditing and reporting requirements and increases the role of independent accountants

and outside directors of banks

Commercial Real Estate

In December 2006 the federal banking agencies including the FDIC issued final guidance on concentrations in

commercial real estate lending the Guidance noting that increases in banks commercial .real estate concentrations could create

safety and soundness concerns in .the event of significant economic downturn The Guidance mandates certain minimal risk

management practices and àategorizes banks with defined levels of such concentrations as banks that may warrant elevated examiner

scrutiny The regulatory guideline defines bank as having concentration in commercial real estate if its portfolio of land

construction both commercial and residential and Acquisition and Development loans exceeds 100% of the Banks total risk based

capital The Banks ratio decreased from 59% at December 31 2010 to 56% at December 31 2011 The regulatory guideline for all

real estate loans except owner-occupied property as percentage of capital is maximum of 300% The Banks ratio decreased from

138% at December 31 2010 to 136% at December 31 2011 The Guidance does not formally prohibit bank from exceeding either

of these two thresholds Rather it defmes the circumstances under which bank will be declared to have commercial real estate

concentration Further the Guidance requires any such banks with commercial real estate concentrations to have heightened and

sophisticated risk management systems in place to adequately manage the increased levels of risk While management believes that

our credit processes procedures and systems meet the risk management standards dictated by the Guidance regulatory authorities

could effectively limit increases in the real estate concentrations in the Banks loan portfolios or require additional credit

administration and management costs associated therewith or both

Loans

Inter-agency guidelines adopted by federal bank regulators mandate that financial institutions establish real estate lending

policies with maximum allowable real estate loan-to-value limits subject to an allowable amount of non-conforming loans as

percentage
of capital The Bank adopted the federal guidelines in 2001

Transactions with Affiliates

Under federal law all transactions between and among state nonmember bank and its affiliates which include holding

companies are subject to Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation promulgated thereunder Generally

these requirements limit these transactions to percentage
of the banks capital and require all of them to be on terms at least as

favorable to the bank as transactions with non-affiliates In addition bank may not lend to any affiliate engaged in non-banking

activities not permissible for bank holding company or acquire shares ofany affiliate that is not subsidiary The FDIC is

authorized to impose additional restrictions on transactions with affiliates if necessary to protect the safety and soundness of bank

The regulations also set forth various reporting requirements relating to transactions with affiliates

Financial Privacy

In accordance with the GLB Acts federal banking regulators adopted rules that limit the ability of banks and other financial

institutions to disclose non-public information about consumers to non-affiliated third parties These limitations require disclosure of

privacy policies to consumers and in some circumstances allow consumers to prevent
disclosure of certain personal information to

non-affiliated third party The privacy provisions of the GLB Act affect how consumer information is transmitted through diversified

financial companies and conveyed to outside vendors

Anti-Money Laundering Initiatives and the USA Patriot Act

major focus of governmental policy on financial institutions in recent years has been aimed at combating terrorist

financing This has generally been accomplished byarnending existing anti-money laundering laws and regulations The USA Patriot

Act of 2001 the USA Patriot Act has imposed significant new compliance and due diligence obligations creating new crimes and

penalties The Treasury issued number of implementing regulations that apply to various requirements of the USA Patriot Act to us
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and the Bank These regulations impose obligatipns on fmancial institutionstcv maintain appropriate.policies procedures and controls

to detect prevent and report money launderingand terrorist financing and to verifythe identity of their customers Failure of

financial institutiontornaintainand implement adequate programs to cOmbat terrorist financing or to comply with all of the relevant

laws or regulations could.have serious legal and reputational consequences for the institution

Future Legislation

Various legislation affecting financial institutions and the financial industry is from time to time introduced in Congress
Such legislation may change banking statutes and the operating environment of Fidelity and its subsidiaries in substantial and

unpredictable ways and could increase or decrease the cost of doing business limit or expand permissible activities or affect the

competitive balance depending upon whether any of this potential legislation will be enacted and if enacted the effect that it or any
implementing regulations would have on the financial condition or results of operations of Fidelity or any of its subsidiaries With
the recent enactments of the Dodd-Frank Act the nature and extent of future legislative and regulatory changes affecting financial

institutions is
very unpredictable at this time

Competition

The banking business is highly competitive The Bank competes for traditional bank business with numerous other

commercial banks and thrift institutions in Fulton DeKalb Cobb Clayton Gwinnett kockdale Coweta Henry Morgan Greene and
Barrow Counties Georgia the Banks primary market area other than for residential construction and development loans SBA loans
residential mortgages and indirect automobile loans The Bank also competes for loans with insurance companies regulated small
loan companies credit unions and certain governmental agencies The Bank competes with independent brokerage and investment

companies as well as state and natiOnal banks and their affiliates and other financial companies Many of the companies with whom
the Bank competes have

greater financial resources

The.indirect automobile financing and mortgage banking industries are also highly competitive In the indirect automobile

financing industry the Bank competes with specialty consumer finance companies including automobile manufacturers captive
finance companies in addition to other financial institutions The residential mortgage banking .business competes with independent

mortgage banking companies state and national banks and their subsidiaries as well as thrift institutions and insurance companies

Employees and Executive Officers

As of December 31 2011 we had 626 full-time equivalent employees We are not party to any collective bargaining

agreement We believe that our employee relations are good We afford our employees variety of competitive benefit programs
including retirement plan and group health life and other insurance pxtgrams We also support training and educational programs
designed to ensure that employees have the types and levels of skills needed to perform at their best in their current positions and to

help them prepare for positions of increased responsibility

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The Companys executive officers their ages their positions with the Company at December 31 2011 and the period during
which they have served as executive officers are asfollows

Name Age Since Position

James Miller Jr 71 1979 Principal Executive Officer Chairman of the Board and Chief

Executive Officer of Fidelity since 1979 President of Fidelity from

1979 to April2006 Chairman of Fidelity Bank since 1998

President of Fidelity Bank from 1977 to 1997 and from December

2003 through September 2004 and Chief ExecutiveOfficer of

Fidelity Bank from 1977 to 1997 and from December 2003 until

present director of Fidelity Bank since 1976 Chairman of

LionMark Insurance Company wholly-owned subsidiary since

November 2004

Palmer Proctor Jr 44 1996 President of Fidelity since April 2006 Senior Vice President of

Fidelity from January 2006 through April 2006 Vice President of

Fidelity from April 1996 through January 2006 DireXor and

President of Fidelity Bank since October 2004 and Senior Vice

President of Fidelity Bank from October 2000 through September
2004 Director and Secretary/Treasurer of LionMark Insurance

Company wholly-owned subsidiary since November 2004
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Stephen Brolly 48 2008 Principal Financial and Accounting Officer of Fidelity and Chief

Financial Officer of Fidelity and Fidelity Bank since August 2008
Treasurer of Fidelity and Fidelity Bank from May 2006 through

August 2008 Chief Financial Officer of LionMark Insurance

Company wholly-owned subsidiary since August 2008

David Buchanan 54 1995 Vice .President of Fidelity since 1999 Executive Vice President of

Fidelity Bank since October 2004 and Senior Vice President of

Fidelity Bank from 1995 through September 2004 President of

LionMark Insurance Company wholly-owned subsidiary since

November 2004

Available Information

We rile annMal quarterly and current reports proxy statements apd other documents with the Securities and Exchange

Coinmissionthe EC under the Securities Exchange Act The public may read and copy any materials that we file with the SEC

at the SECs Piblic Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street NW Washington DC 20549 The public may obtain information on the

operation pfthe Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330 Also the SEC maintains an Internet web site that

contains reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers including Fidelity that file electronically

with the SEC The public can obtain any documents that we file with the SEC at http//www.sec.gov

We also make available free of charge on or through our Internet web sites http//www.fidelitysouthern.com or

http//www.lionbank.com our Annual Report to Shareholders our Annual Report on Form 10-K our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-

our current reports on Form 8-K and if applicable amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or

15d of the Securities Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with or furnish it to

the SEC

Item Risk Eactors

The following risk factors and other information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K should be carefully

considered The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face Additional risks and uncertainties not

presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may adversely impact our business operations If any of the

following risks occur our business financial condition operating results and cash flows could be materially adversely affected

Risks Related to our.Business

significant portion of the Banks loan portfolio is secured by real estate loans in the Atlanta Georgia metropolitan area and

in eastern and northern Florida markets and continued downturn in real estate market values in those areas may adversely

affect our business

Currently ur lending and other businesses are concentrated in the Atlanta Georgia metropolitan area and eastern and

northern Florida As of December 31 2011 commercial real estate real estate mortgage and construction loans accounted for 44.4%

of our total loan portfolio Therefore conditions in these markets will strongly affect the level of our nonperforming loans and our

results of operations and financial condition Real estate values and the demand for commercial and residential mortgages and

construction loans are affected by among other things changes in general and local economic conditions changes in governmental

regulation monetary and fiscal policies interest rates and weather Continued declines in our real estate markets could adversely

affect the demand for new real estate loans and the value and liquidity of the collateral securing our existing loans Adverse changes

in our markets could also reduce our growth rate impair our ability to collect loans and generally affect our financial condition and

results of operations

Construction and land development loans are subject to unique risks that could adversely affect earnings

Our construction and land development loan portfolio was $130.0 million at December 31 2011 comprising 7.4% of total

loans Construction.and land development loans are..often riskier thanhome equity loans or residential mortgage loans to individuals

During general economic slowdowns like the one we are currently experiencing these loans represent higher risk due to slower sales

and reduced cash flow that could impact the borrowers ability to repay on timely basis In addition regulations and regulatory

policies affecting banks and financial services companies undergo continuous change and we cannot predict when changes will occur

or the ultimate effect of any changes Since the latter part of 2006 there .has been continued regulatory focus on construction

development and commercial real estate lending Changes in the federal policies applicable to construction development or

commercial real estate loais make us subject to substantial limitations with respect to making such loans increase the costs of making

such loans and require us to have greater amount of capital to support this kind of lending all of which could have material

adverse effect on our profitability or financial condition
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The Allowance for loan losses maybe insufficient

The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses which is established and maintained through provisions charged to

operations Such provisions are based on managements evaluation of the loan portfolio including loan portfolio concentrations

current economic conditions the economic outlook past loan loss experience adequacy of underlying collateral and such other

factors which in managements judgment deserve consideration in estimating loan losses Loans are charged off when in the

opinion of management such loatis are deemed to be uncllectible Subsequent iecoveries are added to the allowance

Thedetermination of the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses inherently involves high degree of subjectivity

and requires management to make significant estimates of current credit risks and trends all of which may undergo material changes

Changes in economic conditions affecting borrowers new-information regarding existing loans identification of additional problem

loans and other factors may require an increase in the allowance for loan losses In addition bank regulatory agencies periodically

review the Banks allowance for loan losses and may require an increase in the provision for loan losses or the recognition of further

loan charge-offs based on judgments different than those of management In addition if charge-offs in future periods exceed the

estimated charge-offs utilized in determining the sufficiency of the allowance for loan losses we will need additidnal provisions to

increase the allowance Any increases in the allowance for loan losses will result in decrease in net incothe andposibly regulatory

capital and may have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations See A1loace for Loan Losses

in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations located elsewhere in this

report for further discussion related to our process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses

The Bank may be unable to maintain and service relationships with automobile dealers and the Bank is subject to their

willingness and ability to provide high quality indirect automobile loans

The Banks indirect automobile lending operation depends in large part upon the ability to maintain and service relationships

with automobile dealers the strength of new and used automobile sales the loan rate and other incentives offered by other purchasers

of indirect automobile loans or by the automobile manufacturers and their captive finance companies and the continuing ability of the

consumer to qualify for and make payments on high quality automobile loans There can be no assurance the Bank will be successful

in maintaining such dealer relationships or increasing the number of dealers with which the Bank does business or that the existing

dealer base will continue to generate volume of finance contracts comparable to the volume historically generated by such dealers

which could have material adverse effect on our-financial condition and results of operations

Our profitability depends significantly on economic conditions in the Atlanta metropolitan area

Our success depends primarily on the general economic conditions of the Atlanta metropolitan area and the specific local

markets in which we operate Unlike larger national or regional banks that are more geographically diversified the Bank provides

banking and financial services to customers primarily in the Atlanta metropolitan areas including Fulton DeKalb Cobb Clayton

Gwinnett Rockdale Coweta Henry Morgan Greene and Barrow Counties The local economic conditions in these areas have

significant impact on the demand for our products and services as well as the ability of our customers to repay loans the value of the

collateral securing loans and the stability of our deposit funding sources significant decline in general economic conditions caused

by significant economic slowdown recession inflation acts of terrorism outbreak of hostilities or other international or domestic

occurrences unempipyment changes iii securities markets or other factors could impact these local economic conditions and in turn

have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

The earnings offinancial services companies are signfkantly afftcted by general business and economic conditions

Our operations and profitability are impacted by general business and economic conditions in the United States and abroad

These conditions include recession short-term and long-term interest rates inflation money supply political issues legislative and

regulatory changes fluctuations in both debt and equity capital markets broad trends in industry and finance and the strength of the

U.S economy and the local economies in which we operate all of which are beyond our control deterioration in economic

conditions could result in an increase in loan delinquencies and nonperforming assets decreases in loan collateral values and

decrease in demand for our products arid services among other things any of which could have material adverse ithpact on our

financial condition and results of operations

Legislative and regulatoiy actions taken now or in the future may have sign/icant adverse effect on our operations

Recent events in the finalicial services industry and more generally in the financial markets and the economy have led to

various proposals for changes in the regulation of the financial services industry The Dodd-Frank Act made number of material

changes in banking regulations The full impact of these changes remains to be seen However Fidelity anticipates that its

compliance costs will increase as result of the various new regulations required under the Dodd-Frank Act Changes arising from

implementation of Dodd-Frank and any other new legislation mayimpact the pofitability of our busifiess activities require we raise

additional capital or change certain of our business practices require us to divest certain business lines materially affect our business
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model or affect retention of key personnel and could
expose us to additional costs including increased compliance costs These

changes may also require us to invest significant management attention and resources to make any necessary changes and could

therefore also adversely affect our business and operations

Further increases in FDIC premiums could have material adverse effect on our future earnings

The FDJC insures deposits at FDIC insured financial institutions including the Bank The FDIC charges the insured
financial institutions premiums to maintain the Deposit Insurance Fund at an adequate level In light of current economic conditions
the FDIC has increased its assessment rates and imposed special assessments The FDIC may further increase these rates andimpose
additional special assessments in the future which could have material adverse effect on future earnings

There are substantial regulatory limitations on changes of controlof batik holding companies

With certain limited exceptions federal regulations prohibit person or company or group of persons deemed to be acting
in concert from directly or indirectly acquiringmore than 10% 5%if the acquirer is bank holding company of any class of our

voting stock or obtaining the ability to control in any manner the election of majority of our directors or otherwise direct the

management or policies of our company without prior notice or application to and the approval of the Federal Reserve Accordingly
prospective investors need to be aware of and comply with these requirements if applicable in connection with any purchase of
shares of our common stock

Future dividend payments and common stock repurchases are restricted by the terms of the Treasurys equity investment in us

Under the terms of the Program as long as the Preferred Shares are outstanding dividend payments and repurchases or

redemptions relating to certain equity securities including our common stock are prohibited until all accrued and unpaid dividends
are paid onsuch preferred stock subject to certain limited exceptions

The limitations an executive compensation imposed through our participation in the Capital Purchase Program may restrict our
ability to attract retain arni motivate key employees which could adversely affect our operations

As part of our participation in the Program we agreed to be bound by certain executive compensation restrictions including
limitations on severance payments and the clawback ofany bonus and incentive compensation that were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other materially inaccurate performance metric criteria Subsequent to the issuance of the

preferred shares the ARRA was enacted which provides more stringent limitations on severance pay and the payment of bonuses To
the extent that any of these compensation restrictions do not permit us to provide comprehensive compensation package to our key
employees that is competitive in our market area we may have difficulty in attracting retaining and motivating our key employees
which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations

The terms governing the issuance of the preftrred shares to the Treasury may be changed the effect of which may have an
adverse effect on our operations

The terms ofthe Letter Agreement which we entered into with the Treasury provides that the Treasury may unilaterally

amend any provision of the Letter Agreement to the extent required to comply with any changes in applicable federal law that may
occur in the future We have no assurances that changes in the terms of the transaction will not occur in the future Such changes may
place restrictions on our business or results of operations which may adversely affect the market price of our common stock

Liquidity is essential to our businesses and we rely on external sources to finance significant portion of our operations

Liquidity is essential to our businesses Our liquidity could be substantially affected in negative fashion by an inability to

raise funding in the debt capital markets or the equity capital markets or an inability to access the secured lending markets Factors
that we cannot control such as disruption of the financial markets or negative views about the financial services industry generally
could impair our abilityto raise funding In addition our ability to raise funding could be impaired if lenders develop negative

perception of our financial prospects Such negative perceptions could be developed if we suffer decline in the level of our business

activity or regulatory authorities take significant action against us among other reasons If we are unable to raise funding using the
methods described above we would likely need to finance or liquidate unencumbered assets to meet maturing liabilities We may be
unable to sell some of our assets or we may have to sell assets at discount from market value either of which could adversely affect

our results of operations and financial condition.

Fluctuations in interest rates could reduce our profitability and affect the value of our assets

Like other financial institutions our earnings and cash flows are subject to interest rate risk Our primary source of income is

net interest income which is the difference between interest earned on loans and investments and the interest paid on deposits and

borrowings We expect that we will periodically experience imbalances in the interest rate sensitivities of our assets and liabilities and
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the relationships of various interest rates to each other Over any defined period of time our interest-earning assets may be more

sensitive to changes in market interest rates than our interest-bearing liabilities or vice versa In addition the individual market

interest rates underlying our loan and deposit products e.g prime versus competitive market deposit rates may not change to the

same degree over given time period In any event if market interest rates should move contrary to our position our earnings may be

negatively affected Also the volume of nonperforming assets will negatively impact average yields if and as it increases In

addition loan volume and quality and deposit volume and mix can be affected by market interest rates Changes in levels of market

interest rates including the current rate environment could materially adversely affect our net interest spread asset quality

origination volume and overall profitability Income could also be adversely affected if the interest rates paid on deposits and other

borrowings increase quicker than the interest rates received on loans and other investments during periods of rising interest rates

We principally manage interest rate risk by managing our volume and the mix of our earning assets and funding liabilities In

changing interest rate environment we may not be able to manage this risk effectively If we are unable to manage interest rate risk

effectively our business financial condition and results of operations
could be materially harmed

Changes in the level of interest rates also may negatively affect our ability to originate construction commercial and

residential real estate loans the value of our assets and our ability to realize gains from the sale of our assets all of which ultimately

affect our earnings

We operate in highly competitive industry and market area

We face substantial competition in all areas of our operations from variety of different competitors many of which are

larger and have more financial resources Such competitors primarily include national regional and community banks within the

markets in which we operate Additionally various out-of-state banks continue to enter the market area in which we currently

operate We also face competition from many other types of financial institutions including without limitation savings and loans

credit unions finance companies brokerage firms insurance companies and other financial intermediaries Many of our competitors

have fewer regulatory
constraints and may have lower cost structures Additionally due to their size many competitors may be able

to achieve economies of scale and as result may offer broader range of products
and services as well as better pricing for those

products and services weakening in our competitive position could adversely affect our growth and profitability which in turn

could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Financial services companies depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions we may rely on information furnished by or on behalf of

customers and counterparties including financial statements credit reports and other financial information We may also rely on

representations
of those customers counterparties or other third parties such as independent auditors as to the accuracy and

completeness of that information Reliance on inaccurate or misleading financial statements credit reports or other financial

information could have material adverse impact on our business and in turn our financial condition and results of operations

We are subject to extensive governmental regulation

We are subject to extensive supervision and regulation by Federal and state governmental agencies including the FRB the

GDBF and the FDIC Current and future legislation regulations and government policy could adversely affect the Company and the

financial institution industry as whole including the cost of doing business Although the impact of such legislation regulations

and policies cannot be predicted future changes may alter the structure of and competitive relationships among financial institutions

and the cost of doing business which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Our growth may require us to raise additional capital in the future but that capital may not be available when it is needed

We are required by Federal regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations We

anticipate our capital resources will satisfy our capital requirements for the foreseeable future We may at some point however need

to raise additional capital to support our growth If we raise capital through the issuance of additional shares of our common stock or

other securities it would dilute the ownership interest of our current shareholders and may dilute the per share book value of our

common stock New investors may also have rights preferences and privileges senior to our current shareholders which may

adversely impact our current shareholders

Our ability to raise additional capital if needed will depend on conditions in the capital markets at that time which are

outside our control and on our financial performance Accordingly we cannot assure that we will have the ability to raise additional

capital if needed on terms acceptable to us If we cannot raise additional capital when needed our ability to further expand our

operations through internal growth or acquisitions could be materially impaired which could have material adverse effect on our

financial condition and results of operations
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The building of market share through our branching strategy could cause our expenses to increase faster than revenues

We intend to continue to build market share in the greater Atlanta metropolitan area through our branching strategy While

we have no commitments to branch during 2011 there are branÆh locations under consideration and others may become available

There are considerable costs involved in opening branches and new branches generally require period of time to generate sufficient

revenues to offset their costs especially in areas in which we do not have an established presence

Accordingly any flew branch can be expected to negatively impact our earnings for some period of time until the branch

reaches certain economies of scale Our expenses could be further increased if we encounter delays in the opening of new branches

Finally we have assurance that new branches will be successful even after they have been established

Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business and dilute shareholder value

From time to time we may evaluate merger and acquisition opportunities and conduct due diligence activities related to

possible transactions with other financial institutions There is no assurance that any acquisitions will occur in the future However if

we do acquire other banks businesses or branches such acquisitions would involve various risks including the following

potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of the target company

exposure to potential asset quality issues of the target company

difficulty and
expense of integrating the operations and personnel of the target company

potential disruption to our business

potential diversion of managements time and attention

the possible loss of key employees and customers of the target company

difficulty in estimating the value of the target company and

potential changes in banking or tax laws or regulations that may affect the target company

If we were to pay for acquisitions with shares our common stock some dilution of our tangible book value and net income

per common share may occur since acquisitions may involve the payment of premium over book and market values Furthermore
failure to realize the expected benefits of an acquisition such as anticipated revenue increases cost savings or increased geographic

or product presence could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

We are subject to risks related to FDIC-assisted transactions

The ultimate success of our past FDIC-assisted transaction and any FDIC-assisted transactions in which we may participate

in the future will depend on number of factors including our ability

to fully integrate the branches acquired into the Banks operations

to limit the outflow of deposits held by our new customers in the acquired branches and to retain and manage interest-earning

assets acquired in FDIC-assisted transactions

to generate new interest-earning assets in the geographic areas previously served by the acquired banks

to effectively compete in new markets in which we did not previously have presence

to control the incremental noninterest expense from the acquired branches in manner that enables us to maintain favorable

overall efficiency ratio

to retain and attract the appropriate personnel to staff the acquired branches

to earn acceptable levels of interest and noninterest income including fee income from the acquired branches and

to reasonably estimate cash flows for acquired loans to mitigate exposure greater than estimated losses at the time of acquisition

As with any acquisition invoiving financial institution including FDIC-assisted transactions there may be higher than

average levels of service disruptions that would cause inconveniences to our new customers or potentially increase the effectiveness of

competing financial institutions in attracting our customers Integration efforts will also likely divert managements attention and

resources We may be unable to integrate acquired branches successfully and the integration process could result in the loss of key

employees the disruption of ongoing business or inconsistencies in standards controls procedures and policies that adversely affect

our ability to maintain relationships with clients customers depositors and employees or to achieve the anticipated benefits of the

FDIC-assisted transactions We may also encojinter unexpected difficulties or costs during the integration that could adversely affect

our earnings and financial condition Additionally we may be unable to achieve results in the future similar to those achieved by our

existing banking business to compete effectively in the market areas previously served by the acquired branches or to manage
effectively any growth resulting from FDIC-assisted transactions
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Our ability to continue to receive the benefits of our loss sharearrangements with the FDIC is conditioned upon our

compliance with certain requirements under the agreements

We arethe beneficiary of loss share agreement with the FDIC that calls for the FDIC to fund portion of our losses on

majority of the assets we acquired in connection with our recent FDIC-assisted transaction To recover portion of our losses and

retain the loss share protection we must comply with certain requirements imposed by the agreement The requirements of the

agreement relate primarily to our administration of the assets covered by the agreement as well as our obtaining the consent of the

FDIC to engage
in certain corporate transactions that may be deemed under the agreements to constitute transfer of the loss share

benefits When the consent of the FDIC is required under the loss share agreement the FDIC may withhold its consent or may

condition its consent on terms that we do not find acceptable If the FDIC does not grant its consent to transaction we would like to

pursue or conditions its consent on terms that we do not find acceptable we may be unable to engage in corporate transaction that

might otherwise benefit our shareholders or we may elect to pursue
such transaction without obtaining the FDICs consent which

could result in termination of our loss share agreement with the FDIC

Changes in national and local economic conditions could lead to higher loan charge-offs in connection with the acqufred bank

and the loss sharing agreement with the FDIC may not cover all of those charge-offs

In connection with the acquisition of the acquired bank we acquired portfolio of loans Although we have marked down

the loan portfolio we have acquired the non-impaired loans we acquired may become impaired or may further deteriorate in value

resulting in additional charge-offs to the loan portfolio The fluctuations in national regional and local economic conditions

including those related to local residential conimercial real estate and construction markets may increase the level of charge-offs that

we make to our loan portfolio and consequently reduce our capital The fluctuations are not predictable cannot be controlled and may

have material adverse impact on our operations and financial condition even if Other favorable events occur

Our loss sharing arrangements with the FDIC will not cover all of our losses on loans we acquired

Although we have entered into loss share agreement with the FDIC that provides that the FDIC will bear significant

portion of losses related to specificd loan portfolios that we acquired we are not protected for all losses resulting from charge-offs

with respect to those specified loan portfolios Additionally the loss sharing agreements have limited terms Therefore the FDIC will

not reimburse.us for any charge-off or related losses that we experience after the term of the loss share agreement and any such

charge-offs would negatively impact our net income Moreover the loss share provisions in the loss share agreement may be

administered improperly or the FDIC may interpret those provisions in way different that we do In any of those events our losses

could increase

Our controls and procedures may fail or be circumvented

Management regularly reviews and updates our internal controls disclosure controls and procedures and corporate

governance policies and procedures Any system of controls however well designed and operated is based in part on certain

assumptions and can provide only reasonable not absolute assurances that the objectives of the system are met Any failure or

circumvention of our cohtrols and procedures or failure to comply with regulations related to controls and procedures ould have

material adverse effect on our business results of operations and financial condition

We may not be able to attract and retain skilled people

Our success depends in large part on our ability to attract and retain key people Competition for the best people in most

activities that we engage in can be intense and we may not be able to hire people or to retain them The unexpected loss of services of

one or more of our key personnel could have material adverse impact on our business because of their skills knowledge of our

market years
of industry experience and the difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel

Our information systems may experience an interruption or breach in security

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business Any failure interruption or breach in

security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in our customer relationship management general ledger deposit loan

and other systems While we have policies and procedures designed to prevent or limit the effect of the failure interruption or

security breach of our information systems there can be no assurance that any such failures interruptions or security breaches will nol

occur or if they do occur that they will be adequately addressed. The occurrence of any failures interruptions or security breaches of

our inforthation systems could damage our reputation result in loss of customer business subject us to additional regulatoty

scrutiny or expose us to civil litigation and possible financial liability any of which could have material adverse effect on our

financial condition ahd results of operations
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We are subject to claims and litigation

From time to time customers and others make claims and take legal action pertaining to the Companys performance of our

responsibilities Whether customer claims and legal action related to the Companys performance of our responsibilities are founded

or unfounded or if such claims and legal actions are not resolved ma manner favorable to the Company they may result in significant

financial liability andlor adversely affect the market perception of the Company and our products and services as well as impact
customer demand for those products and services Any financial liability or reputation damage could have material adverse effect on
our business which in turn could have material adverse effect on our financial uondition and results of operations

Risks Related to our Common Stock

Our stack price can be volatile

Stock price volatility may make it more difficult for shareholders to resell common stock when they want and at prices they
find attractive Our stock price can fluctuate significantly in

response to variety of factors including among other things

news reports relating to trends concerns and other issues in the financial services industry

actual or anticipated variations in quarterly results of operations

recommendations by securities analysts

operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors4eem comparable to us

perceptions in the marketplace regarding the Company and/or our competitors

significant acquisitions or business combinations strategic partnerships joint ventures or capital commitments by or involving the

Company or our competitors

changes in government laws and regulation and

geopolitical conditions such as acts or threats ofterrorismor military conflicts

General market fluctuations industry factors and general economic and political conditions and events such as economic
slowdowns or recessions interest rate changes or credit loss trends could also cause our stock price to decrease regardless of

operating results

Our common stock trading volume is less than that of othei larger financial services companies

Although our common stock is listed for trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market the trading volume in our common
stock is less than that of larger financial services companies public trading market having the desired characteristics of depth

liquidity and orderliness depends on the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of our common stock at any given

time This presence depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic and market conditions over which we have

no control Given the lower trading volume of our common stock significant sales of our common stock or the expectation of these

sales could cause our stock price to fall

The exercise of the Warrant by the Treasury would dilute existing shareholders ownership interest and may make it more

difficult for us to take certain actions that may be in the best interest of shareholders

rn addition to the issuance of the Preferred Shares we also granted to the Treasury the Warrant to purchase 2266458 shares

of common stock at price of $3.19 per share If the Treasury exercises the entire Warrant it would result in significant dilution to

the ownership interest of our existing shareholders and dilute the earnings per share value of our common stock Further if the

Treasury exercises the entire Warrant it will become the second largest shareholder of Fidelity The Treasury has agreed that it will

not exercise voting power with regard to the shares that it acquires by exercising the Warrant However Treasurys abstention from

voting may make it more difficult for us to obtain shareholder approval for those matters that require majority of total shares

outstanding such as business combination involving Fidelity

Provisions in our Bylaws and our Tax Benefits Preservation Plan may make it more djfficult for another party to obtain controL

In November 2010 the Board of Directors of the Company adopted an amendment to the bylaws of the Company electing

for the provisions of Article 1A of the Georgia Business Corporation Code the Business Combination Statute to apply to the

Company and also adopted Tax Benefits Preservation Plan The bylaw amendment and Tax Benefits Preservation Plan could make
it more difficult for third party to acquire control of us or could have the effect of discouraging third party from attempting to

acquire contrdl of us These provisions could make it more difficult for third party to acquire us even if an acquisition might be at

price attractive to some of our shareholders

21



Our information systems may experience security breach computer virus or disruption of service

Weprovide our customers the ability to bank online The secure transmission of confidential infonnation over the Internet is

critical element of online banking While we use qualified third party vendors to test and audit our network our network could

become vulnerable to unauthorized access computer viruses phishing schemes and other security problems The Bank may be

required to spend significant capital and other resources to protect against the threat of security breaches and computer yiruses or to

alleviate problems caused by security breaches or viruses To the extent that our activities or the activities ofourcustomers involve

the storage and transmissionof confidential information security breaches and viruses could expose us or the Bank to claims

litigation and other possible liabilities Any inability to prevent security breaches or computer viruses could also cause existing

customers to lose confidence in the Banks systems and could adversely affect its reputation and its ability to generate deposits Any

failures interruptions or security breaches could result in damage to our reputation loss of customer business increased regulatory

scrutiny or possible exposure to financial liability any of which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and

results of operations

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

Our principal executive offices consist of 19175 square feet of leased space in Atlanta Georgia Our si4port operations are

principally
conducted from 65897 square

feet of leased space located at Corporate Square AtlantaGeorgia The Bank has 27

branch offices located in Fulton DeKalb Cobb Clayton Gwinnett Rockdale Coweta Henry Morgan Greene Barrow Counties

Georgia and Duval County Florida of which 22 are owned and are leased The Company leases mortgage origination offices in

Atlanta Georgia Aipharetta Georgia Duluth Georgia Greensboro Georgia Athens Georgia Gainesville Georgia Sandy Springs

Georgia Sterling Virginia and Colorado Springs Colorado The Company leases SBA loan production office in Covington

Georgia and an off-site storage space
in Atlanta Georgia

Item Legal Proceedings

We are party to claims and lawsuits arising in the course of normal business activities Although the ultimate outcome of

all claims and lawsuits outstanding as of December 31 2011 camlot be ascertained at this time it is the opinion of management that

these matters when resolved will not have material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PARf II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity RelatedStockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Fidelitys common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol LION The following table sets

forth the high and low closing sale prices adjusted for stock dividends for the common stock for the calendar quarters indicated as

published by the NASDAQ stock market

Market Price Common Stock

2011 20101

High Low Hih Low

Fourth Quarter
$6.84 $5.66 $7.I $5.94

ThirdQuarter
7.14 5.95 7.24 5.84

Second Quarter
831 6.15 8.91 552

First Quarter
8.66 6.70 5.76 3.17

Adjusted for stock dividends

As of March 2011 there were approximately 6Q0 shardhoders of record In addition shares of approximately 1750

beneficial owners of Fidelitys common stock were held by brokers dealers and their nominees
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Dividends

For 2011 the Company did declare cash dividend of $0.01 in the third and fourth quarters The Company declared

quarterly stock dividend of one share for every 200 shares owned in the first and second quarters of 2011 In January 2012 the

Company declared one stock dividend for
every 60 shares owned Futuru dividends will require quarterly review of current and

projected earnings for the remainder of 2012 in relation to capital requirements prior to the determination of the dividend and be

subject to regulatory restrictions under applicable law

The following schedule summarizes cash dividends declared and paid per share of common stock for the last three years

Dividend

2011 2010 2009

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter 0.01

Fourth Quarter 0.01

For the Year $0.02

Pursuant to the terms of the Letter Agreement entered into with the Treasury under the Program as long as the Preferred

Shares are outstanding dividend payments are prohibited until all accrued and unpaid dividends are paid onsuch preferred stock

subject to certain limited exceptions This restriction will terminate on the date on which the Preferred Shares have been redeemed in

whole or the Treasury has transferred all of the Preferred Shares to third parties

See Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements in Item for further discussion of the restrictions on our ability to pay

Share Repurchases

Fidelity did not repurchase any securities during the fourth quarter of 2011

Sale of Unregistered Securities

Fidelity has not sold any unregistered securities during the period

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation lans

The following table presents information as of December 31 2011 with respect to shares of common stock of Fidelity that

may be issued under equity compensation plans The equity compensation plans of Fidelity consist of the stock options restricted

stock grants and other awards as defined in the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan and the 401k tax qualified savings plan

Number of Securities

Remaining Available for

Future Issuance Under

Equity Compensation Plans

Excluding Securities

P------iiCi

dividends

Equity Compensation

Shareho1ders2

Number of Securities

to be Issued upon Weighted Average

Exercise of Exercise Price of

Outstr

Not Approved by

2006 Equity Incentive Plan

Excludes shares issued under the 401k Plan

370905 $5.30 1705459
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Shareholder Return Performance Graph

The foiloing graph compares the percentage ange in the cumulative five-year shareholder return on Fidelitys Common

Stock traded on the NASDAQ National Market under the sythbol LION with the cumulative total return on the NASDAQ

Composite Index and the SNL NASDAQ Bank Index

The graph assumes that the value invested in the Common Stock of Fidelity and in each of the two indices was $100 on

December 31 2006 and all dividends were reinvested

12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10

Fidelity Southern Corporation NASDAQ Composite SNL Bank NASDAQJ

Period Ending December 31

Total Return Performance
125

1001

12/31/06
12/31/11

Index 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Fidelity Southern Corporation $IOG.O0 $51.29 $20.44 $20.S0 $41.14 3630

NASDAQComposite 100.00 I1066 66.42 96.54 114.06 113.16

10O 71 57 425 547 4t2
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table contains selected consolidated financial data This information should be read in conjunction with

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements

and notes included in this report

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Dollars in thousands ercept per share data

Jætest iiçme .1 97O0
Interest expense 22849

Net ietecf ii6bii /O851

Provision for loan losses 20325

Noniuterest inconie4 including securities gains 51439

Securities gains net 1078

Ioainterest expense 8M22
Net income loss 11398

Per Share Data

Net iqponi1qs
Basic earnings loss

il 0.66

ileted4Ls 4i9
Book valuŁ 9.06

Divideni1ilØjined

$95284
30563

641
17125

42909

2291

754973

10133

0.63

8.59

97483
46009

51574

28800

33978

5308

64562

3855

0.69

8.05

i- t.s_

-%

104954 113462

57636 66682

464L8 46780

36550 8500

17636 17911

1306

48839 47203

12236 6634

1.22 0.66

8.97 9.85

1I6
50.61%Dividend

Profitability Ratios

Return on average assets 0.55% 0.54% 0.21 0.70% 0.41%

Return on average shareholders equity 7.43 7.50 2.91 12.43 6.84

Netinterestmargin 3.68 3.66 2.95 2.84 3.04

Asset Quality Ratios

Net charge-offs to average loans 1.38% 1.44% 2.44% 1.36% 0.45%

Net charge-ofis to average loans excluding FDIC-assisted

transactions 1.39 1.44 2.44 1.36 .45

Allowance to period-end loans 1.72 2.00 2.33 2.43 1.19

Allowance to period end lÆans excluding FDIC-assisted

transactions 1.81

Nonperforming assets to total loans ORE and repos 5.51 6.01 6.43 7.89 1.65

Nonperforming assets to total loans ORE and repos

excluding FD1C-assisted transactions 4.87 6.01 6.43 7.89 1.65

Allowance to nonperfornung loans ORE and repos 0.28x 0.29x O.32x 0.29x 0.71

Allowance to nonperforming loans ORE and repos

excluding FDK-assisted transactions 0.34x 0.29x 0.32x 0.29x 0.71

Liquidity Ratios

Total loans to total deposits 93.92% 100.00% 91.64% 100.01% 103.30%

Loans to total deposits 86.77 86.99 83.18 96.14 98.77

Average total loans to average earning assets 83.35 83.34 82.46 89.81 90.34

9.83%

13.70

7.43

9i6% 94Q3 lO04%
Capital Ratios

Leverage

Risk-based capital

Tied

Total

Avetage ityt$iae tset
Balance Sheet Data At End of Period

Assets

Earning assets

ThtalIotis

Total deposits

Long-term debt

Shareholders equity

Daily Avge
Assets

Eanngassets

Total loans

TotaHeóh
Long-term debt

Shareholders equity

1087

13.28

2234795
2039501

1871516

12D027

167280

$1945300

1797398

Ic613270

1613248

142527

140511

L25
13.98

$1851520

1744134

421090

1550725

117527

129685

$1858874

1451240

-15425$

133623

132613

Adjustedfor stock dividends

WI
13.67

5.66

$1763113

1635722

1443862

1443682

115027

136604

$1738494

148 1066

-144545

111475

98461

8.43

11.54

$1686484

1597855

1405625

92527

99963

$1635520

l55602

1403461

1374753

90366

97059

--

$2063169 $1879657

1611825 1480618

125828 129102

153312 135132
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Item Managements Discussion andAnalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following management discussion and analysis addresses important factors affecting the results of operations and

financial condition of FSC and its subsidiaries for the periods indicated The consolidated financial statements and accompanying

notes should be read in conjunction with this review

FDIC-Assisted Transactions

In October 2011 we acquired Decatur First Bank with approximately $80 million in loans and $17- million in deposits in

FDIC-assisted transaction resulting in gain of approximately $1.5 million During the first quarter of 2012 we completed the

integration of this purchase

Overview

Our profitability as with most financial institutions is significantly dependent upon net interest income which is the

difference between interest received on interest-earning assets such as loans and securities and the interest paid on interest-bearing

liabilities principally deposits and borrowings During period of economic slowdown the lack of interest income from

nonperforming assets and an additional provision for loan losses can greatly reduce our profitability Results of operations are also

affected by noninterest income such as service charges on deposit accounts and fees on other services income from indirect

automobile and SBA lending activities mortgage banking brokerage activities and bank owned life insurance as well as noninterest

expenses such as salaries and employee benefits occupancy furniture and equipment professional and other services and other

expenses including income taxes

Economic conditions competition and the monetary and fiscalpolicies of the Federal government significantly affect

financial institutions Poor performance of subprime loans initiated the credit crisis that began in the summer of 2007 followed by

substantial declines in residential home sales and prices the slowing of the national economy and by serious lack of liquidity By

the end of 2007 the credit turmoil migrated to consumer lending as demonstrated by the increase in credit card delinquencies and

automobile repossessions in all regions of the U.S including our southeast markets In 2008 the financial crisis worsened and led to

crisis of confidence in the financial sector as result of concerns about the capital base and viability of certain financial institutions

and the Treasury had to step in with capital infusions for many financial institutions During this period interbank lending and

commercial paper borrowing fell sharply precipitating credit freeze for both institutioual and individual borrowers Since the

second half of 2009 liquidity in the secondary markets has steadily improved The national unemployment rate which increased as

high as 10.1% in 2009 continued to decrease to 8.5% in December 2011 In 2011 the Federal Reserve kept short-term interest rates

at historic lows in response to the continuing national economic downturn

The recession had major impact on the Atlanta and Florida economies particularly in the residential construction and

development markets Many builders and building related businesses have suffered financially due to the decreasing home prices

lack of demand for houses and the oversupply of houses and residential lots In 2010 we began to see some moderation in the real

estate downturn as both delinquencies and foreclosures began to slow In 2011 while nonperforming assets generally trended lower

the overall level remained elevated over historical levels Net charge-oifs increased 7.0% to $20.5 million during 2011 and our

provision for loan losses increased 18.7% to $20.3 million Our allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans.outstanding

decreased to 1.72% at December 31 2011 from 2.00% at the end of 2010 Excluding the loans acquired in the 2011 FDIC-assisted

transaction of Decatur First Bank the percentage of loans increased to 1.81%

Since our inception in 1974 we have pursued managed profitable growth through providing quality financial services

During 2011 as the economic crisis began to recede the Bank was able to organically grow its consumer installment mortgage and

commercial loan portfolios The loan portfolio is well diversified among consumer business and real estate

Net income for 2011 was $11.4 million compared to $10.1 million in 2010 Net income per basic and diluted share was

$0.66 and $0.59 respectively for 2011 compared to net income per basic and diluted share of $0.63 and $0.56 respectively in 2010

The increase of $6.1 million or 9.5% in net interest income was key factor impacting our improved financial condition and results of

operations for 2011

The Banks franchise spans eleven Counties in the metropolitan Atlanta market and one branch office in Jacksonville

Florida Our lending activities and the total of our nonperforming assets are significantly influenced by the local economic

environments in Atlanta and Jacksonville Our net interest margin is affected by prevailing interest rates nonperforming assets and

competition among fmancial institutions for loans and deposits Atlantas and to lesser extent Jacksonvilles economies continue to

be negatively impacted by the weak real estate market Management expects the economy to gradually continue to improve during

2012 The Bank continues to attract new customer relationships and talented and experienced bankers
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Our overall focus is on building shareholder value Our mission is to continue growth improve earnings and increase

shareholder value to treat customers employees community and shareholders according to the Golden Rule and to operate within

culture of strong internal controls The strong focus in 2012 will be on credit quality expense controls and quality loan growth

Critical Accounting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies are in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and conform to

general practices within the financial services industry Our financial position and results of operations are affected by managements

application of accounting policies including estimates assumptions and judgments made to arrive at the
carrying

value of assets and

liabilities and amounts reported for revenues expenses and related disclosures Different assumptions in the application of these

policies or conditions significantly different from certain assumptions could result in material changes in our consolidated financial

position or consolidated results of operations Our accounting policies are fundamental to understanding our consolidated financial

position and consolidated results of operations Our significant accounting policies are discussed in detail in Note in the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements Significant accounting policies have been periodically discussed and reviewed with and

approved by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors

The following is summary of our more critical significant accounting policies that are highly dependent On estimates

assumptions and judgments

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance forloan losses is established and maintained through provisions charged to operations Such provisions are

based on managements evaluation of the loan portfolio including loan portfolio concentrations current economic conditions the

economic outlook past loan loss experience adequacy of underlying collateral and such other factors which in managements

judgment deserve consideration in estimating loan losses Loans are charged off when in the opinion of management such loans are

deemed to be uncollectible Subsequent recoveries are added to the allowance

formal review of the allowance for loan losses is prepared at least monthly to assess the probable credit risk inherent in the

loan portfolio and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses For purposes of the monthly management review the

loan portfolio is separated by loan type and each loan type is treated as homogeneous pool In accordance with the Interagency

Policy Statement on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses the level of allowance required for each loan type is determined based

upon historical charge-off experience and current-economic trends In addition to the homogenous pools of loans every commercial

commercial real estate SBA and construction loan is assigned risk rating using established credit policy guidelines All

nonperforming commercial commercial real estate SBA and construction loans and loans deemed to have greater than normal risk

characteristics are reviewed monthly by Credit Review to determine the level of additional allowance for loan losses if any required

to be specifically assigned to these loans

Capitalized Servicing Assets and Ltabilities

We sell indirect automobile loan pools residential mortgages and SBA loans with servicing retained When the contractually

specific servicing fees on loans sold servicing retained are expected to be more than adequate compensation to servicer for

performing the servicing capitalized servicing asset is recognized When the expected costs to servicer for performing loan

servicing are not expected to adequately compensate servicer capitalized servicing liability is recognized Servicing assets and

servicing liabilities are amortized over the expected lives of the serviced loans utilizing the interest method Management makes

certain estimates and assumptions related to costs to service varying types of loans andpools of loans the projected lives of loans and

pools of loans sold servicing retained and discount factors used in calculating the present values of servicing fees projected to be

received

No less frequently than quarterly management reviews the status of all loans and pools of loans sold with related capitalized

servicing assets to determine if there is any impairment to those assets due to such factors as earlier than estimated repayments or

significant prepayments Any impairment identified in these assets will result in reductions in their carrying values and

corresponding increase in operating expenses

Loan Related Revenue Recognition

Loans are reported at principal amounts outstanding-net of deferred fees andcosts Interest income and ancillary fees from

loans are primary source of revenue Interest income is recognized in manner that results in level yield on principal amounts

outstanding Rate relatedloan fee income loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct origination costs are deferred and

amortized as an adjustment of the yield over the contractual lives of the related loans taking into consideration assumed prepayments

The accrual of interest is discontinued when in managements judgment it is determined that the collectability of interest or principal

is doubtful
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For commercial SBA construction and real estate loans the accrual of interest is discontinued and the loan categorized as

nonaccrual when in managements opinion due to deterioration in the financial position or operations of the borrower the full

repaythent of principal and interest is not expected or principal or interest has been in default for period of 90 days or more unless

the obligation is both well secured and in the
process

of collection Commercial SBA construction and real estate secured loans may
be returned to accrual status when management expects to collect all principal and interest and the loan has been brought current

Interest received on well collateralized nonaccrual loans is recognized on the cash basis If the commercial SBA construction or real

estate secured loan is not well collateralized payments are applied to reduee principal

Consumer loans are placed on nonaccrual upon becoming 90 days past due or sooner if in the opinion of management the

full repayment of principal and interest is not expected On consumer loans any payment received on loan on which the accrual of

interest has been suspended is applied to reduce principal

When loan is placed on nonaccrual interest accrued during the current accounting period is reversed and interest accrued in

priorperiods if significant is charged off and adjustments to principal are made if the collateral related to the loan is deficient

Income Taxes

We file consolidated Federal income tax return as well as tax returns in several states Income taxes are accounted for in

accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC 740-10-25 formerly

known as SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes Under the liability method deferred tax assets and liabilities are

recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing

assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to

apply to taxable income in the years
in which those temporary differences are recovered or settled Deferred tax assets.are reviewed

annually to assess the probability of realization of benefits in future periods or whether valuation allowances are apprnpriate The

effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment

date Management has reviewed all evidence both positive and negative and concluded that valuation allowance against the

deferred tax asset is not needed at December 31 2011 The calculation of the income tax provision is complex and requires the use of

judgments and estimates in its determination

Fair Value

The primary financial instruments that the Company carries at fair value include investment securities interest rate lock

commitments IRLCs derivative instruments and residential mortgage loans held-for-sale Classification in the fair value

hierarchy of financial instruments is based on the criteria set forth in FASB ASC 820 10-35

Fair value is an exit price representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants The guidance establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation

techniques used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities level measurements and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs level measurements financial

instruments level within the hierarchy is based on the lowestlevel of input that is significant to.the fair value measurement

Investment Securities classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2inputs For these securities

the Company obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing service The fair value measurements consider observable

data that may include dealer quotes market spreads cash flows the U.S treasury yield curve live trading levels trade execution data

market consensus prepayment speeds credit information and the bonds terms and conditions among other things The investments

in the Companys portfolio are generally not quoted on an exchange but are actively traded in the secondary institutional markets

The Company classifies IRLCs on residential mortgage loans which are derivatives under SEAS No 133 now codified in

ASC 815-10-15 ona gross
basis within other liabilities or other assets The fair value of these commitments while based on interest

rates observable in the.market is highly dependent on the ultimate closing of the loans These pull-through rates are based on both

the Companys historical data and the current interest rate environment and reflect the Companys best estimate of the likelihood that

commitment will ultimately result in closed loan As result of the adoption of SAB No 109 the loan servicing value is also

included in the fair value of IRLCs

Derivative instruments are primarily transacted in the secondary mortgage and institutional dealer markets and priced with

observable market assumptions at mid-market.valuation point with appropriate valuation adjustments for liquidity and credit risk

For purposes of valuation adjustments to its derivative positions under EASB.ASC 820-10-35 the Company has evaluated liquidity

premiums that may be demanded by market participants as well as the credit risk of its counterparties and its own credit

The credit risk associated with the underlying cash flows of instruments carried at fair value was consideration in

estimating the fair value of certain financial instruments Credit risk was considered in the valuation through variety of inputs as
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applicable including the actual default and loss severity of the collateral and level of subordil3ation The assumptions used to

estimate credit risk applied relevant information that market participant would likely use in valuing an instrument

The fair value of residential mortgage loans held-for-sale is based onwhat secondary markets are currently offering for

portfolios with similarcharacteristics As such the Companyclassifies these loans as Level

SBA and indirect loans heldfor-sale are measured at the lower of cost or fair value Fair value is based on recent trades for

similar loan pools as well as offering prices for similar assets provided by buyers in the secondary market If the cost of loan is

determined to be less than the fair value of similarloans the impairment is recorded by the establishment of reserve to reduce the

value of the loan

Impairedloans are evaluated and valued at the time the loan is identified as impaired at the lower of cost or fairvalue Fair

value is measured based on the value of the collateral securing these loans and is classified as Level in the fair value hierarchy

Collateral may include real estate or business assets including equipment inventory and accounts receivable The value of real estate

collateral is determined based on an appraisal by qualified licensed appraisers hired by the Company If significant the value of

business equipment is based on an appraisal by qualified licensed appraisers hired by the Company otherwise the equipments net

book value on the business financial statementsis the basis for the value of business equipment Inventory and accounts receivable

collateral are valued basedon independent field examiner review or aging reports Appraised and reported values may be discounted

based on managements historical knowledge changes in market conditions from the time of the valuation and managements

expertise and knowledge of the client and clients business Impaired loans are evaluated on at least quarterly basis for additional

impairment and adjusted accordingly

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets Subsequently foreclosed assets

are carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value less estimated selling costs Fair value is based upon independent market prices

appraised values of the collateral or managements estimation of the value of the collateral When the fair value of the collateral is

based on an observable market price or current appraised value the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level

When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the

appraised value and there is no observable market price the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level Appraised

and reported values may be discounted based on managements historical knowledge changes in market conditions from the time of

the valuation and managements expertise and knowledge of the client and clients business

Acquisition Accounting

Generally accepted accounting principles require the use of fairvalues in determining the carrying values of certain assets

and liabilities acquired in business combination as well as for specific disclosures We recorded assets purchased and liabilities

assumed in our FDIC-assisted acquisition at their fair values The fair value of loan portfolio and foreclosed property acquired in

business combination requires greater levels of management estimates and judgment than the remainder of assets or assumed

liabilities The credit risks inherent and evidenced in the FDIC-assisted transaction resulted in substantially all loans purchased in the

transaction with credit discount On the date of acquisition when the loans have evidence of credit deterioration since their

origination and we believe it is probable that we will not collect all contractually required principal and interest payments we refer

to the difference between contractually required payments and the cash flows expected to be collected as the non-accretable discount

We must estimate expected cash flows at each reporting date Subsequent decreases to the expected cash flows will generally result in

provision for lóanlosses Subsequent increases in cash flows result in reversal of the provision for loan losses to the extent of prior

charges and adjusted accretable discount which will have positive effect on interest income

Because we record loans acquired in connection with FDIC-assisted acquisitions at fair value we record no allowance for

loan losses related to the acquired covered loans on the acquisition date given that the fair value of the loans acquired incorporates

assumptions regarding credit risk We record acquired loans at fair value in accordance with the fair value methodology exclusive of

the loss share agreements with the FDIC These fair value estimates associated with the loans include estimates related to expected

prepaymetits and the aiiount aitd timing expected principal interest and other cash flows We continue to measure the loss share

agreements on the same basis as the related covered loans Because the acquired covered loans are subject to the accounting

prescribed by FASB ASC Topic 310 subsequent changes to the basis of the loss share agreements also follow that model

Deterioration in the credit quality of the loans recorded as an adjustment to the allowance for loan losses would immediately increase

the basis of the loss share agreements with the offset recorded through the consolidated statements of operations. Increases in the

credit quality or cash flows of loans reflected as an adjustment to the discount and acreted into income over the remaining life of the

loans decrease the basis of the loss share agreements That decrease is accreted iflto income over either the same period or the life of

the loss share agreements whichever is shorter Loss assumptions used in the basis of the covered loans are consistent with the loss

assumptions used to measure the FDIC receivable Fair value accounting incorporates into the fair value of the FDIC receivable an

element of the time value of money which is accreted back into income over the life of the loss share agreements
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FDIC Receivable for Loss Share Agreements

The portion of our loan and other real estate assets are covered under loss share agreement with the FDIC in which the

FDIC has agreed to reimburse us for 80% of all losses incurred in connection with those assets We estimated the amount that we will

receive from the FDIC under the loss share agreements that will result from losses incurred as we dispose of coveredloans and other

real estate assets and we recorded the estimate as receivable from the FDIC The FDIC receivable for loss share agreements is

measured separately from the related covered assets because it is not contractually embedded in the assets and is not transferable if we
sell the assets We estimated the fair value of the FDIC receivableusing the present value of cash flows related to the loss share

agreements based on the expected reimbursements for losses and the applicable loss share percentages We will review and update the

fair value of the FDIC receivable prospectively as loss estimates related to covered loans and other real estate owned change

Subsequent decreases in the amount expected to be collected result in provision for loan and lease losses an increase in the

allowance for loan and lease losses and proportional adjustment to the FDIC receivable for the estimated amount to be reimbursed

Subsequent increases in the amount expected to be collected result in the reversal of any previously-recorded provision for loan and

lease losses and related allowance for loan and lease losses and adjustments to the FDIC receivable or prospective adjustment to the

accretable discount if no provision for loan and lease losses had been recorded Based on our due diligence review of our acquisition

including estimates of the timing of cash flow receipts and the disposition of nonperforming assets we were able to estimate the

acquisition date fair value of the FDIC receivable We discounted the receivable for the expected timing and receipt of these cash

flows using risk-free rate plus premium for risk The ultimate realization of the FDIC receivable depends on the performance of

the underlying covered assets the passage of time and claims paid by the FDIC The amortization of the FDIC receivable is recorded

into noninterest expense over the estimated life of the receivable

Results of Operations

2011 Compared to 2010

Net Income

Our net income for the year ended December 31 2011 was $11.4 million or $066 and $059 basic and fully diluted earnings

per share respectively Net income for the year ended December 31 2010 was $10.1 million or $0.63 and $0.56 basic and fully

diluted earnings per share respectively The $1.3 million increase in net income in 2011 compared to 2010 was due primarily to

$7.7 million decrease in interest expense as result of our improved deposit mix and lower cost of deposits Additionally there was

an $8.5 million increase in total noninterest income These increases were somewhat offset by lower interest income as result of the

continued low interest rate environment and competitive pricing higher noninterest expense led by salaries and benefits expense and

an increase in provision for loan losses Details of the changes in the various components of net income are further discussed below

Net Interest Income/Margin

Taxable-equivalent net interest income was $71.2 million in 2011 compared to $65.1 million in 2010 an increase of $6.2

million or 9.5% Average interest-earning assets in 2011 increased $157.2 million to $A.934 billion an 8.8% increase when compared
to 2010 Average interest-bearing liabilities increased $103.1 million to $1 .663 billion 6.6% increase The net interest margin
increased by two basis points to 3.68% in 2011 when compared to 2010 The components of net interest margin are described below

Taxable-equivalent interest income increased $6.2 million or 9.5% to $71.2 million during 2011 compared with 2010 asthe

result of 51 basis point decrease in the yieldon interest-earning assets more than offset by the net growth of $157.2 million or 8.8%

in average interest-earning assets The
average

balance of loans outstanding in 2011 increased $131.2 million or 8.9% to $1.61

billion when compared to 2010 The yield on average loans outstanding decreased 52 basis points to 5.38% when compared to 2010
in large part due to decreasing yields on the consumer loan portfolio consisting primarily of indirect automobile loans The decrease

in yield was due to changes in market interest rates The average balance of investment securities increased $8.3million due to FHLB
and GNMA purchases and the FDIC-assisted purchase of Decatur First Bank Average interest-bearing deposits increased $17.4

million to $92.2 million due to managements decision to maintain higher levels of liquidity throughout the majority of 2011

Interest expense in 2011 decreased $7.7 million or 25.2% to $5.1 million as result of 59 basis point decrease in the cost of

interest-bearing liabilities net of $103.1 million or 6.6% increase in average interest-bearing liability balances due to managements
efforts to lower cost of funds by decreasing rates paid on deposits and focus on lower cost core deposits Average total interest-

bearing deposits increased 1.06.0 million or 7.6% to $1 .499 billion during 2011 compared to 2010 while average borrowings

decreased $2.9 million or 1.7% to $163.9 million The increase in average total interest-bearing deposits was prirriarily due to an

increase of $94.6 million in demand deposits
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Average Balances Interest and Yields

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Average Income Yield/ Average Income Yield Average Income Yield

Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate

Dollars in thousands

ASSETS

Interest-Earning Assets

Lanetofimearnç4iste6me

Taxable $1606783 $86497 5.38% $1475351 $87104 5.90% $1444423 $86643 6.00%

tnptW jQ42 Q$ 6j4 5267 324 617 6817 395 53
Total loans 1611825 86805 5.38 1480618 87428 5.90 1451240 87038 6.00

1thejst secudties

Taxable 215719 6227 2.89 208834 7302 3.50 227731 9901 4.35

iO3 29 3$ 117O 730 62314
Total Investment securities 228822 7056

3.69 220540 8032 3.65 242491 10799 4.47

O24 177 0.24 5l4 19 0.25

Federalflindssold 950 0.06 613 0.07 11013 24 0.22

nerest earning assta 19371I 94086 1776563 563 1759X3 980 57
Noninterest-Earning Assets

376 12213 25900

Allowance for loan losses 28724 28085 33632
Rr4diIpie1it Z2$ 8877 18725

Other real estate owned 24754 23225 21527

Othetssets 87346 7664 66461

Total assets $2063169 $1879657 $1858874

LIABILITIES AND SHAREhOLDERS
EQUITY

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Demanddeposits 439243 2334 0.53 344607 3014 0.87 236819 2794 1.18

Savingsdeposits 407865 3183 0.78 415516 5767 1.39 333865 6963 2.09

Time deposits 652343 10792 1.65 633374 14664 232 829229 28864 3.48

Total interest-bearing deposits 1499451 16309 1.09 1393497 23445 1.68 1.399.913 38.621 2.76

Federal funds purchased 36 1.06 740 0.94

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 19335 210 1.09 22436 442 1.97 29237 390 1.33

Other short-term borrowings 18680 475 2.54 14493 572 3.94 6407 227 3.54

Subordinated debt 67527 4.494 6.66 67 527 4502 6.67 67527 4650 6.89

Long-term debt 58301 1361 2.33 61575 1595 2.59 66096 2121 3.21

Total interest-bearing liabilities 1663330 22849 1.37 1560268 30563 1.96 1569.180 46009 2.93

Noninterest-Bearing Liabilities and

Shareholders Equity

Demand deposits 219377 169 120 142656

Other liabilities 27150 15 137 14425

Shareholders equity 153312 135.132 132613

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $2063169 $1879657 $1858874

Net interest income/spread $71237 3.50 $65075 3.42 $51991 2.64

Netinteresuainmargin 3.68 3.66 2.95

Interest income includes the effects of taxable-equivalent adjustments for 2011 and 2010 of$107000 and $112000 respectively

Interest income includes the effects of taxable-equivalent adjustments for 2011 and 2010 of $279000 and $242000 respectively
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Rate/Volume Analysis

.1..2011 Compared to 2010 Variance.. 2010 Compared to 2009 Variance

Attributed totlI Attributed to1

Volume Rate Net Change Volume Rate Net Change

In thousands

Net Loans

Taxable $7429 $8037
Tax.-exempt2 14
Investment Securities

Taxable

Tax exempt2

Federal fmdssoid

Interest-bearing deposits
____________ ___________ ____________ ___________ ___________ ___________

Tbtal intÆ-eamiiits _______ _______ _______ _______ _______ _______

Inteest-Bei.g Dej$
Demand

Savings

Time ________ ________ ________ ________ ________ ________
Total interest-beaiingdepoits

Federal funds purchased

Securities sold under Łthdt to repurchase

Other short-term borrowings

Subordinated debt

Long-term debt __________ __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Total nteitstbearin1i1i1ities _________ ________ _________ ________ _________ _________

The change in interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated to the compOnents iti proportion to thA relationship of the dollar amounts of the change in

each

Reflects fully
taxable equivalent adjustments using Federal tax rate of35%

Provision for Loan Losses

Managements policy is to maintain the allowance for loan losses at level sufficjent to absorb probable losses inherent in

the loan portfolio The allowance is increased by the provision for loan losses and decreased by charge-offs net of recoveries

The provision for loan losses was $20.3 million in 2011 $17.1 million in 2010 and $28.8 million in 2009 Net charge-offs

were $20.5 million in 2011 compared to $19.1 million in 2010 and $32.4 million in 20O9 The increase in the provision in.2011

compared to 2010 was primarily due to growth in the loan portfolio and an increase in net charge-offs In 2008 management

increased provision for loan losses well in excess of charge-offs in response to the worsening economic climate and to continued

deterioration in the Banks asset quality Beginning in the second half of 2009 credit trends began to stabilize and we saw some

improvement in certain credit quality metrics such as nonperforming assets In 2010 and 2011 credit conditions in the consumer

portfolio continued to show improvement with significant reductions in loans charged-off and delinquent loan percentages while the

net charge-offs from which our non-consumer loan portfolio increased Average nonperforming assets were $90.4 million for the year

ended December 31 2011 compared to $87.4 million for the same period in 2010 an increase of $3.1 million or 3.5%

The allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans outstanding at the end of 2011 2010 and 2009 was 1.72% 2.00% and

2.33% respectively Excluding the loans acquired in the fourth quarter of 2011 through the FDIC-assisted purchase of Decatur First

Bank the allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans was 1.81% The allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans

decreased in 2011 in response to the stabilizing economy and the associated positive impact on consumer loans

For additional information on asset quality refer to the discussions regarding loans credit quality nonperforming assets and

the allowance for loan losses

608 1851 1390 461

88

2.6 1jj 773 1826 259
88 11 99 190 22 168

13 10 423
44 47 46 38

t783 $2 833 3195 2962

684 $1364 680 $1062 842 220

104 2480 584 1471 26ff .1196
431 4303 3872 5874 8326 14200

1O11 8141 3341 11
177 105 157 52

141 238 97 316 29 345

82 153 235 138 38 52681 .$326 $12F85
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Analysis of the Allowance for Loan LOsses

December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

$8O82 $3O72 $33691 $16557 $14213

Charge-offs

Commercial financial and agricultural Z090 1264 1045 319 200

Real estate-construction 13494 11274 20217 9083 1934

Rôalbst-iiotgage 804 656 416 332 82

Consuther installment 5638 7086 11622 10841 5301

Total vharge-off 22026 2028G 33300 75t7
Recoveries

Commercial financial and agricultural 86 28 40 220 257

Real estate-construction 596 361 77 43 190

Real estate-mortgage 44 19 14 78

Consumer installment 849 768 745 882 836

Total recoveries 1575 1165 881 1159 1361

Net charge-offs 20451 19115 32419 19416 6156
Provision for loan losses 20325 17125 28800 36550 8500
Balance at end of year $27956 $28082 $30072 $33691 $16557

Allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans 1.72% 2.00% 2.33% 2.43% 1.19%

Allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans excluding

FDIC-assisted purchased loans 1.81 2.00 2.33 2.43 1.19

Ratio of net charge-offs during period to average loans outstanding

net 1.38 1.44 2.44 1.36 0.45

Ratio of net charge-offs during period to average loans outstanding

excluding FDIC-assisted purchased loans 139 1.44 2.44 1.36 0.45

Real estate construction loan net charge-offs were $12.9 million in 2011 compared to $10.9 million in 2010 These charge

offs were related to residential construction builders and were attributed to the continued slow housing construction and sales Based

on recent trends in the economy and smaller balance of construction loans outstanding management believes the real estate

construction loan charge-offs will decrease in 2012 as compared to 2011 We will continue to closely monitor the activity and trends

in the residential housing construction portfolio as well as the rest of the loan portfolio

Consumer instal1mnt loannet charge-offsof $4.8 million decreased 24.2% over charge-offs of $6.3 million in-20l The

majority of consumer installment loan charge-offs were related to indirect automobile loan repossessions and liquidations Indirect net

charge-offs decreased 42.0% or $2.6 millionto $3.6 million for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to $6.2 million in 2010

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income for 2011 was $51.4 million compared to $42.9 million in 2010 15.4% increase This increase was

primarily due to an increase in revenues from SBA lending other operating income and indirect lending somewhat offset by

decrease in securities gains as described below

Income-from SBA lending activities which includes gains from the sale of SBA loans and ancillary fees on loans sold with

servicing retained totaled $8.5 million for 2011 compared to $2.4 million for 2010 The increase was due to higher sales and better

margins in 2011 as result of more active secondary market Loans sold increased from $24.5 million in 2010 to $93.9 million in

2011

Other operating income increased $1.8 million to $3.3 million in 2011 compared to 2010 because of gain on the FDIC
assisted acquisition of Decatur First Bank and higher gains on sale of ORE The Bank recognized gain on the acqUisition of Decatur

First Bank of $1.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2011

Income from indirect lending activities increased $1.4 millionto $5.9 million fOr the year ended December 31 2011

compared to 2010 The increase was primarily due to an increase in the gain on loans sold Indirect lending loans sold totaled $140.2

million for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to $63.3 million sold for the same period in 2010 Somewhat offsetting the

increase in gain was decrease in prepament penalty and late charge income
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Securities gain income decreased $1.2 million to $1.1 million in 2011 compared to $2.3 million in 20.10 The decrease is

result of the Bank selling fewer securities in 2011 compared to 2010 The Bank sold five securities totaling $31.7 million during

2011 compared to 16 securities totaling $98.0 million in 2010

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense during 2011 increased $9A million or 12.4% to $85.4 million when compared to 2010 due primarily to

increases in salaries and employee benefits related to growth in the mortgage division increases in other operating expenses and

increases in professional and other services

Salaries and benefits expense
increased $5.0 million or 11.6% in 2011 compared to 2010 The increase was primarily due to

the higher conimissions and salaries associated with the mortgage division and the hiring of new lenders in the SBA Commercial

Private Banking and Indirect divisions of the Bank

Other operating expenses were $12.0 million in 2011 and $3.0 million or 33.2% higher than.20 10 as result higher legal

expenses related to ongoing legal actions higher other losses related to the establishment of certain mortgage lending reserves

underwriting fee expense
related to increased mortgage lending activity higher other insurance expense

related to certain expanded

coverage limits higher miscellaneous tax expense and higher credit reports expense
related to increased mortgage lending activity

Professional and other services expense increased $900000 to $5.7 million for the year ended December 31 2011 compared

to 2010 The increase was primarily due to higher outside service expense related to increased mortgage activity and associated credit

research internet banking indirect lending and deposit activity

Somewhat offsetting these increases was decrease in FDIC insurance expense
of $953000 to $2.6 million for the year

ended December 31 2011 compared to 2010 as result of reduction in the FDIC assessment rate and base

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes expense for 2011 and 2010 was $5.1 million and $4.4 million respectively with effective tax

rates of 31.1% and 30.3% respectively Management has reviewed all evidence both positive and negative and concluded that

valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset is not needed at December 31 2011

2010 Compared to 2009

Net Income

Our net income for the year
ended December 31 2010 was $10.1 million or $0.63 and $0.56 for basic and fully diluted

earnings per share respectively NcX loss for the year ended December 31 2009 was $3.9 million or $0.70 basic and fully diluted loss

per share The $14.0 million increase in net income in 2010 compared to 2009 was due pimarily to $15.4 million decrease in

interest expense as result of our improved deposit mix and lower cost of deposits Additionally there was an $11.7 million decrease

in the provision for loan losses as result of the recent positive economic trends affecting our loan portfolio including improving asset

quality and lower average nonperforming assets

Net Interest Income/Margin

Taxable-equivalent net interest income was $65.1 million in 2010 compared to $52.0 million in 2009 an increase of $13.1

million or 25.2% Average interest-earning assets in 2010 increased $16.7 million to $1 .777 billion 0.9% increase when compared

to 2009 Average interest-bearing liabilities decreased $8.9 million to 1.560 billion 0.6% decrease The net interest margin

increased by 71 basis pointsto 3.66% in 2l0 when compared to 2009 The components of net interest margin are described below

Taxable-equivalent interest income decreased $2.4 million or 2.4% to $95.6 million during 2010 compared with 2009 as

result of 19 basis point decrease in the yield on interest-earning assets somewhat offset by the net growth of $16.7 million or 0.9% in

average interest-earning assets The average balance of loans outstanding in 2010 increased $29.4 million or 2.0%to $l.48l billion

when compared to 2009 The yield on average loans outstanding decreased 10 basis points to 5.90% when compared to 2009 in large

part due to decreasing yields on the consumer loan portfolio consisting primarily of indirect automobile loans The decrease in yield

was due to changes in market interest rates The average balance of investment securities decreased $22.0 million due to increased

maturities and calls Average interest-bearing deposits increased $19.6 million to.$74.8 million and Federal funds sold decreased

$10.4 million or 94.4% to $613000

Interest expense
in 2010 decreased $15.4 million or 33.6% to $30.6 million as res%llt of $8.9 million or 0.6% decrease in

average interest-bearing liability balances and 97 basis point decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities due to managements

efforts to lower cost of funds by decreasing rates paid on deposits and to replace higher cost certificates of deposit with lower cost
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core deposits Average total interest-bearing deposits decreased $6.4 million or 0.5% to $1 .393 billion during 2010 compared to

2009 while average borrowings decreased $2.5 million or 1.5% to $166.8 million The decrease in average total interest-bearing

deposits was primarily due to decrease of $195.9 million in time deposits somewhat offset by an increase in demand accounts and

savings deposits

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses was $17.1 million in 2010 and $28.8 million in 2009 Net charge-offs were $19.1 million in

2010 compared to $32.4 million in 2009 The decrease in the provision in 2010 compared to 2009 was primarily due to moderating

asset quality reductions in the level of average nonperforming assets an increase in SBA loans of which portion of each loan is

guaranteed by the SBA and general increase iii credit quality for newly originated loans In 2010 credit conditions improved with

significant reductions in loans charged-off and delinquent loan percentages Average nonperforming assets were $87.4 million for the

year ended December 31 2010 compared to $113.1 million for the same period in 2009 decrease of $25.7 million or 22.7%

The allowance for lban losses as percentage of loans outstanding at the end of 2010 and 2009 was 2.00% and 2.33%

respectively The allowance for loan losses as percentage of loans decreased 33 basis points in 2010 in response
to the stabilizing

economy and the associated positive impact on consumer loans

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income for 2010 was $42.9 million compared to $34.0 million in 2009 26.3% increase This increase was

primarily due to an increase in revenues from mortgage banking SBA lending and other operating income somewhat offset by

decrease in securities gains as described below

Income from mortgage banking activities increased $9.5 million to $24.5 million during 2010 compared to 2009 In 2009

management made the strategic decision to expand the mortgage banking operation by hiring 58 former employees of an Atlanta

based mortgage company which had closed down operations During 2010 we continued to hire employees for our mortgage

operation As result of this expansion and favorable mortgage interest rates the Bank originated approximately $1 .245 billion in

mortgage loans during 2010 compared to approximately $846 million in 2009 and $20 million in 2008 Origination fee income in

2010 was $4.9 million compared to $3.7 million in 2009 Gain on loans sold increased from $7.1 million in 2009 to $14.9 million in

2010 In addition on January 2009 the Bank elected under ASC 825-10-25 to value its loans held-for-sale at fair value This

valuation along with the mark to market on the derivatives associated with interest rate lock commitments and related hedges resulted

in the recognition of mark to market gain of $2.3 million during 2010 compared to $2.0 million in 2009

IncOme from SBA lending activities which includes gains from the sale of SBA loans and ancillary fees on loans sold with

servicing retained totaled $2.4 million fOr 2010 compared to $1 .1 million for 2009 The increase was due to higher sales and better

margins in 2010 as result of more active secondary market Loans sold increased from $16.7 million in 2009 to $24.5 million in

2010 The premium on loans sold increased 65% in 2010 compared to 2009

Other operating income increased $782000 to $1.5 million in 2010 compared to 2009 because of higher gains on sale of

ORE and higher ORE lease income Gains on sale of ORE increased because of more favorable gains on the sales of foreclosed

properties ORE lease income increased as the Bank was able to lease more properties held in other real estate

Securities gain income decreased $3.0 million to $2.3 million in 2010 compared to $5.3 million in 2009 The decrease is

result of the Bank selling fewer securities in 2010 compared to 2009 The Bank sold 16 securities totaling $98 million during 2010

compared to 33 securities totaling $151 million in 2009

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense during 2010 increased $11.4 million or 17.7% to $76.0 million whefi compared to 2009 due primarily

to increases in salaries and employee benefits related to growth in the mortgage division and increases in other operating expenses

Salaries and benefits expense increased $9.3 million or 28.0% in 2010 compared to 2009 The increase was primarily due to

the higher commissions and salaries associated with the expansion of the mortgage division during 2010 and the hiring of new lenders

in the SBA Commercial Private Banking and Indirect divisions of the Bank

Other operating expenses were $9.0 milliOn in 2010 and $1.9 million or 26.8% higher than 2009 as result higher

underwriting fee expense rblated to increased ntortgage lending activity higher other insurance expense
related to certain expanded

coverage limits higher other losses related to the establishment of certain mortgage lending reserves higher advertising expenses

higher stationery and printing expenses and higher credit reports expense
related to increased mortgage lending activity
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Froviion for Income Taxes

The provision for incpme taxes expense benefit for 2010 and 2009 was $4.4 million and $4.0 million respectively with

effective tax rates of 30.3% and 50.6% respectively The income ta benefit recorded in 2009 was primarily the result of pretax loss

as well as the recognition of state income tax credits earned during the year Management has reviewed all evidence both positive

and negative and concluded that valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset is not needed at December 31 2010

Financial Condition

We manage our assets and liabilities to maximize long-term earnings opportunities while maintaining the integrity of our

financial position and the quality of earnings To accomplish this objective management strives for efficient management of interest

rate risk ard liquidity nepds The primary objectives of interestsensitivity management are to minimize the effect of interest rate

changes on the net interest margm and to manage the exposure to risk while maintaining net interest income at acceptable levels

Liquidity is provided by our attempt to carefully structure our balance sheet and through unsecured and secured lines of credit with

other financial institutions the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta the FHLB and the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta the

FRB

The Asset/Liability Management Committee ALCO meets regularly to among other things review our interest rate

sensitivity positions and our balance sheet mix monitor our capital position and ratios review our product offering and pricing

including rates fees and charges monitor our funding needs and sources and review cash flows to assess our current and projected

liquidity

Market Risk

Our primary market risk
exposures are interest rate risk credit risk and liquidity risk We have little or no risk related to

trading accounts commodities or foreign exchange

Interest rate risk which encompasses price risk is the exposure of banking organizations financial condition and earnings

ability to withstand adverse movements in interest rates Accepting this risk can be an important source of profitability and

shareholder value however excessive levels of interest rate risk can pose significant threat to assets earnings and capital

Accordingly effective risk management that maintains interest rate risk at prudent levels is essential toour success

ALCO which includes senior management representatives monitors and considers methods of managing the rate and

sensitivity repricing characteristics of the balance sheet components consistent with maintaining acceptable levels of changes in

portfolio values and net interest income with changes in interest rates The primary purposes of ALCO are to manage our interest rate

risk consistent with eanings and liquidity to effectively invest our capital and to preserve the value created by our core business

operations Our exposure to interest rate risk compared to established tolerances is reviewed on at least quarterly basis by our Board

of Directors

Evaluating financial institutions exposure to changes in interest rates includes assessing both the adequacy of the

management process
used to coitrol inlerest rate risk and the organizations quantitative levels of exposure When assessing the

interest rate risk management process we seek to ensure that appropriate policies procedures management information systems and

internal controls are in place to maintain interest rate risk at prudent levels with consistency and continuity Evaluating the

quantitative level of interest rate risk exposure requires us to assess the existing and potential future effects of changes in interest rates

on our consolidated financial condition including capital adequacy earnings liquidity and where appropriate assetquality.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis referred to as Equity at Risk is used to measure our interest rate risk by computing estimated

changes in earnings and in the net present value of our cash flows from assets liabilities and off-balance sheet items in the event of

range of assumed changes in market interest rates Net present value represents the market value of portfolio equity and is equal to the

market value of assets minus the market value of liabilities with adjustments made for off-balance sheet items This analysis assesses

the risk of loss in market risk sensitive instruments in the event of sudden and sustained 200 300 and 400 basis point increases or

decreases in market interest rates In addition management reviews the impact of various yield curve scenarios on earnings and cash

flows

We utilize statistical research firm specializing in the banking industry to provide various quarterly analyses and special

analyses as requested related to our current and projected fmancial performance including rate shock analyses Data sources for this

and other anaiyses include quarterly FDJC Call Reportsand theFederal Reserve Y-9C management assumptions statistical loan

portfolio information industry norms and financial markets ata For purposes of evaluating rate shock rate change induced

sensitivity tables are used in determiningthe timing and volume of repayment prepayment and early withdrawals

Earnings and fair value estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and
therefore cannot be determined with precision Assumptions have been made as to appropriate discount rates prepayment speeds
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expected cash flows and other variables Changes in assumptions significantly affect the estimates and as such the derived earnings

and fair value may not be indicative of the negotiable value in an actual sale or comparable to that reported by other financial

institutions In addition the fair value estimates are based on existing financial instruments without attempting to estimate the value

of anticipated future business The tax ramifications related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have significant

effect on fair value estimates and have not been considered in the estimates Our policy states that negative change in net present

value equity at risk as result of an immediate and sustained 200 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates should not exceed

the lesser of 2% of total assets or 15% of total regulatory capital It also states that similar increase or decrease in interest rates

should not negatively impact net interest income ox net income by more than 5% or 15% respectively

The following schedule reflects an analysis of our assumed market value risk and earnings risk inherent in our interest rate

sensitive instruments related to immediate and sustained interest rate variances of 200 basis points both above and below current

levels rate shock analysis It also reflects the estimated effects on net interest income and net income over one-year period and the

estimated effects on net present value of our assets liabilities and off-balance sheet items as result of an immediate and sustained

increase or decrease of 200 basis points in market rates of interest as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Rate Shock Analysis

December 31 2011 December 31 2010

200 Basis -200 Basis 200 Basis -200 Basis

Market Rates of Interest Points Points Points Points

Dollars in thousands

Change in net piese1 vatue S15633 $4Z $4791 $23999

Change as percetit of total assets J0.70% 1.89% 0.25% 124%

aprn gti1nthiy equity i6.74% I8WO 2.27% 1L36%

Percent change in net interest income 1.54% 12.47% 2.82% 7.68%

PŁiºent àh hiet iic j.60Vo 3O$9% 10.52% 59%

The rate shock analysis at December 31 2011 indicated that the effects of an immediate and sustained increase of 200 basis

points in market rates of interest would fall within policy parameters and approved tolerances for equity at risk net interest income

and net income The effect of an immediate and sustaineddecrease of 200 basis points in market rates would fall outside of policy

parameters for net interest income and net income Short-term market rates have dropped to historically low levels so that an

immediate and sustained decrease of 200 basis points is highly doubtful

Rate shock analysis provides only limited point in time view of interest rate sensitivity The gap analysis also does not

reflect factors such as the magnitudeversus the timing of future interest rate changes and asset prepayments The actual impact of

interest rate changes upon earnings and net present value may differ from that implied by any static rate shock or gap measurement

In addition net interest income and net present value under various future interest rate scenarios are affected by multiple other factors

not embodied in static rate shock or gap analysis including.competition changes in the -sha.pe of the Treasury yield curve divergent

movement among various interest rate indices and the speed with which interest rates change

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The major elements used to manage interest rate risk include the mix of fixed and variable rate assets and liabilities and the

maturity and repricing patterns of these assets and liabilities It is our policy not to invest in derivatives.outside of our mortgage

hedging process We perform quarterly review of assets and liabilities that reprice and the time bands within which the repricing

occurs Balances generally are reported in the time band that corresponds to the instruments next repricing date or contractual

maturity whichever occurs first However fixed rate indirect automobile loans mortgage backed securities and residential mortgage

loans are primarily included based on scheduled payments with prepayment factor incorporated Through such analyses we monitor

and manage our interest sensitivity gap to minimize the negative effects of changing interest rates

The interest.rate sensitivity structure within our balance sheet at December 31 2011 indjcated cumulative net interest

sensitivity asset gap of 11.84% when projecting forward six months When projecting out one year there was net interest sensitivity

asset gap of 9.73% This information represents ageneral indication of repricing characteristics over time however the sensitivity of

certain deposit products may vary during extreme swings in the interest rate cycle see Market Risk Since all interest rates and

yields do not adjust at the same velocity the interest rate sensitivity gap
is only general indicator of the potential effeCts of interest

rate changes on net interest income Our policy states that the cumulative gap at ix months and one year should generally not exceed

15% and 10% respectively Our cumulative gap at six months and one year both fall.within this giiideline
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The following table illustrates our interest rate sensitivity at December 31 2011 as well as the cumulative position at

December 31 2011 All amount8 are categorized by their actual maturity or repricing date with the exception of non-maturity deposit

accounts As result of prior experience during periods of rate volatility and managements estimate of future rate sensitivities we
allocate the non-maturity deposit accounts noted below based on the estimated duration of those deposits

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Repricing Within

0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 121-150 151-180

Days Days Days Days Days Days

Dollars in thousands

181-365 Over One

Days Year Total

intAt
Investment securities

Loans

Loans held-for-sale

Federal iinda sold

Due from banks
interest-earning

Total in est-earning assets

Cumulative RSA

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Dematt poedotutts
Savings and NOW accounts

Moneyinarket accounts

Time deposits 100000

Time4epositsS100000Qncl TD
Long-term debt

Short-tiin booTving
Total

interest-bearing
liabilities

Curar1ati RSL

Tntetest-sensitivit3 gap

Cumulative

12435 3481 11440442 5286
74929 38566 11294

2411

33967

546 943376456
524166 618799 695255

43479 1ª47
32437 32437

26348 26348

17491 15104

25303 19f6
25774

________
127669 117583 135222

122 245252 38l44

27178 197824 277876

2Qk 73Q$4
3236 133849

2411

33967

2865O8 927908 2071974

1144066

43904 $74153 27351

201510 27357

Liquidity is defined as the ability to meet anticipated customer demands for funds under credit commitments and deposit

withdrawals at reasonable cost and on timely basis Management measures the liquidity position by giving consideration to both

on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet sources of and demands for funds on daily and weekly basis

Management seeks to maintain stable net liquidity position while optimizing operating results as reflected in net interest

income the net yield on earning assets and the cost of interest-bearing liabilities in particular ALCO meets regularly.to review the

current and projected net liquidity positions and to review actions taken by management to achieve this liquidity objective While the

desired level of liquidity will vary depending on number of factors it is the primary goal of Fidelity to maintain sufficient level of

liquidity in both normal operating conditions and in periods of market or indUstry stress

Sources of liquidity include cash and cash equivalents net of Federal requirements to maintain reserves against deposit

liabilities investment securities eligible for sale or pledging to secure borrowings from dealers and customers pursuant to securities

sold under agreements to repurchase repurchase agreements loan repayments loan sales deposits and certain interest-sensitive

deposits brokered deposits collateralized contingent line of credit at the FRB Discotmt Window collateralized line of credit from

the FHLB and borrowings under unsecured overnight Federal funds lines available from correspondent banks The principal

demands for liquidity are new loans anticipated fundings under credit commitments to customers and deposit withdrawals

The Company has limited liquidity and it relies primarily on interest and dividends from subsidiaries equity subordinated

debt and trust preferred securities interest income management fees and dividends from the Bank as sources of liquidity Interest

and dividends from subsidiaries ordinarily provide source of liquidity to bank holding company The Bank
pays

interest to Fidelity

on the Banks subordinated debt and its short-term investments in the Bank and cash dividends on its preferred stock and common

stock Under the regulations Of the GDBF bank dividends may not exceed 50% of the prior years net earnings without approval from

the GDBF If dividends received from the Bank were reduced or eliminated our liquidity would be adversely affected The Banks

net liquid asset ratio defined as Federal fuhds sold investments maturing in 30 days unpledged securities available unsecured

Federal funds lines of credit FHLB borrowing capacity and available brokered certificates of deposit divided by total assets increased

32437

23
14507

i0i

20188

4b7X3

1294

3l95
758450

4493

10812

8783

24961

24785

119
75453

455921

2646 2684

47O3 4Z0
1294 3236

50978 48130

809428 857558

4493 4493

10812 10812

8783 8783

22091 47811

166O6 19399

124k
_______

64030 92187

519957 612144

2959
64874 194623 389244

52696 368873 526962

82593 132792 357350

80234 121245 323366

94253 120027

2356 i56 53080

330412 $1102061 2044617

942556

________
ZSO 1225 13052 440S7

$396497 $37357 $314781 $302523 $289471 $245414

Liquidity

Ratio of cumulative gap to total interest

earningassets 19.14% 18.03% 15.19% 14.60% 13.97% 11.84% 9.73% 1.32%

R.aioirestinsisitiyehhealto

en61lit 41t$ 90i4St 54% .15% 792 2.21% 871% 81k20%
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from 16.1% at December 31 2010 to 21.0% at December 31 2011 The increase is due to higher level of free securities due to

growth in the investment portfolio

In addition to cash and cash equivalents and the availability of brokered deposits as of December 31 2011 we had the

following sources of available unused liquidity

December 31 2011

In thousands

UnpJedge4scwitjçs

FHLB advances

FRBline

Unsecured Federal funds lines

AdditionalFRB line sed oejgibl but unple4gçd cpJateai __________________

Total sources of available unused liquidity ___________________

Net cash flows from operating activities primarily result from net income adjusted for the following noncash items the

provision for loan losses depreciation amortization and the lower of cost or market adjustments if any Net cash flows provided by

operating activities in 2011 were positively impacted by proceeds from sales of loans of $1 .524 billion and negatively impacted

primarily by $1 .419 billion in loans originated for resale Net cash flows used in investing activities were negatively impacted by

$2133 million of cash outflows for purchases of investment securities available-for-sale and $276.0 million related to the increase in

the loan portfolio In addition the net cash flows used in investing activities were positively impacted by net cash inflows from

maturities and calls of investment securities of $86.0 million and proceeds from the sale of investment securities available-for-sale of

$32.8 million Net cash flows provided by financing activities were positively impacted by increases in transactional accounts of

$174.6 million and an increase of $83.7 million in time deposits

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

The following schedule provides summary of our financial commitments to make future payments primarily to fund loan

and other credit obligations long-term debt and rental commitments primarily for the lease of branch facilities the operations center

the SBA lending office and the conimercial lending construction lending and executive offices as of December 31 2011 Payments

for borrowings do not include interest Payments related to leases are based on actual payments specified in the underlying contracts

Loan commitments lines of credit and letters of credit are presented at contractual amounts however since many of these

commitments are revolving conmiitments as discussed below and many are expected to expire unused or partially used the total

amount of these commitments does not necessarily reflect future cash requirements

90O00
8000

2.85000

62000

357000

$802000

Commitments

or Long-term

Borrowings

Commitment Maturity or Payment Due by Period

More Than Years or

Year or Year but Less More but Less

Less Than Years Than Years

In thousands

Years or

More

mieeqthi lin 41835 49l 5859 $1 1625 20857

Construction 30960 30960

Acquisition ai4development 2251 2251

Commercial 78392 51444 11927 14756 265

SBA 11190 603 310 10277

Mortgage 116733 116733

Letters of Credit 4136 3862 249 25

Lines of Credit 1538 327 78 1133

Total financial commitments 287035 209674 18423 26406 32532

Subordinated debt2 67527 67527

Long-term borrowings3 52500 52500

Rental commitments4 14676 2717 2520 2649 6790

Purchase obligations 4369 1455 1292 1622

Total commitments and long-term borrowings $426107 $213846 $74735 $30677 $106849

Financial commitments include both secured and unsecured obligations to fund Certain residential construction and acquisition and development commitments relate to revolving commitments

whereby paym ents are received as individual homes or parcels are sold therefore the outstanding balances at any
one-time will be less than the total commitment Construction loan commitments in

excess of one year have provisions to convert to term loans at the end of
the construction period

Subordinated debt is comprised offive trust preferred security issuances We have no obligations related to the trust preferred security holders other than to remit periodic interest payments and to

rem it principal and interest due at maturity Each trust preferred security provides us the opportunity to
prepay

the securities at spec jjied dates from inception the fixed rate issues with declining

premiums based on the time outstanding or at par after designated periods for all issues

All long-term borrowings are collateralized with investment grade securities or with pledged real estate loans

Leases and other rental agreements typically have renewal options either at predetermined rates or market rates on renewal

Purchase obligations include significant contractual obligations under legally enforceable contracts with contract terms that are both frced and determinable with initial terms greater
than one year

The majority of these amounts are primarily for services including core processing systems and telecommunications maintenance
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing

needs of our customers andto reduce our own- exposure to fluctuations in interest rates These- financial instruments which include

commitments to extend credit and letters of credit involve to varying degrees elements of credit and-interest rate risk in excess of the

amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements The contract or notional amounts of these instruments reflect the extent

of involvement we-have in particular classes of financial instruments

Our exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by customers for commitments to extend credit and letters of

credit is represented by the contractual or notional amount of those instrtiments We use the same credit policies in making

commitments and conditional obligations as we do for recorded loans Loan commitments and other off-balance sheet exposures are

evaluated by the Credit Review department quarterly and reserves are provided for risk as deemed appropriate

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers as long asthere is no violation of anycondition

established in the agreement Substantially all of our commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining

specific credit standards at the time of loan funding We minimize our exposure to loss under these commitments by subjecting them

to credit approval and monitoring procedures.- Thus-we will deny funding commitment if the borrowers financial condition

deteriorates during the commitment period such that the customer no longer meets the pre-established conditions of lending

Commitments generally have fixed expiratibndates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fee We evaluate each

customers creditwort--hiness on case-by-case basis The amount of collateral Obtained if deemed necessary upon extension of credit

is based on managements credit evaluation-of the borrower Collateral held varies but may--include accounts receivable inventory

property plant and equiprnent income-producing commercial properties

Standbyand import- letters of credit -are corimitments issued by us to guarantee
the performance of customer to third

party The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans or lines of credit to

customers We hold collateral supporting those commitments as deemed
necessary

Loans

During 2011 toXal loans- outstanding which included -loans held-for-sale increased $144.5 million or 9.0% to 1.758 billion

when compared to 2010 -The Banks total loan production increased to $2.492 billion in 2011 compared to $2.209 billion- in 2010

The increase in -loans was the result of $141.0 million or 19.7% increase in- consumer installment loans consisting primarily of

indirect automobile loans to $857.2 millionbecauseof the improving economy in theBanks market area.- Total commercial loans

including SBA loans increased $70.8 million or 148% to $549.3 million in 2011 compared-to- 2010 with the growth primarily in the

commercial real estate segment of the portfolio as part oftheBas effort toserve credit worthy customers in our local footprint

Construction loans decreased $175 million or 15.2% to $97.7 million Contributing to the decline were continued construction loan

charge-offs foreclosutes and payoffs which more than offset loan production In the fourth quarter of 2011 Fidelity acquired

Decatur First Bank-in-an FDIC-assisted transaction This resulted-in an increase of $77.5 million in loans at December 31 2011

Loans held-for-saledecrea-sed $76.0millionor 36.2% to $133.8 million primarily due to $64.1 million decrease in

mortgage loans held-for-sale to $90.9 million due to increased sales to FNMA and more efficient processing The balance of the

decrease in loans held-for-sale was in SBA loans which decreased $11.9 million to $12.9 million The fluctuations in theheld-for-sale

balances are due to loan production levels and demands of loan investors
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Loans by Category

December 31

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Loais

Commercial loans

Constructioij kans

Consumer loans

Mortgage loans

Loans

Allowaiice for loan losses

Loans net of allowance

Total Loans

Loans

Loans Held-for-Sale

Residential

Indirect

SBA

9O9O7
30000

42942

133849

$1388358

967 1412

15000 38000

39873 24243

55840 63655

$1443862 $l4520T3

Loan Maturity and Interest Rate Sensitivity

December 31 2011

Loan Maturit
Commercial

Cikitiqii

Total

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Selected loans with

Predetermined interest rates

Coixunercial

Construction

Floatink or adjustal interest rates

Commercial

Construotion

Total

Within One One Through Over Five

Year Five Years Years

In thousands

$229342 $171191 $148807

94952 2758

$324294 $173949 $148807

88239 92401 24927

12033 1986

$205567

14019

Total construction loan advances remained fairly stable increasing from $22.6 million for the year ended December 31 2010

to $24.7 million for the year ended December 31 2011 Payoffs and transfers to ORE decreased from $89.3 million for the year

ended December 31 2010 to $81.9 million for the year ended December 31 2011

Credit Quality

Credit quality risk in the loan portfolio provides our highest degree of risk We manage and control risk in the loan portfolio

through adherence to standards established by the Board of Directors and senior management combined with commitment to

producing quality assets monitoring loan performance developing profitable relationships and meeting the strategic loan quality and

growth targets Our credit policies establish underwriting standards place limits on exposures which include concentrations and

commitments and set other limits or standards as deemed necestary and prudent Also included in the policy primarily determined

by the amount and type of loan are various approval levels ranging from the branch or department level to those that are more

centralized We maintain diversified portfolio intended to spread risk and reduce exposure to economic downturns which may

549340 478502 406308 348012 306441

91710 115224 154785 245153 282056

857175 716185 597782 679330 706188

119646 9346F 130984 115527 93673

1623871 1403372 1289859 1388022 1388358

2196 Z8O82 30072 33691 16557

$1595915 $1375290 $1259787 $1354331 $1371801

$1623871 $1403372 $1289859 $1388022

l5SO29 80
30000 30000

24869 20362

209898 131231

$1l270 $1421090

Total

$549340

97710

$647050

Construction Loans

141103 78790 123880 343773

82919 772 83691

$324294 $173949 $148807 $647050
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occur in different segments of the economy or in particular industries Industry and loan type diversification is reviewed at least

quarterly

Management has taken numerous steps to reduce credit risk in the loan portfolio and to strengthen the credit nsk

management team and processes special assets group Was organized in 2008 to evaluate potential nonperforming loans to properly

value nonperforming assets and to facilitate the timely disposition of these assets while minimizing losses to the Company In

addition all credit policies have been reviewed and revised as necessary and experienced managers are in place and have

strengthened all lending areas and Credit Administration Because of loan growth particularly in our consumer indirect lending

portfolio and an increase in net charge-offs the provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31 2011 increased to $20.3

million compared to $17.1 million for the year ended December31 2010 Net charge-offs in 2011 increased to $20.5 million

compared to $19.1 million during 2010 largely due to an increase in real estate construction charge-offs Construction loan net

charge-offs increased from $11.3 million for the year ended December 31 2010 to $13.5 million in 2011 This increase is function

of the continued slow housing market in the Atlanta metropolitan area

The performance of the consumer indirect lending portfolio of loans which at December 31 2011 made up 8.8% of the

total loan portfolio has also shown improvement in 2011 Indirect loans 60-89 days delinquent decreased 52.1% from December 31

2010 to December 31 2011 Nonaccrual indirect loan balances decreased 29.8% from December 31 2010 to December 31 2011

The Credit Review Department Credit Review regularly reports to senior management and the Loan and Discount

Committee of the Board regarding the credit quality of the loan portfolio as well as trends in the portfolio and the adequacy of the

allowance for loan losses Credit Review monitors loan concentrations production loan growth as well as loan quality and

independent from the lending departments reviews risk ratings and tests credits approved for adherence to our lending standards

Finally Credit Review also performs ongoing independent reviews of the risk management process
and adequacy of loan

documentation The results of its reviews are reported to the Loan and Discount Committee of the Board The consumer collection

function is centralized and automated to ensure timely collection of accounts and consistent management of risks associated with

delinquent accounts

Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of æonaccrual loans troubled debt restructured loans repossessions and other real estate

Nonacerual loans are loans on which the interest accruals have been discontinued when it appears that future collection of principal or

interest according to the contractual terms may be doubtful Troubled debt restructured loans are those loans whose terms have been

modified because of economic or legal reasons related to the debtors financial difficulties and provide concession to the borrower

such as reduction in principal change in terms or modification of interest rates to below market levels The Bank had $14.5 million

in troubled debt restructured loans at December 31 2011 of which $4.4 million were accruing loans and $10.1 million are on

nonaccrual and included in nonperforming assets below Repossessions include vehicles and other personal property that have been

repossessed as result of payment defaults on indirect automobile loans and commercial loans

Nonperforming Assets

December 31

2011 2010 2009 200S 2007

Dollars jn rho zisands

Nonaccrual loans-legacy 60413 $76545 $69743 98151 $14371

Nonaccrual loans FDIC-assisted transactions 6272 --

Repossessions 1423 1119 1393 2016 2512

Other real estate legacy 21058 20525 21 780 15063 7308

Other real estate FDIC-assisted transaction 9468

Total nonperforming assets 98634 $98189 $92916 $115230 $24191

Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing 116 23

Ratio of loans past due 90 days or more and still

accruing to total loans 0.01%

Ratio of nonperforming assets to total loans

repossessions and ORE 5.51 6.01 6.43 7.89 1.65

The increase in nonperforming assets from December 31 2010 to December 31 2011 was result of an increase in ORE
ORE increased primarily due to the FDIC-assisted acquisition of Decatur First Bank in the fourth quarter of2Oll At December 31

2011 the ORE which is related to Decatur First Bank totaled $9.5 miilion Management believes it has been proactive in charging

down and charging off these nonperforniing assets as appropriate Managements assessment of the overall loan portfolio is that loan

quality and performance have stabilized Management is being aggressive in evaluating credit relationships and proactive in

addressing problems
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When loan is classified as nonaccrual to the extent collection is in question previously accrued interest is reversed and

interest income is reduced by the interest accrued in the current year If any portion of the accrued interest was accrued in previous

period accrued interest is reduced and charge for that amount is made to the allowance for loan losses For 2011 the gross amount

of interest income that would have been recorded on nonaccrual loans if all such loans had been accruing interest at the original

contract rate was approximately $3.6 million compared to $4.4 million and $3.4 million during 2010 and 2009 respectively For

additional information on nonaccrual loans see Critical Accounting Policies Allowance for Loan Losses

Allowance for Loan Losses

As discussed in Critical Accounting Policies AllOwance for Loan Losses the allowance for loan losses is established and

maintained through provisions charged to operations Such provisions are based on managements evaluation of the loan portfolio

including current economic conditions loan portfolio concentrations the economic outlook past loan loss experience adequacy of

underlying collateral and such other factors which in managements judgment deserve consideration in estimating loan losses

Loans are charged off when in the opinion of management such loans are deemed to be uncollectible Subsequently recoveries are

added to the allowance

For all loan categories historical loan loss experience adjusted for changes in the risk characteristics of each loan category

current trends and other factors is used to determine the level of allowance required Additional amounts are allocated based on the

possible losses of individual impaired loans and the effect of economic conditions on both individual loans and loan categories Since

the allocation is based on estimates and subjective judgment it is not necessarily indicative of the specific amounts of losses that may

ultimately occur

In determining the allocated allowance all portfolios are treated as homogenous pools The allowance for loan losses for the

homogenous pools is allocated to loan types based on historical net charge-off rates adjusted for any current changes in these trends

Within the commercial commercial real estate and business banking portfolios every nonperforming loan and loans having greater

than normal risk characteristics are not treated as homogenous pools and are individually reviewed for specific allocation The

specific allowance for these individually reviewed loans is based on specific loan impairment analysis

In determining the appropriate level for the allowance management ensures that the overall allowance appropriately reflects

margin for the imprecision inherent in most estimates of the range of probable credit losses This additional allowance if any is

reflected in the unallocated portion of the allowance

At December 31 2011 the allowance for loan losses was $28.0 million or 1.72% of loans compared to $28.1 million or

2.00% of loans at December 31 2010 Excluding the Decatur First loan portfolio the allowance for loan losses as percentage of

loans would be 1.81% Net charge-offs as percent of average loans outstanding as 1.38% in 2011 compared to 1.44% for 2010

The table below presents
the allocated loan loss reserves by loan type as of December 31 2011 and 2010

December 31 Increase

2011 2010 Decrease

In thousands

Commercial 9183 7.532 1651

Construction
8262 9.286 1024

Consumer 6040 7598 1558

Mortgage
2535 2570 35

Unallocated
1936 1096 840

$27956 $28082 126

The allocated allowance for real estate construction loans decreased $1.0 million to $8.3 million at December 31 2011 when

compared to 2010 primarily due to reduced loans outstanding Total construction loans decreased $19.4 million during 2011 to $95.8

million compared to $115.2 million at the end of 2010 The allowance allocated to indirect automobile loans decreased $1.6 million

or 20.5% to $6.0 million from $7.6 million at the end of 2010 The decrease is primarily the result of positive trends in asset quality

indicators somewhat offset by an increase in loans outstanding The allowance allocated to commercial loans increased $1.7 million

during 2011 to $9.2 million compared to $7.5 million at the end of 2010 The increase is primarily related to an increase in loan

outstandings and historical charge-offs

The unallocated allowance increased $840000 to $1.9 million at December 31 2011 compared to year-end 2010 based on

managements assessment of losses inherent in the loan portfolio and not reflected in specific allocations See Provisions for Loan

Losses
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The Bank does not originate or portfolio any option ARM loans where borrowers have the ability to make payments which
do not cover the interest due plus principal amortization In addition the Bank does not portfolio high loan-to-value ratio mortgages
interest only residential mortgage loans subprime loans or loans with initial teaser rates There are no significant geographic
concentrations of loans within our markets

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31 2011 December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Allowance Allowance Allowance

Dollars in thousands

Commercialm 9183 33.83% 7532 34.10% 4608 1.50%
Real estateconstruction 8262 6.02 9.286 8.21 11822 12.00

Real estate mortgageresidential 2535 7.37 2570 6.66 1346 10.15

Consumer installment 6040 52.78 7.598 51.03 10994 46.35

Unallocated 1936 1096 1302
Total $27956 100.00% $28082 100.00% $30072 100.00%

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Allowance Allowance

Dollarc in thousands

Commercial 5587 25.07% 4.228 22.07%
Real estate construction 11042 17.66 2.776 20.32

Real estate mortgageresidential 599 8.32 562 6.75

Consumer installment 15364 48.95 8196 50.86

Unallocated 1099 795

Total $33691 100.00% $16557 lOO.00%

percentage of respective loan type to loans

Includes allowance allocated for real estatemortgagecommercial loans and SBA loans

Investment Securities

The levels of short-term investments reflect our strategy of maximizing portfolio yields within overall asset and liability

management parameters while providing for pledging and liquidity needs Investment securities other than the investment in FHLB
stock on an amortized cost basis totaled $264 million and $175 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively The increase

of $89 million in investments at December 31 2011 compared to December 31 2010 was attributable to managements decision to

better position the portfolio for future changes in interest rates and execute cash flow and capital risk rating strategies

In 2011 the Company made several investment purchases and sales in an effort to position the portfolio should overall

interest rates rise to provide for liquidity needs as the loan portfolio began to grow and to improve the risk based capital requirement

profile of the investment portfolio The Company sold five mortgage backed securities with an amortized cost basis of $32 million

The Company purchased $79 million in GNMA mortgage backed securities and $93 million in FHLB callable debt In addition the

Bank purchased the investment portfolio from Decatur First Bank in an FDIC-assisted transaction which totaled $42 million at

December 31 2011 and consisted primarily of agency mortgage-backed securities

Decreasing the size of the investment portfolio were principal paydowns on mortgage-backed securities of $29 million and

$64 million in calls on FHLR and FNMA securities

The estimated weighted average life of the securities portfolio was 4.07 years at December 31 2011 compared to 6.0 years at

December 31 2010 At December 31 2011 approximately $255 million based on the amortized cost of investment securities were
classified as available-for-sale compared to $161 million based on the amortized cost at December 31 2010 The net unrealized gain
on these securities available-for-sale at December 31 2011 was $6.0 million before taxes compared to net unrealized gain of
$738000 before taxes at December31 2010

At December 31 2011 and 2010 we classified all but $6.0 million and $14.1 million respectively of our investment
securities as available-for-sale We maintain relatively high percentage of our investment portfolio as available-for-sale for possible

liquidity needs related primarily to loan production while held-to-maturity securities are primarily utilized for pledging as collateral

for public deposits and other borrowings
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December 31
2010 2009

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

_________ _________
Cost Value Cost Value

In thousands

U.S Treasury securities and obligations of US
Government corporations and agencies

62197 62700 26135 26336 63674 63119

Municipal securities 19124 19714 11705 11330 11706 11407

Mortgage backed securities-agency 182900 179005 137010 138738 80966 82333

Total $264311 $261419 $174850 $176404 $156346 $156859

The following table depicts the maturity distribution of investment securities and average yields as of December 31 2011 and

2010 All an-bunts are categorizedby their expected repricing date The expected maturities may differ from the contractual

maturities of mortgage backed securities because the moftgage holder of the underlying mortgage loans has1he right to prepay their

mortgage loans without prepayment penalties The expected maturities may differ from the contractual maturities of callable agencies

and municipal securities because the issuer has the right to redeem the callable security at predetermined prices at specified times prior

to maturity

Maturity Distribution of Investment Securities and Average Yields1

December 31 2011

Amortized Fair Average Amortiied

Cost Value Yield1 Cost

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2010

Fair Average

Value Yield

Total deposits increased $258.3 million or 16.0% during 2011 to $1 .872 billion at December 31 2011 from $1.61 billion at

December 31 2010 due to an increase in interest-bearing demand deposits of $99.4 million or 23.2% to $527.0 million an increase in

noninterest bearing demand deposits of $84.0 million or 45.2% to $2696 million and an increase in time deposits $100000 and over

Distribution of Investment Securities

2011

Amortized

Cost

Fair

Value

yaj1oe
U.S Treasury securities and obligations of U.S

Government corporations and agencies

Jin less thaqeyear 2100
Due after one year through five years 37975

Due five years through ten yetk 1002

Due after ten years 2220

Municipal securities

DueinIesstl1nQe year

Due after one year through five years

Due five yaiThrough tGii years

Due after ten years

38292

1036

2313

7$O

11013

5849

1512

11302

1580

2.10%

1.93

3.06

3.21

6.61

5.41

6.29

6.99

114

2.76

332

10000

16135

5592

6113

118958

3942

$160740

Mortgage backed securities

Due after one year through five years

bfieyeact1f ugh ten9ea

Held-to-Maturity

lrtgge ba1cedcuriiies

Due in less than one year

Due after one year thoug1iiyears

10039

16297

5482

5848

119962

3850

$161478

1785

14926

1.80%

2.32

6.01

6.16

3.44

3.83

4.09%

47

22

166085

8007

$255435

8076

8876

22

170829

8154

$261419

962
9662

Weighted average yields are calculated on the basis of the carrying value of the security

Interest income includes the effects of taxable equivalent adjustments of $279000 in 2011 and $242000 in 2010

Deposits

1770

4.90 12340

14110
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of $82.8 million or 33.6% to $329.2 million Savings deposits decreased $8.8 million or 2.2% to $389.2 million The Bank acquired

Decatur First Bank in an FDIC-assisted transaction in the fourth quarter of 2011 and at December 31 2011 had $18.5 million in

noninterest beanng demand deposits $58 million in interest bearing deposits $2 million in savings $26 million in time deposits

$100000 an4 over and $29.1 million in other time deposits resulting from that acquisition As interest rates stabilized at historically

low levels in 2011 many customers fØariii1ôcking in low certificate of deposit rates put their money into money market accounts

which pay competitive rates but allow the depositor the flexibility to access the funds when necessary The increase in noninterest

bearing demand deposits was in part due to all increase in the number of transaction accounts as the result of continued benefits from

the transaction account acquisition initiative continued in 2011 and in part due to unlimited deposit insurance
coverage

available

through December 31 2012 for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts through implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act

Management priced time deposits $100000 and over very competitively in 2011 to encourage customers to extend maturities allowing

the Bank to take advantage of the historically low deposit interest rates

Average interest-bearing deposits during 2011 increased $106.0 million or 7.6% over 2010
average

balances to $1 .499

billion The average balance of savings deposits decreased $77 million to $407.9 million while the average balance of interest-

bearing demand deposits increased $94.6 million to $439.2 million and the average balance of time deposits increased $19.0 million

to $652.3 million Core deposits obtainedfrom brOad range of customers and our largest source of funding consist of all interest-

bearing and noninterest-bering deposits except time deposits over $100000 and brokered deposits Brokered deposits decreased

from $62.5 million at Decenlber 31 2010 to$19.2million atDecember 31 2011 and are included in other time deposit balances in

the consolidated balance sheets As core deposits.grew during 2011 higher cost maturing brokered certificates of deposit were

allowed to mature withoutbeing replaced The average balance of interest-bearing core deposits was $1 163 billion and $1 .070 billion

during 2011 and 2010 respectively

Noninterest-bearing deposits are comprised of certain business accounts including correspondent bank accounts and escrow

deposits as well as individual accounts Average noninterest-bearing demand deposits totaling $219.4 million represented 15.9% of

average core deposits in 2011 compared to an average balance of $169.1 million or 13.7% in 2010 The average amount of and

average rate paid on deposits by category for he periOds shownare presented in the following table

Selected Statisticalinformation for Deposits

December 31

Average

Amount
Average

Rate Amount Rate

2009

Average

Amount Rate

Maturity Distribution of Time Deposits

Dollars in thousands

Threemnths or less

Over three through six months

Oyer six throllglU2 notflh

Over one thropgh two years

Over two Thr thie yea
Over three through four years

Over four through ve years

Over five
years

Total

Short-Term Debt

December 312011

$100000 or

Other M.ore Total

In thousands

71946 50095 $122041

66656 71791 138447

89258

54443 40199 94642

44 45271

44007 67197 111204

5542 3Z7 S69
10 10

$356649 $329069 $685718

There were four FHLB short-term borrowiligs at December 31 2011 totaling $34.5 million which were drawn on

collateralized line with 120 million maturing January 2012 at rate of 14% $5.0 million maturing March12 2012 at 3.29%

2011 2010

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 21fl -44 169120 142656

Interest-bearing demand deposits 439243 0.53 344607 0.87 236819 1.18

Savings deposits 407865 0.78 415516 1.39 33865 2.09

Time deposits 65243 1.65 633374 2.32 829229 3.48

TotaLavjdeposits I71881 G9 $1562617 1.50 250
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$2.5 million maturing April 2012 at rate of 3.24% and $15.0 million maturing April 13 2012 at rate of 2.56% There were no

FHLB short-term borrowings at December 31 2010 All FHLB advances are collateralized with qualifying residential home equity

and commercial real estate mortgage loans and from time to time agency notes or agency mortgage backed securities

Other short-term borrowings totaled approximately $18.6 million and $33.0 million at.December .31 2011 and 2010

respectively consisting of the FHLB short-term borrowings listed above and $18.6 million and $20.8 million respectively in

overnight repurchase agreements primarily with commercial customers at an average
rate of 0.23% and 0.47% respectively In

addition at December 31 2010 the Bank had $12.2 million in SBA secured borrowings at 5.07% These borrowings result from

transfers of SBA loans to third parties in which the Bank makes certain representations and warranties effective for 90 days from the

date of transfer When the 90 day period expires the secured borrowing is reduced loans are reduced and gain or loss on sale is

recorded in SBA lending activities in the Consolidated Statement of Operations There were no SBA secured borrowings at December

31 2011

There were no Federal funds purchased outstanding at December 31 2011 or December 2010

Schedule of Short-Term Borrowings

Weighted

Maximum Average Average Interest

Outstanding at Average Interest Rate Ending Rate at Year-

Years Ended December 31 Any Month-End Balance During Yearfl Balance End

Dollars in thousands

20111 5308 $41871 .t64% $Q81
2010 58999 37669 2.71 32977 2.17

524147 344 Jr 41L86 234

Consists of Federal funds purchased securities soldunder agreements to repurchase long-term borrowings within year to maturity and borrowings from the

FHLB that mature either overnight or on remaining fixed maturity not to exceed one year

Subordinated Debt and Other Long-Term Debt

The Company had $120.0 million and $142.5 million of subordinated debt and other long-term debt outstanding at December

31 2011 and 2010 respectively At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company had $67.5 million in trust preferred securities

classified as subordinated debt including $2.0 million in subordinated debt incurred to acquire stock in the trust preferred subsidiaries

The Company also had $52.5 million and $75.0 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively in long-term Federal Home

Loan Bank Advances

The $22.5 million or 15.8% decreasein long-term debt at Decthber 31 2011 compared-to December 31 2010 is result of

the reclassification of three FHLB advances totaling $22.5 million from long-term borrowings to short-term borrowings $5.0

million 3.29% FHLB advance maturing March 12 2012 $2.5 million 3.25% FHLB advance maturing April 2012 and $15.0

million 2.56% FHLB advance maturing April 13 2012 were reclassified during 2011

On March 12 2008the Company entered into $5.0 million five year -HLBEuropean convertible advance collateralized

with pledgedqualifying
real estate loans andinaturing March .12 2013 The advance had an interest rate of 2.395% at December 31

2010 The FHLB had the one-time optiOn on March 12 2010 to convert the interest rate from fixed rate to variable rate based on

three-month LIBOR plus spread charged by the FHLB to its members for an adjustable rate credit advance with the same remaining

maturity but did not exercise this option

On March 12 2008 the Company entered into $5.0 million five year
FHLB European convertible advance collateralized

with pledged qualifying real estate loans and maturing March 12 2013 The advance had an interest rate of 2.79% at December 31

2010 The FHLB has the-one-time option on Marth 14 2011 to convert the interest rate from fixed rate to variable rate based on

three-month LIBOR plus spread charged by the FHLB to its members for-an adjustable rate credit advance with the same remaining

maturity but did not exercise this option

On April 2008 the Company entered into -a $2.5 million five year FHLB European convertible advance collateralized with

pledged qualifying real estate loans and maturingApril 2013 The advance had aninterest rate of 2.40% at December 31 2010

The FHLB had the one-time option on April 2010 to convert the interest rate from fixed rate to variable rate based on three-

month LIBOR plus spread charged by the FHLB to its members for an adjustable rate credit advance with the same remaining

maturity but did not exercise this option

On November 2007 the Company entered into $25.0 million three year FHLB European Convertible Advance

collateralized with pledged qualifying real estate loans and maturing November 2010 The interest rate on the advance was
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originally at 4.06% and had aone-tiine FHLB conversion optinn in Novemberof 2008 In 2010 this advance was restructured to

extend the maturity date to July 16 2013 and lower the interest rate to 1.76%

If the Bank should decide to prepay any of the convertible advances above prior to conversion by the FHLB it will be subject
to prepayment penalty However should the FHLB receive compensation from its hdge parties upon prepayment that

compensation would he payable to the Bank less an administrative fee Also should the FHLB decide to exercise its.option to convert
the advances to variable rate the Bank can.prepaythe advance on the conversion date and each quarterly interest payment date

thereafter with no prepayment penalty

On March 2009.the Company entered intoa $15.0 million four year FHLB Fixed Rate advance collateralized with

pledged qualifying real estate loans aid maturing March 11 2013 The advance had an interest rate of 2.90% at December 31 2010

On August 20 2007 the Company issued $20.0 million in fixed-floating rate capital securities of Fidelity Southern Statutory
Trust III with liquidation value of $1000 pet security Interest is fixed at 6.62% .for five years and then converts to floating rate
which will adjust quarterly at rate per annum equal to the three-month LIBOR plus 1.40% The issuance has final maturity of 30

years but may be redeemed with
regulatory approval at any distribution payment date on or after September 15 2012 or atany time

upon certain events such as change in the regulatory treatment of the trust preferred securities at the redemption price of 100% plus
accrued andunpaid interest if any

On March 17 2005the Company issued $10.0 million in floatingrate capital securities of Fidelity Southern Statutory Trust

II with liquidation value .of$1000 per security Interest.is adjnsted quarterly at rate
per annum equal to the three-month LIBOR

plus 1.89% The capital securities had an initial rate of 4.87% nd rate 2.45% anl 2.19% at liecember 31 2011 and December

31 2010 respectively The issuance has flna1 maturity of 30
years but may be redeemed at any distribution payment date on or

after March 17 2010 at the redemption priceof 100%

On June 26 2003 the Company issued $15.0 million in Floating Rate Capital Securities of Fidelity Southern Statutory Trust
with liquidation value of $1000 per security Interest is adjusted quarterly at rate per annum equal to the three-month LIBOR

plus 3.10% The capital securities had an initial rate of 4.16% with the provision that prior to June 26 2008 the rate will not exceed

11.75% The rates in effect on December 31 2011 and 2010 were 3.67% and 3.40% respectively The issuance has final maturity
of 30 years but may be redeemed at any distribution payment date on or after June 26 2008 at the redemption price of 100%

On July 27 2000 the Company issued $100 million of 11.045% Fixed Rate Capital Trust Ireferred Securities of Fidelity

National Capital Trust with liquidation value of $1000 per share On March 23 2000 we issued $10.5 million of 0875% Fixed

Rate Capital Trust Pass-through Securities of FNC Capital Trust Iwith liquidation value.of $1000 per share Both issues have 30

year final thaturities and are redeemable in whole onin part after ten years at declining redemption prices to 100% after 20 years

The trust preferred securities were sold in private transactions exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended the Act and were not registered under the Act The trust preferred securities are included in Tier capital by the

Company in the calculation of regulatory capital subject to a.limit of 25% for all restricted core capital elements with any excess
included in Tier capital The payments to the trust preferred securities holders are fully tax deductible

The $65.5 million of trust preferred securities issued by trusts established by the Company as of December 31 2011 and

2010 are not consolidated for financial reporting pnrposesin accordance with FASB ASC 810-10-05 formerly known as FASB
Interpretation No 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities an Interpretation ofARB No 51 Revised Thus the equity
investments in the subsidiaries created to issue the obligations the obligations themselvesand related dividend income and interest

expense are reported on deconsolidated basis with the investments in the amount of $2.0 million at December 31 2011 and 2010
reported as other assets and dividends included as other noninterest income The obligations including the amount related to the

equity investments in the amount of $67.5 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 are reported as subordinated debt with related

interest
expense reported as interest on subordinated debt

On March 2005 the FRB.announced the adoption of rule entitled Risk-Based Capital Standards Trust Preferred

Securities and the Definition of Capital Rule regarding risk-based capital standards for bank holding companies BHCs such

as Fidelity

The Rule deflne the restricted corecapital elements including trust preferred securities which may be included in Tier

capital subject to an aggregate 25% of Tier capital net of goodwill limitation Excess restricted core capital elements may be
included in Tier2 capital with trust prefetred securities and certain other restricted core tapital elements subjectto a50%of Tier

capital limitation The Rule requires that trust preferred securities be excluded from Tier capital within five years of the maturity of

the underlying junior subordinated notes issued and be excluded from Tier capital within five
years of that maturity at 20%

per year
for each year during the five-year period to the maturity The Companys first junior subordinated note matures in March 2030
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Our only restricted core capital elements consist of $65.5 million in trust preferred securities issues and $2.3 million in other

identifiable intangibles therefore the Rule has minimal impact on our capital ratios our financial condition or our operating results

The trust preferred securities are eligible for our regulatory Tier capital with limit of25% of the sum of all core capital elements

All amounts exceeding the 25% limit are includable in the Companys regulatory Tier capital

In December 2010 the Basel Committee released its final framework for strengthening international capital and liquidity

regulation now officially identified by the Basel Committee as Base III Basel III when implemented by the U.S banking

agencies and fully phased-in will requirebank holding companies and their bank subsidiaries to maintain substantially more capital

with greater emphasis on common equity

Shareholders Equity

On December 19 2008 as part of the Capital Purchase Program Fidelity entered into the Letter Agreement with the

Treasury pursuant to which Fidelity agreed to issue and sell and the Treasury agreed to purchase 48200 Preferred Shares and

the Warrant topurchase up to 2266458 shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $3.19 per share for an

aggregate purchase price of $48.2 million in cash The Preferred Shares qualify as Tier capital under risk-based capital giiidelines

and will paycumulative dividends at rate of 5% per annum for the first five years and 9% per annum thereafter The Preferred

Shares are non-voting except for class votingrights on matters that would adversely affect the rights of the holders of the Preferred

Shares

Shareholders equity at December 31 2011 and 2010 was $167.3 million and $140.5 million respectively The $26.8

million increase at December 31 2011 compared to December 31 2010 was primarily the result of net income and capital

contributions offset by preferred.dividends paid during 2011

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements included elsewhere in this report for details of recently issued accounting pronouncements and their expected impact if

any on our operations and financial condition

Quarterly Financial Information

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated certain consolidated quarterly financial information This

information is derived from unaudited consolidated financial statements that include in the opinion of management all normal

recurring adjustments which management considers necessary for fair presentation of the results for such periods The results for

any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period This information should be read in conjunction with our

consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this report

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNAUDITED

2011 2010

Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

an thousands except per share data

Interest income $24205 $22959 $23091 $23445 $23899 S237 13 $24440 $23232

Interest expense 5126 5404 6046 6273 6420 7.276 8199 8.668

Net interest income 19079 17555 17045 17172 17.479 16437 16.241 14.564

Provision for loan losses 5300 4400 4850 5775 6975 025 1150 3975

Securities gains net 1078 .291

Noninterestincome 15681 9978 14094 11686 13593 11561 11248 6.507

Noninterest expense 23649 20415 20883 20475 20177 19979 18823 16994

income before income taxes benefit 5811 2718 5406 2608 3.920 2.994 7516 102

Income tax expense benefit 1979 608 1792 766 932 913 2647 93

Net income 3832 2110 3614 1842 2.988 2081 4.869 195

Preferred stock dividends 824 823 823 823 823 823 823 823

Net income loss1 available to common

equity 3008 1287 2791 1019 2164 1258 4046 628

Earnings loss per share

Basic earnings Iloss per share 0.23 0.10 0.23 0.10 0.20 0.12 0.37 0.06

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.21 0.09 0.21 0.08 0.18 0.10 0.34 0.06

Weighted average shares outstanding1 13288 13249 11896 11011 11004 10997 10956 10634

Adjustedfor stock dividends
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

See Item Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity for quantitative and qualitative discussion about our market risk

Item Financial Statements and Supplementaiy Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Fidelity Southern Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fidelity Southern Corporation and subsidiaries as

of December 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and

cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31 2011 These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Fidelity Southern Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31 2011 and 2010 and the

consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2011 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversighi Board

United States Fidelity Southern Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31
2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 27 2012 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

hw7LLP
Atlanta Georgia

March27 2012
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

53380

1493

2411

57284

261419

8876

7582

133849

1623871

27956

1595915

12279

28909

30526

9015

31490

57651

$2234795

269590

526962

389246

329164

356554

1871516

53081

67527

52500

2535

20356

2067515

45761

1481

517

47759

161478

14110

6542

209898

1403372

28082

1375290

19510

20525

7990

30275

51923

$1945300

185614

427590

398012

246317

355715

1613248

32977

67527

75000

2973

13064

1804789

2011 2010

Dollars in thousands

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks

Interet-bearjng deposIts with banks

Federal funds sold

Cash and cash equivalent

Investment securities available-for-sale amortized cost of $255435 and $160740 at December

31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Investment securities hel4-to-maturity fair vaue of $9662 and $14926 at December 31 2011

and 2010 respectively

Investment in FHLB stock

Loans held-for-sale loans carried at fair value of $90907 and $155029 at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively

Loans

Allow4nce for loan losses

Loans net of allowance for loan losses

FIMC indemnification asset

Premises and equipment net

Other real estate net

Accrued interest receivable

Bank owned life insurance

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Noi interest-bearing demand deposits

Interest-bearing deposits

Demand and moneymarket

Savings

Time deposits $100000 and over

Other time deposits
______________

Total deposits

Other short-term borrowings

Subordiiated debt

Other long-term debt

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred Stock no par value Authorized 10000000 48200 shares issued and outstanding net

of discount
46461 45578

Common Stock no par value Authorized 50000000 issued and outstanding 13323064 and

11054354 at 201 and 2010 respectively 74219 57542
Accumulated other comprehensive gain loss net of tax 3710 458
Retained earnings 42890 36.933

Total shareholders equity 167280 1405
Total liabilities and shareholders equity $2234795 $1945300

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Dollars in thousands except per share data

$86698

6777
225

93100

16309

685

4494

1361

22849

70851

20325

50526

4143

2613

24663

5891

8463

1315

1078

3273

51439

47525

3075

4504

2158

5690

7896

2581

11993

85422

16543

5146

11398

3293

8405

$87316

7790
178

23445

102

4502

1595

3056
64721

17125

47596

4284

2155

24478

44485

2435

1316

2291

1465

42909

42573

2721

4480

1878

4790

6995

3534

940O

75973

14532

4399

10133

3293

6840

$86909

10511

163

97583

3621
616

46$0

2121

4009
51574

284800

22774

.4413

20G5

14961

4229

1099

1280

5308

683

33978

33261

2721

4421

1617

4916

6859

3666

7101

64562

7810
3955
3855
3293

7148

0.69

0.69

142610
10426109

Interest Income

Loans including fees

Invernment securities

Federal funds sold and bank deposits

Total interest inôme

Interest Expense

Deposits

Short-term borrowings

Sbordinate4 debt

Other long-term debt

Tothi interest expense

Net Interest Income

Provision for loan 1oss

Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses

Noninieest Ineomer

Service charges on deposit accounts

Other fees and charges

Mortgage banking activities

Iidiret leirding activities

SBA lending activities

Bank owned life insurarne

Securities gains

Othr
Total noninterest income

Nonin.terest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits

Furnittire and equipment

Net occupancy

omuinication

Professional and other services

Qther real estate expense

FDIC insurance premiums

Other

Total noninterest expense

Income lass before inome tax expense benefit

Income tax expense benefit

Net income loss

Preferred stock dividends and accretion of discount

Net lncàme loss available to common equity

Earnings loss per share

Basic earnings loss per share

Diluted earnings loss per share

Wighted average shares outstanding Bsie

Weighted average shares outstanding Fully Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

%t 0Ai6 063

0.59 0.56

136963 .____________

13834867 12266302
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Preferred Stock Common Stock Income Loss Retained

Shares Amount Shares Amount Net of Tax Earnings Total

Baeembea 31OO8
Comprehensive income

ótioss
Other comprehensive income net of tax

Colflxehensive Io
Common stock issued and share-based compensation

under

Employee benefit plans

Dividend reinvestment plan

Aertioi o4iscoun1 jered stock

Preferred stock dividend

CoMmon stock dividejid

Cash paid for fractional interest associated with stock

dividend ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________ ______________

1aJajke Detamber 2009

Comprehensive income

income

Other comprehensive income net of tax

Comprthensie indonie

Common stock issued and share-based compensation

under

Ep1oye benefltpana

Dividend reinvestment plan

Accretion of distouliton preftred stock

Preferred stock dividend

otmon ttbckvidçnt

Cash paid for fractional interest associated with stock

dividend __________ __________ __________

B.Desembta31ZOU
Comprehensive income

etincozfle

Other comprehensive income net of tax

àzpreheiwive oMie
Common stock issued and share-based compensation

under

Employee beneflVp1ani

Dividend reinvestment plan

Sidckisoance

Accretion of discount on preferred stock

Prefcz4 stock dividen4

Common stock dividend

0a4 dividend ________ ________ ________ ________ __________ ________ ________

Balance December 312011 __________ __________ __________

See accompanying notes to consolidatedfinancial statements

In thousands

48 $43813 9658 S5l886

1397

142 566

67 181

883

197 709

1333 S3957 $136604

355 355
1397
5252

8113

2410
709

181

2410

48 44696 10064 53342 31711 J296E5

10 i0133

522 522

10655

197 590

304 2000

8112

211

48 45578 10776 42

.5911

2000

2410 2410
l0

45 3.93 1405lv

73

29

883

1i398

3252

fl5398

3252

196

14412

1S6

196

14412

883
241O 41O

278 1883 1883

______
Z4.

48 $46461 13323 $74219 $3710 $42890 $167280
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2011 2010 2009

In thousands

Operting Ac1Mtlt
Net income loss 11398 10133 3855
Adjustments to reconcile net income ioifount cash prçvidel by ed in oatin actiitiŁs

Provision for loan losses 20325 17125 28800
Depreciation amortizatio frenises aixtbe4uiiment 2092 14I0
Other amortization

3525 1967 1051
Ithaltment ofthe real estatn 9955 4154 3869
Share-based compensation 58 183 231
Proceeds from sale ofloans 1524325 l261O85 8477
Proceeds from acquisition of Decatur First Bank 9830
Proceeds froni sales of other real estate 16018 14157 17 198
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 61

Loans originated for resale 1419470 16 17420
Securities gains 1078 2291 5308ain on inatilth 28806 177 448
Gain on Decatur First Bank acquisition 1527
Gain on sale Qfpther real estate 851 721 6k
Gain on sales of premises and equipment 56
Net increase in cash value of bank owned life insurance 1flS 1217 1190
Net decrease increase in deferred income taxes 2060 3788 2560

Chaltgesin assets and liabilitiesWbich provided used cash

Accrued interest receivable 1025 158 260
Other assets

Accrued interest payable 438 1531 2534
Other liabilities 6933 55$ 1236

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 142380 32750 51273
Inestig Activida

Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale 170935 251435 215730
Purchase of investhnt inPHLB stock 1441 l45
Sales of investment securities available-for-sale 32781 94676 156383
Mataritis and call of investmptsecurities hól44prnaturity 5242 5flS 5479
Maturities and calls of investment securities available-for-sale 85983 134265 5665
Rednption of inyeatnent in FHLB stock 401 315
Net increase decrease in loans 187148 148563 38439
Capital itnprovements to other reaL estate 36 394 411
Purchases of premises and equipment 9252 3228 698
Net increase in cash from Decatur First Bank acquisition 3846

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 220559 169229 35642
Finaæeing Aetivities

Net increase in demand deposits money market accounts and savings accounts 89369 160616 303778
Net decrease in tithdepoaits 1028 1%735
Proceeds from issuance of other long-term debt 25000 30000
Repayment of othntjoægtenn debt 27500 27$oO
Increase decrease in short-term borrowings 14802 8893 13147
ProdŁedfrom iSSsi ofcnnistock 14736 1IO7 515
Common stock dividends paid 265
Preferred stock dividends paid 241O 241 2182

Net cash provided by financing activities 87704 78618 94726
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 9525 123361 79095
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 47759 171120 92025
Cash and cash equivalents end of year 57284 47759 171120

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow iaformation

Cash paid refunded during the year for

Interest
23288 32095 48542

Income taxes 9880 4431 352
Noncash transfers of loans to other real estate 35087 15935 27305
Acquisition of Decatur First Bank

Assets acquired 172285
Liabilities assumed 180588

Stock dividends 416 1589 709

Loans transferred from held-for-sale 10689 6546 9421
Accretion of discount on preferred stock 883 882 883
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 2011

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fidelity Southern Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries Fidelity Southern Corporation FSC or Fidelity owns 100% of Fidelity Bank the Bank and LionMark Insurance

Company LIC an insurance agency offering consumer credit related insurance products FSC also owns five subsidiaries

established to issue trust preferred securities which entities are not consolidated for financial reporting purposes FSC is financial

services company that offers traditional banking mortgage and investment services to its customers who are typically individuals or
small to medium sized businesses All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation The

Company as used herein includes FSC and its subsidiaries unless the context otherwise requires

The consolidated -financial statements have been prepared -in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

followed within the financial services industry In preparing the consolidated financial statements management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and revenues and

expenses for the period Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates Material estimates that are particularly

susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses the calculations of and
the amortization of capitalized servicing rights valuation of deferred tax-accounts the valuation of loans held-for-sale and certain

derivatives and the valuation of real estate or other assets acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans In

addition the actual lives of certain amortizable assets and income items are estimates subject to change Certain previously reported
amounts have been reclassified to conform to current presentation These reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net

income or shareholders equity or cash flows

The Company has five trust preferred subsidiaries which nre deconsolidated for financial reporting purposes in accordance
with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB.ASC 10-10-05 formerly known asFASB Interpretation No 46R
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities revised December 2003 an Interpretation of ARB No 51 The equity -investments in

the subsidiaries created to issue the obligations the obligations themselves and related dividend income and interest
expense are

reported on deconsolidated basis with the investments reported as other assets and dividends included as other noninterest income
The obligations including the amount related to the equity investments are reported as subordinated debt with related interest

expense
reported as interest on subordinated debt The Company principally operates in one business segment which is community banking

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash amounts due from banks and Federal funds sold Generally Federal funds are

purchased and sold within one-day periods

Investment Securities

In accordance with FASB ASC 320-10-15 formerly known as Statements of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No
115 Accounting for Certain Investments in D.ebt and Equity Securities our investment securities are classified in one of the

following three categories trading available-for-sale or held-to-maturity Trading securities are bought and held principally for the

purpose of selling them in the near term The Company does not engage in that activity Field-to-maturity securities are those

designated as held-to-maturity when purchased which the Company has the ability and positive intent to hold until maturity All

other debt securities not included in trading or held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale

Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at cost adjusted for the

amortization of premiums or accretion of discounts Unrealized gains and losses net of related income taxes on available-for-sale

securities are excluded from income and are reported as separate component of shareholders equity If fair value of debt security

is less than its amortized cost basis at the balance sheet date management must determine if the security has an other than temporary
impairment OTTI If management does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of security an OTTI has occurred
If managements intention is to sell the security an OTTI has occurred If it is more likely than not that management will be required
to sell security before the recovery of the amortized cost basis an OTTI has occurred The Company will recognize the full OTTI in

earnings if it intends to sell security or will more likely than not be required to sell the security Otherwise an OTTI will be

separated into the amount representing credit loss and the amount related to all other factors The amount of an OTTI related to

credit losses will be recognized in earnings The amount related to other factors will be recognized in other comprehensive income
net of taxes
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Purchase premiums and discounts are amcrtized or acereted over the life of the related investment securities as an adjustment

to yield using the effective interest method Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned Realized gains and losses for

securities sold are included in income on trade date basis and are derived ming the specific identification method for determining the

cost of securities sold

Loans and Interest Income

Loans are reported at principal amounts outstanding net of deferred fees and costs Interest income is recognized using the

effective interest method on the principal amounts outstanding Rate related loan fee income is included in interest income Loan

origination and commitment fees as well as certain direct origination costs are deferred and the net amoUnt is amortized as an

adjustment of the yield over the contractual lives of the related loans taking intoconsideration assumed prepayinents

For commercial construction Small Business Administration SBA and real estate loans the accrual of interest is

discontinued and the loan categorized as nonaccrual when in managements opinion due to deterioration in the financial position of

the borrower the full repayment of pflncipal arid interest is not expected or principal or interest has been in default for period of 90

days or more unless the obligation is both well secined and in the process of collection within 30 days Commercial construction

SBA and real estate secured loans may be returned to accrual status when management expects to collect all principal and interest and

the loan has been brought fully current Consumer loans are placed on nonaccrual upon becoming 90 days past due or sooner if in the

opinion of management the full repayment of principal
and interest is not expected Any payment received on loan on which the

accrual of interest has been suspended is applied to reduce principal

When loan is placed on nonaccrual interest accrUed during the current accounting period is reversed Intefest accrued in

prior periods if significant is charged off against the allowance and adjustments to principal made if the collateral related to the loan

is deficient

Impaired loans are evaluated based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans original

effective interest rate or at the loans observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

Impaired loans are specifically reviewed loans for which it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due

according to the terms of the loan agreement specific valuation allowance is required to the extent that the estimated value of an

impaired loan is less then the recorded investment FASB ASC 310-10-35 formerly known as SFAS No 114 Accounting by

Creditors for Impairment of Loan does not apply to large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans such as consumer

installment loans and which are collectively evaluated for impairment Smaller balance commercial loans are also excluded from the

application of the statement Interest on impaired loans is reported On the cash basis as received when the full recovery
of principal

and interest is anticipated or after full principal and interest has been recovered when collection of interest is in question

Allowance forLoan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established and maintained through provisions charged to operations Such provisions are

based on managements evaluation of the lOan pOrtfolio including loan portfolio concentrations current economic conditions past

loan loss experience adequacy of underlying collateral and such other factors which in managements judgment deserve

consideration in estimating loan losses Loans are charged off when in the opinion of management such loans are deemed to be

uæcollectible Subsequentrecoveries are added to the allowance

formal review of the allowance for loan losses is prepared at least monthly to assess the probable credit risk inherent in the

loan portfolio including concentrations and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses For purposes
of the monthly

management review the consumer loan portfolio is separated by loan type and each loan type is treated as homogeneous pool In

accordance with the Interagency Policy Statement on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses the level of allowance required for

each loan type is determined based upon historical charge-off experience current economic trends and other current factors

Additionally every commercial commercial real estate SBA and construction loan is assigned risk rating using established credit

policy guidelines Every nonperforming commercial commercial real estate SBA and construction loan 90 days or more past
due

and with outstanding balances exceeding $50000 as well ascertain other performing loans with greater than normal credit risks as

determined by management and the Credit Review Department Credit Review are reviewed monthly by Credit Review to

determine the level of allowance required to be specifically allocated to these loans Management reviews its allocation of the

allowance for loan losses versus the actual performance of each ofthe portfolios and adjusts allocation rates to reflect the recent

performance
of the portfolio as well as current underwriting standards and other current factors which might impact the estimated

losses in the portfolio

In determining the appropriate level for the allowance management ensures that the overall allowance appropriately reflects

margin for the imprecision inherent in most estimates of the range of probable credit losses This additional allowance may be

reflected in an tinallocÆted portion of the allowance Based on managements evaluation of the allowance for loan losses provision

for loan losses is charged to operations if additions to the allowance are required
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Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is adequate and appropriate While management uses available

information to recognize
losses on loans future additions to the allowance may be necessary

based on changes in economic conditions

or other factors and the additions may be significant In addition various regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination

process periodically review the Banks allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the

allowance based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination

Additionally contractually outstanding and undisbursedloan commitments and letters of credit have loss factor applied

similarto the outstanding balances of loan portfolios Additions to the reserve for outstanding loan commitments are not included in

the allowance for loan losses but instead are included in other liabilities and are reported as other operating expenses
and not

included in the provision for loan losses

substantial portion of the Banks loans is secured by real estate located in the metropolitan Atlanta Georgia area In

addition most of the Banks other real estate and many consumer loans are located in this same market area Accordingly the

ultimate collectability of substantial portion of the loan portfolio and the recovery of substantial portion of the carrying amount of

other real estate are susceptible to changes in market conditions in this market area

Covered Loans and Related Loss Share Receivable

Loans acquiredin FDIC-assisted transactions and covered under loss sharing agreements with the FDIC Loss Share

Agreements are referred to as covered loans Covered loans are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition exclusive of the Loss

Share Agreements No allowance for loan losses related to covered loans is recorded on the acquisition date as the fair value of the

loans acquired incorporates assumptions regarding credit risk In determining the acquisition date fair value of acquired impaired

loans and in subsequent accounting the Company generally aggregatespurchased consumer loans and certain smaller balance

commercial loans into pools of loans with common risk characteristics while accounting for larger balance commercial loans

individually Expectedcash flowsat the purchase date in excess of the fair value of loans are recorded as interest income over the life

of the loans if the timing and amount of the future cash flows is reasonably estimable Subsequent to the purchase date increases in

cash flows over those expected at the purchase date are recognized as interest income prospectively The present value of any

decreases in expected cash flows after the purchase date is recognized as provision for loan losses net of any expected

reimbursement under any Loss Share Agreements

FDIC indenmification asset is recorded at the acquisition date which represents the estimated fair value of reimbursement

the Company expects to receive from the FDIC for incurred losses on certain covered loans The fair value meaSurement reflects

counterparty credit risk and other uncertainties The loss share receivable continues to be measured on the same basis as the related

indemnified loans Deterioration in the credit quality of the loans recorded as an adjustment to the allowance for loan losses would

immediately increase the basis of the loss share receivable with the offset recorded through the consolidated statement of operations

in noninterest income Increases in the credit quality or cash flows of loans reflected as an adjustment to yield and accreted into

income over the remaining life of the loans decrease the basis of the loss share receivable with such decrease being amortized into

income over the same period or the life of the Loss Share Agreements whichever is shorter Loss assumptions used in the basis

of the loss share receivable are consistent with the loss assumptions used to measure the related covered loans

Upon the determination of an incurred loss the loss share receivable will be reduced by the amount owed by the FDIC

corresponding claim receivable is recorded in accrued interest receivable and other assets on the consolidated balance sheet until cash

is received from the FDIC

Loans Held-For-Sale

Loans held-for-sale include the majority of originated residential mortgage loans certain SBA loans and pool of indirect

automobile loans at December 31 2011 and 2010 The Company has the ability and intent to sell loans classified as held-for-sale and

the SBA and indirect automobile loans held-for-sale are recorded at the lower of cost ormarket on an aggregate basis Any loans

initially determined to be held-for-sale and later transferred to the held for investment portfolio are transferred at the lower of cost or

market We have elected to account for newly originated residential mortgage loans held-for-sale under FASB accounting standards

codification 825-10-25 which was previously known as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 159 The Fair

Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities For residential mortgage loans fair value is determined by outstanding

commitments from investors for committed loans and on the basis of current delivery prices in the secondary mortgage market for

uncommitted loans if any Adjustments to reflect unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of residential

mortgage loans held-for-sale and realized gains and losses upon ultimate sale of the loans are classified as noninterest income in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations For SBA loans fair value is determined primarily based on loan performance and available

market information For indirect automobile loans the fair value is determined based on evaluating the estimated market value of the

pooi being accumulated for sale based on available market information
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There are certain regulatory capital requirements that must be met in order to qualify to originate residential mortgage loans

and these capital requirements are monitored to assure compliance The Company was in compliance with these requirements at

December31 2011

Origination fees and costs for SBA and indirect automobile loans held-for-sale recorded at the lower of cost or fair value are

capitalized in the basis of the loan and are included in the calôulation of realized gains and losses upon sale Origination fees and

costs are recognized in earnings at the time of origination for newly-originated residential mortgage loans held-for-sale that are

recorded at fair value

Gains and losses on sales of loans are recognized at the settlement date Gains and losses are determined as the difference

between the net sales proceeds including the estimated value associated with servicing assets or liabilities and the net carrying value

of the loans sold

Capitalized Servicing Assets and Liabilities

The majority of the indirect automobile loan pools and certain SBA and residential mortgage loans are sold with servicing

retained When the contractually specific servicing fees on loans sold servicing retained are expected to be more than adequate

compensation to servicer for performing the servicing capitalized servicing asset is recognized based on fair value When the

expected costs to servicer for petfonning loan servicing are not expected to adequately compensate servicer capitalized servicing

liability is recognized based on fair value Servicing assets and servicing liabilities are amortized over the expected lives of the

serviced loans utilizing the interest method Management makes certain estimates and assumptions related to costs to service varying

types of loans and pools of loans prepayment speeds the projected lives of loans and pools of loans sold servicing retained and

discount factors used in calculating the present values of servicing fees projected to be received

No less frequently than quarterly management reviews the status of all loans and poois of servicing assets to determine if

there is any impairment to those assets due to such factors as earlier than estimated repayments or significant prepayments Any

impairment identified in these assets will result in reductions in their carrying values through valuation allowance and

corresponding increase in operating expenses

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment including leasehold improvements are stated at costless accumulated depreciation and

amortization Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 20 to 39 years for buildings and

three to 15 years for furniture and equipment Leasehold iinprovements are amortized using the straight-line method over the lease

term or estimated useful life whichever is shorter

Other Real Estate

Other real estate represents property acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure in satisfaction of loans

Other real estate is carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs Costs to complete houses foreclosed during

construction are capitalized Fair value is determined on the basis of current appraisals comparable sales and other estimates of value

obtained.principally from independent sources and may include an undivided interest in the fair value of other repossessed assets

Any excess of the loan balance at the time of foreclosure or acceptance in satisfaction of loans over the fair value less selling costs of

the real estate held as collateral is treated as loan loss and charged against the allowance for loan losses On monthlybasis

management reviews appraisals to determine if the current market value has changed since the effective date of the appraisal and

adjust the value through other expense as necessary Generally new appraisal is received at least annually Gain or loss on sale and

any subsequent adjustments to reflect changes in fair value and selling costs are recorded as component of income Based on

appraisals environmental tests and other evaluations as necessary superior liens if any may be serviced or satisfied and repair or

capitalizable expenditures may be incurred in an effort to maximize recoveries

Income Taxes

The Company files consolidated Federalincome tax return Taxes are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 740-

10-05 formerly known as SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes Under the liability method of FASB ASC 740-10-05

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates expected öapp1y to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are recovered

or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes

the enactment date valuation allowance is recognized if based onthe weight of available evidence it is more likelythan not

likelihood of more than 50 percent that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized All available evidence both

positive and negative is used in the consideration to determine whether based on the weight of that evidence valuation allowance is

required The weight given to the potential effect of negative and positive evidence will be commensurate with the extent to which it
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can be objectively verified In accordance with FIN 4as codified in ASC 740-10-05 the Company only recognizes benefit if it

determines the tax position would more likely than not be sustained in an examination

Earnings Per common Share

Earnings per share are presented in accordance with requirements of FASB ASC 260-10-05 formerly known as SFAS No

128 Earnings Per Share Any difference between basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share is result of the dilutive

effect of stock options and warrants

Share-based Cornpeisation

The Company accounts for share-based compensation under the fair value recognition provisions of FASB ASC 718-10-10

formerly known as SFAS No 123R Share-Based Payment whereby the fair value of the award at the grant date is expensed Qver

the awards vesting period

Fair Value

TheCompany. measures or monitors certain of its assets and liabilities on fair value basis Fair value is used on recurring

basis for certain assets and liabilities in which fair value is the primary basis of accounting Additionally far value is used on

nonrecurring basis to evaluate assets for impairment or for disclosure purposes Fair value is defined as the price that would be

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Depending on the nature of the asset or liability the Company uses various valuation tçchniques and assumptions when estimating fair

value which are in accordance with FASB ASC 820-10-35 formerly known as SFAS No 157 and FSP FAS 157-3 Determining the

Fair Value of Financial Asset When the Market for that Asset is Not Active when applicable

The Company applied the following fair
vaiue hierarchy

Level Assets or liabilities for which the identical item is traded on an active exchange such as publicly-traded

instruments or future contracts ..-

Level Assets and liabilities valued based on observable market data for.similar instruments

Level Assets or liabilities for which significant valuation assumptions are not readily observable the market

instruments valued based on the best available data some of which is internally developed and considers risk premiums that mrket

participant would require

When determining the fair value measurement for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be recorded at fair value the

Company considers the principal or most adyantageous market in which it would transact and considers assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability When possible the Company looks to active and observable markets to

price identical assets or liabilities When identical assets and liabilities are not traded in active markets the Cpmpany looks to market

observable data for similar assets and liabilities Neveitheless certain assets and liabilities are not actively traded in observable

markets and the Company must use alternative valuation techniques to derive fair value measurement

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-06 an update to ASC 820-10 Fair Value Measurements This update

adds new requirement to disclose transfers in and out of level and level along with the reasons for the transfers and requires

gross presentation of purchases and sales of level activities Additionally the update clarifies that entities provide fair value

measurement disclosures for each class of assets ançl liabilities and that entities provide enhanced disclosures around level valuatiOn

techniques and inputs The Company adopted the disclosure requirements for level and level transfers and the expanded fair value

measurement and valuation disclosures effective January 2010 The disclosure requirements for level activities were effective on

January 2011 The adoption of ASU No 20 10-06 had no impact on the Companys financial position and statement of income

In April 2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-18 Effect of Loan Modification When the Loan is Part of Pool That is

Accounted for as Single Asset which clarifies that modifications of loans that are accounted for within poo1 under Subtopic 310-

30 which provides guidance on accounting for acquired loans that have evidence of credit deterioration upon acquisition do not result

in the removal of those loans from the pool even if the modification would otherwise be considered troubled debt restructuring This

ASU is effective for modifications of loans accounted for within pools occurring in the first interim period ending after July 15 2010

This ASU did not have material impact on the Companys financial position and statement of income

In July2010 the FASB issued ASU No 2010-20 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the

Allowance for Credit Losses which amends Topic 310 to improve the disclosures that an entity provides about the credit quality of its
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financing receivables and the related allóance fdr credit losses As result of these amendments an entity is required to

disaggregate by portfolio segment or class certain existing disclosures and provide certain new disclosures about its financing

receivables and related allowance for credit losses For public entities the disclosures as of the end of reporting period were

effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15 2010 The disclosures about activity that occurs

during reporting period were effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning on or after December 15 2010 and are

included in Note

In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-02 Creditors Determination of Whether Restructuring is Troubled

Debt Restructuring which clarifies creditors determination of whether it has granted concession and whether debtor is

experiencing financial difficulties for purposes of determining whether restructuring constitutes troubled debt restructuring This

ASU was effective for the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15 2011 The adoption of this ASU did not have

material impact on the Companys financial position or statement of income The Company has made the
proper

disclosure in these

financial statement footnotes

In April 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-03 Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements which

removes from the assessment of effective control the criterion requiring the transferor to have the ability to repurchase or redeem

the financial assets on substantially the agreed terms even in the event of default by the transferee and the collateral maintenance

implementation guidance related to that criterion This ASU is effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after

December 15 2011 The Company does not expect the adoption of the ASU to have material impact on its financial position and

statement of income

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-04 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and

Disclosure Requirements in U.S.-GAAP and IFRSs which result in common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in

U.S GAAP and IFRSs by changing the wording used to describe many of the requirements in U.S GAAP and is generally not

intended to result in change in the application of the requirements This ASU is effective for the first interim or annual period

beginning on or after December 15 2011 The Company does not expectthe adoption of this ASU to hare material impact on its

financial position and statement of income

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income which gives an entity the option

to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income

either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or intwo separate but consecutive statements The ASU does not

change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income This ASU is effective for the first interim or annual period

beginning on or fter December 15 2011 The Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have material impact on its

finanôial iosition andstatement of income

Business Combinations

Oi October 21 2011 the Bank entered into purchase and assumption agreement with loss share arrangement with the

FDIC as receiver ofDecatiir First Bank Decatur First to acquire certain assets and assume substantially all of the deposits and

certain liabilities in whole-bank acquisition The Bank received cash payment from the FDIC of approximately $9.0 million to

assume the netliabilities

The loans and other real estate collectively referred to as covered assets acquired are covered by Loss Share Agreements

between the Bank and the FDIC which affords the Bank significant protection against future losses The acquired loans covered under

the Loss Share Agreements with the FDIC including the amounts of expected reimbursements from the FDIC under the agreements

are reported in loans andare referred to as covered loans New loans made after the date of the transaction are not covered by the

provisions of the Loss Share Agreements The Bank acquired other assets that are not covered by the Loss Share Agreements

including investment securities purchased at fair market value and other assets The acquired assets and liabilities as well as

adjustments to Tecord the assets and liabilities at fair value are presented in the following table
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Asst
Cash and due from banks

Irçries
Covered loans

P1LC ji1in jIdaiott a$st

Core deposit intangible

coed other fad tatu

Other assets

Toetsqurd

Lialitie

Deposits

FHL1Bat1ances

Other liabilities

Total lbjlit

As Recorded by

Fidelity

Pursuant to the terms of the Loss Share Agreements the FDIC is obligated to reimburse the Bank for 80% of losses with

respect to the covered assets The Loss Share Agreements applicable to single family residential mortgage loans provides for FDIC

loss sharing and Bank reimbursement to the FDIC fbr ten years The Loss Share Agreements applicable to commercial loans provides

for FDIC loss sharing for five years and Bank reimbursement to the FDIC for eight years

The reimbursable losses from the FDJC are based on the preacquisitionbook value of the covered assets as determined by

the FDIC at the date of the transaction the contractual balance of acquired unfunded commitments and certain future net directcosts

incurred in the collection and settlement process The amount that the Bank realizes on these assets could differ materially from the

carrying value that will be reflected in any financial statements based upon the timing and amount of collections and recoveries on the

covered assetsjn future.periods The purchasdassçts ançl liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated fair values on the date

of acquisition At the date of the acquisition of Decatur First Bank the estimated fair value of the covered loans was $79.4 million

and the estimated fair value of the covered other real estate was $9.5 million The expected net present value of the reimbursement for

losses to be incurred by the Bank on covered assets was $12.3 million The estimated fair value of assets acquired intangible assets

and the cash payment received from the FDIC exceeded the estimated fair value of the liabilities assumed resulting in pretax gain of

$1.5 million which is included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in other noninterest income

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System the FRB is the primary regulator of FSC bank holding

company The Bank is state chartered commercial bank subject to Federal and state statutes applicable to banks chartered under the

banking laws of the State of Georgia and to banks whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the

FDIC the Banks primary Federal regulator The Bank is wholly-owned subsidiary of FSC The FRB the FDIC and the

Georgia Department of Banking and Finance the GDBF have established capital adequacy requirements as function of their

oversight of bank holding companies and state chartered banks Each bank holding company and each bank must maintain certain

minimum capital ratios

The Banks primary Federal regulator is the FDIC and the GDBF is its state regulator The FDIC and the GDBF examine

and evaluate the financial condition operations and policies and procedures of state chartered commercial banks such as the Bank as

part of their legally prescribed oversight responsibilities Additional supervisory powers and regulations mandated by the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 FDICIA include prompt corrective action program based upon five

regulatory categories for banks in which all banks are placed largely based on their capital positions Regulatorsare permitted to take

increasingly harsh action as banks financial condition declines Regulators are also empowered to place in receivership or require

Regulatory Matters

As Recorded by

FDICfDecatur Fair Value

First Adjustments

In thousands

$33676
4214
94730 15306

IZ79
1002

14426 4961
3545 594

$y11 I48

$169927

tooo
182 177

33676

4Z7
79424

1227
1002

945
2951

$169927

359

From the date of acquisition to December 31 2011 the revenue contribution of Decatur First Bank was approximately $1.2

million Net Interest Income plus Noninterest Income The pretax net income contribution for the same period was approximately

$725000 The reyenue and net income figures do not include any adjustments related to the purchase accounting for the acquisition

Proformacornpaiative revenue for the combined Fidelity Bank and Decatur First Bank was $127.9 million $113.1 million and $90.9

million forthe twelve months ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively Proforma comparative pretax net income for

the cbmbined Fidelity Bank and Decatur Pirst Bank was $11.7 million $6.5 million and net loss of$14.5 million for the twelve

months ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively
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the sale of bank to another institution when banks capital leverage ratio reaches 2% Better capitalized institutions are subject to

less onerous regulation and supervision than banks with lesser amounts of capital

To implement the prompt corrective action provisions of FDICIA the FDIC has adopted regulations placing financial

institutions in the following five categories based upon capitalization ratios well capitalized institution has total risk-based

capital ratio of at least 10% Tier risk-based ratio of at least 6% and leverage ratio of at least 5% and is not subject to an

enforcement action requiring it to maintain specific level of capital ii an adequately capitalized institution has total risk-based

ratio of at least 8% Tier risk-based ratio of at least 4% and leverage ratio of at least 4% or 3% if it received CAMELS

composite rating of and is not experiencing significant growth iiian undercapitalized institution has total risk-based ratio of

under 8% Tier risk-based ratio of under 4% or leverage ratio of under 4% or 3% in certain circumstances iv significantly

undercapitalized institution has total risk-based ratio of under 6% Tier risk-based ratio of under 3% or leverage ratio of under

3% and critically undercapitalized institution has leverage ratio of 2% or less Institutions in any of the three

undercapitalized categories are prohibited from declaring dividends or making capital distributions The regulations also establish

procedures for downgrading an institution to lower capital category based on supervisory factors other than capital

Capital leverage ratio standards require minimum ratio of Tier capital to adjusted total assets leverage ratio for the

Bank of 4.0% Institutions experiencing or anticipating significant growth or those with other than minimum risk profiles may be

expected to maintain capital above the minimum levels

The following table sets forth the capital requirements for the Bank under FDIC regulations and the Binks capital ratios at

December 31 2011 and 2010

FDIC Regulations

Adequately Well December 31

Capital Rapos1 CaitaJIzed Capit1ahzed
2011 2O40

Risk-Based Capital

Tier 4011 6.00 1L02

Total 8.00 10.00 12.73 12.89

The FRB as the primary regulator ofSC has established capital requirements as function of its oversight of bank holdmg

companies

Thefollowing table depicts FSCs capital ratios at December 31 2011 and 2010 in relation to the minimum capital ratios

established by the regulations ofthe FRB

-eember 312011 ..ecemb 31Z00
Amount Peice AinotIt Percent

Dollars in thousa1s

Tir4
Actual $215825 11.85% $178376 10.87%

Mfdium ____________ ___________ ___________
Excess $142950 7.85% $12751 6.87%

Total Risk-Based Capital

Actuj yfl 494 1i4 13.28%

Minimum- 145749 00 131249 800

___________ __________

--L
Actual 9.83% 9.36%

Minimum 400 4011

Excess 5.83% 5.36%

On March 2005 the FRB announced the adoption of Pile entitled Risk Bn1 Capital Standards Trust Preferred

Securities and the Definition of Capital Rule regarding risk-based eapital standards for bank holding companies BHCs such

as FSC The Rule provide for five-year transition pr4od -with an effective data of March 31 2011 but requires BHCs not meeting

the standards of the Rule to consult with the FRB and develop plan tocomply with the standards by the effective date
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The Rule defines the restricted core capital elements including trust preferred securities which may be included in Tier

capital subject to an aggregate 25% of Tier capital net of goodwill limitation Excess restricted core capital elements may be

included in Tier capital with trust preferred securities and certain other restricted core capital elements subject to 50% of Tier

capital limitation The Rule requires that trust preferred securities be excluded from Tier capital within five
years

of the maturity of

the underlying junior subordinated notes issued and be excluded from Tier capital within five years of that maturity at 20% per year

for each year during the five-year period to the maturity The Companys first junior subordinated note matures in March 2030

The Companys only restricted core capital elements consist of $65.5 million in trust preferred securities issues and $2.3

million in other identifiable intangibles therefore the Rule has minimal impact on our capital ratios financial condition or

operating results The trust preferred securities are eligible for our regulatory Tier capital with limit of 25% of the sum of all core

capital elements All amounts exceeding the 25% limit are includable in our regulatory Tier capital

Investment Securities

Investment securities at December 31 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows

in thousands

Securities available-for-sale at December 31 2011

Obligations of U.S Government corporations and

agencies 62197 502 62699
Municinal securities ctii in ii
Residential mortgage backed securities-agency 174.114 4.906 15 179
Total $255435 $5999 S15 $261419

Securities held-to-maturity at December 31 2011

Residential mortgage backed securities-agency 8876 786 9662

Securities available-for-sale at December31 2010

Obligations of U.S Government corporations and

agencies 26.135 201 336

Municipal securities 1705 20 395 1330
Residential mortgage backed securities-agency 122900 1557 645 123.812

Total $160740 $1778 $l040 $161478

Securities held-to-maturity at December 2010

Residential mortgage backed securities-agency 14110 816 14.926

The following table depicts the maturity distribution of investment securities and average yields as of December 31 2011 and

2010 All amounts are categorized by their expected repricing date The expected maturities may differ from the contractual

maturities of mortgage backed securities because the mortgage holder of the underlying mortgage loans has the right to prepay their

mortgage loans without prepayment penalties The expected maturities may differ from the contractual maturities of callable agencies
and municipal securities because the issuer has the right to redeem the callable security at predetermined prices at specified times prior
to maturity

Amortized

Cost

Gross Gross

Unrealized Unrealized

Gains Losses

Other Than

Temporary

Impairment Fair Value
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There were eight securities called during 2011 for total of $64.2 million In 2010 15 securities were called for total of

$115.7 million Five securities available-for-sale totaling $31.7 million were sold during the year ended December 31 2011

Proceeds received were $32.8 million for gross gain of $1.1 million 16 securities available-for-sale totaling $98.3 million were sold

during the year ended December 31 2010 Proceeds received were $100.6 million for gross gain of $2.3 million There were no

investments held in trading accounts during 2011 and 2010

The following tible reflects the gross unrealized losses and fair values of investment securities with unrealized losses at

December 31 2011 and 2010 aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in

continuous unrealized loss and temporarily impaired position

December 31 2011 Decernbr 31 2010

Amortized Fair Average Amortized Fair Average
Cost Value YieldUJ Cost Value YieldW

Do11a in liwusands

Avlla$%e-for-$ak

U.S Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S Government corporations and

agencies

Due in less thithone er
Due after one year through five years

Due five yeats through ten yeats

Due after ten years

Municipal securities2

Due in 1es than one year

Due after one year through five years

Due five years ihrôugli ten years

Due after ten years

Mortgage backed securities-agency

Due in less than one ynar

Due after one year through five years

dike five years tIrnugh ten years

Held-to-Maturity

Mottgag bactked securities-agency

Due in less than one year

Due ftØnue arthrough five eªs

21000 21058 tlbO% IOMOO lO9
37975 38292 1.93 16135 16297 2.32

1036 1.06

2220 2313 3.21

750 73 641

11013 11302 5.41 5592 5482 6.01

5849 6080 6.29 6113 5848 6.16

1512 1580 6.99

22 22 1.14

166085 170829 2.76 118958 119962 3.44

80O1 154 332 3942 3850 3.83

$255435 $261%419 $160740 $161478

17.70 1785 4.09%

81 966k 4.90 12340 1ij41 4.97

8876 9662 14110 14926

Weighted average yields are calculated on the basis of the carrying value of the securily

interest income includes the effects of taxable equivalent adjustments of $279000 in 2011 and $242000 in 2010
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Available-for-Sale at December31 2011

Obligations of U.S Government corporations and agencies

Miijpasccurities

Residential Mortgage backed securities-agency ____________ _____________ _____________ _____________
Ttal _______ _______ _______

Held-to-Maturity at Decembei3l 2011

Residential Mortgage backed securities-agency
____________ _____________ _____________

Available-for-Sale at December 31 2010

Obligations fU.S Oovertunent ptatios and agenciea

Municipal securities

Residential Mortgage baeiritiesgncy __________ __________ __________ __________
Total

_____________ _____________ ______________ ______________

Held-to-Maturity at December 31 2010

ReidenlMftgtge

If fair value of debt security is less than its amortized cost basis at the balance sheet date management must determine if

the security has an other than temporary impairment OTTI If management does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost

basis of security an OTTI has occurred If managements intentioti is to sell the security an OTTI has occurred If it is more likely

than not that management will be required to sell security before the recovery of the amortized cost basis an OTTI has occurred

The Company will recognize the full OTTI in earnings if it intends to sell security or will more likely than not be required to sell the

security Otherwise an 0Th will be separated into the amount representing credit loss and the amount related to all other factors

The amount of an OTTI related to credit losses will be recognized in earnings The amount related to other factors will be recognized

in other comprehensive income net of taxes

There were no investment securities in continuous unrealized loss position greater than 12 months at December 31 2011

Certain individual investment securities were in continuous unrealized loss position at December 31 2010 for 31 months At

December 31 2011 the Company had unrealized losses of $15000 related to six individual agency residential mortgage backed

securities

Also as of December 31 2011 management does not intend to sell the temporarily impaired securities and it is not more

likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of the amortized cost basis Accordingly as

of December 31 2011 management believes the impairments detailed in the table above are temporary and no impairment loss has

been recognized in the Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations

Investment securities with carrying value aggregating $143.7 million and $126.4 million at December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively were pledged as collateral as shown in the table below

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

Public depos4s 83699

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 21075
FHL3 athrances 2Oi49
Other

purposes ______________ 1444

Total
____________ $127

Loans

Loans outstanding by class are summarized as follows net of deferred loan fees and expenses of $2.4 million atid $1.1

million at December 31 2i 11 and 2010 respectively Legacy loans represent existing portfolio loans prior to the Decatur First Bank

FDIC-assisted transaction and additional loans made subsequent to the transaction

12 Months or Less More Than 12 Months

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses

In thousands

2012 15

21fl2 15

9491 280 929 115

529S3 64

$62474 $925 $29 $115

$1OL309

22093

284

$143686
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Legacy Loans

December 31
2011 2010

In thousands

Comercia1 oans 4017S0 4221
SBA loans 105604 94282

Ttal coinmrcial 1oan ó934T 4ig5i

Construction 89893 115224

IU4IrçUOaIIS

Installment loans 18215 20431

Total eonunier balls isoii ___________

Fith mortgage 1oa 33094 343
Second mortgage loans 58988 5994

Tta1 iortggelo 90$2 934
Total loans $4j$ ________

Decatur First Bank Acquisition

December 31
2011

In thousands

Commercial loans

SBA loans 7.77

Total commercial loans ______________

Qistruction 7817

1ndir loi
Installment loans 2115

Total consumer loans

Firstmogoieans 4218
Second mortgage loans 10346

To ortgageloaus
làt

Total loans 72

Loans held-for-sale at December 31 2011 and 2010 totaled $133.8 million and $209.9 million respectively and are shown

in the table below

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

SBWans 2469

Real estate mortgage residential 90907 155029

Unsmer installment loans 30$0 ___________
Total $133849 $209898

The Bank was servicing for others 16454 16037 and 18076 indirect automobile loans on December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively totaling $206 million $172 million and $201 million respectively The Bank was also servicing 254 SBA loan

sales or participations totaling $172 million at December 31 2Q11 172 SBA loan sales or participations totaling $105 million at

December 31 2010 and 137 SBA loan sales or participations totaling $79 million at December 31 2009 The Bank was also servicing

6071 residential mortgage loans for total of $1.3 billion at December 31 2011 compared to 2349 serviced for $523 million at

December 31 2010 and 377 serviced for $88 million at December 31 2009
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The following loans were pledged to the FHLB of Atlanta as collateral for borrowings

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

$85670 591
53247 51745

.15607 24
1065 1097

__________ $I6I826

Approximately $349 million and $316 million in indirect automobile loans were pledged to the Federal Reserve Bank of
Atlanta at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively as collateral for potential Discount Window borrowings

Loans in nonaccrual status totaled approximately $67 million $77 million and $70 million at December 31 2011 2010 and

2009 respectively The
average recorded investment in impaired loans during 2011 2010 and 2009 was approximately $91 million

$87 million and $113 million respectively If such impaired loans had been on full accrual basis interest income on these loans

would have been approximately $4.9 million $5.2 million and $6.8 million in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Year-end nonaccrual loans segregated by class of loans were as follows

Legacy Loans

December 31
2011 2010

In thousands

562 2269

16857 14024

22419 16293

54117

899 639

4057
____________

$60413 $76545

Cornnierci1 real estate 1oan

Home equity lines of credit

Residiit1ai 1-4 fanlily fltst motage loans

Multi-family first mortgage loans

Total

Cialoai
SBA loans

TcftmmereW I4
Costnjction

Installment loans

TW cnsmer katie

First mortgage iGas

Second mortgage loans

Total mottgag loans

Toj 1oans

Approximately $55 million and $58 million in loan balances were past due 90 days or more at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

104
508

1602

15l
112
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Decatur First Bank Acquisition

First mogage loans

Second mortgage loans

44

Totalloans

Loans totaling approximately $21 million and $16 million were transferred to other real estate in 2011 and 2010
respectively

Loans delinquent 0-89 days and troubled debt restructured and accruing interest segregated by class of loans at December

312011 and2OlOwereasfollows

December_31_2011
____________________________

Troubled

Troubled Debt

Restructured

Loans

___________ ____________ _____________
Accruing

Corn t-cia1 loans 9O48 645O $2fl5
SBA loans 849 698

Cinstiión bn 2498 IQ4
Indirect loans 2697 4936
Jnstaltifit loans 445 265 44444

Firstiportage
loans 2835 723

SecotMiiortgge 1ans 507

Total $18879 $10613 $10583 $9395

Troubled Debt Restructurings TDRs are loans in which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty and the

Company has granted an economic concession to the borrower Prior to modifying borrowers loan terms the Company performs an

evaluation of the borrowers financial condition and ability to service under the potential modified loan terms The types of

concessions granted are generally interest rate reductions or term extensions If loan is accruing at the time of modification the loan

remains on accrual status and is subject to the Companys charge-off and nonaccrual policies If loan is on nonaccrual before it is

determined to be TDR then the loan remains on nonaccrual TDRs may be returned to accrual status if there has been at least six

month sustained period of repayment performance by the borrower Generally once loan becomes TDR it is probable that the

loan will likely continue to be reported as TDR for the life of the loan Interest income recognition on impaired loans is dependent

upon nonaccrual status The Company adopted ASU 2011-02 Creditors Determination of whether Restructuring is Troubled

Debt Restructuring for the period ended December 31 2011

During the periods ended December 31 2011 and 2010 certain loans were modified resulting in TDRs The modification of

the terms of such loans included one or combination of the following reduction of stated interest rate of the loan or an extension

of the maturity date at stated rate of interest lower than the current market rate for new debt with similarrisk

The following table presents loans by class which were modified as TDRs that occurred during the three months and year
ended December31 2011 and 2010 along with the type of modification

ConrncpI 1nns

SBA loans

4Imrnex7iai

Contrtt

Indif1
Installmnt loans

44 444

Total consuner loaj ..44

December 31
2011

in thousands

$3565

63

44 _______
52

Debt

December 31 2010

Accruing Restructured Accruing

Delinquent Loans Delinquent

30-89 Days Accruing 30-89 Days

in thousands

932

3008

203
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Commercial loans

SBA loans

Con

Indirect loans

lnstallmpiit Igans

First mortgage loans

Seed ttadrtgage loans

Total

Troubled Debt Restructured Troubled Debt Restructured

During the Quarter Ended During the Year Ended

December 31 2011 December 31 2011

Interest Rate Term Interest Rate Term

In thousands

6250

2849

3164
20

701

Troubled Debt Restructured

During the Quarter Ended

December 31 2010

IntŁrØst Rate Term

Troubled Debt Restructured

During the Year Ended

December 31 2010

Interest Rate Term

In thousands

Commyoloans
SBA loans

onitn iQans

Indirect loans

nst1hnit4oan

First mortgage loans

Second mortgage loans

Total $10975 $923

Connnil 1oan
SBA loans

Construction loans

Indirect loans

Insttilhnent loans

First mortgage loans

Secotid rxiortgage loans

Troubled Debt Restructured

During the Year Ended

December 31 2011 and

Defaulting During

The Three

Months The Year

Ended Ended

December December 31
31 2011 2011

782
5731

4822
646

20

203 559

$6511 $19601

The Company had TDRs with balance of $23.6 million and $14.5 million at December 31 2011 and December 31 2010

respectively There were charge-offs of TDR loans of $2.3 million and $6.2 million for the quarter ended December 31 2011 and the

year ended December 31 2011 respectively There were charge-offs of TDR loans of $1.4 million and $2.1 million for the quarter

ended December 31 2010 and the year ended December 31 2010 respectively The Company is not committed to lend additional

amounts as of December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 to customers with outstanding loans that are classified as TDRs Charge

offs on such loans are factored into the rolling historical loss rate which is used in the calculation of the allowance for loan losses

$1 $24 $3296

1218

$200

546

392

$1348 $2462 $4514 $12984

3152

10i27

923 1239

$13279 $1239

The following table presents the amount of loans whih were restructured in the previous twelve months and which defaulted

within each period

In thousands

$3096

2849

363

Total

Note loan is considered to be in payment default once it is 30 days contractually past due under the modified terms
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There were $1 1600 in loans greater than 90 days de1inquent and still accruing at December 31 2011 There were no loans

greater than 90 4ays and still accruing at December 31 2010

LoatIsand allowanôe for loaii loss individually and collectively evaluated by portfolio segment for December 31 2011 and

2010 follow below

Three Months Ended December 31 2011

Commercial Construction Consumer Mortgage Unallocated Total

In thousands

Binigbalance $8323 9$4 7281 $2718 $145
Charge-offs 1112 3790 2352 73 7327
Rcoieries 377 22 _________ 6tJ

Nt Charge-offs 1111 3413 2129 72 6725
Proisin fr 1onlosses 171 Z071 888 11ft 481 5300

Ending Balance $9183 $8262 6040 $2535 $1936 27956

Year Ended December 31 2011

Commercial Construction Consumer Mortgage Unallocated Total

In thousands

Beghthhig bitlice 752 926 7598 S257 $1096

Charge-offs 2090 13494 5638 804 22026
Recovis 86 $96 $49 44 __________

Net Charge-offs 2004 12898 4789 760 20451
Povsqnjor1oan losses 355 11874 3231 725 840

Ending Balance 9183 8262 6040 $2535 $1936 27956

December 31 2011

Commercial Construction Consumer Mortgage Unallocated Total

In thousands

1tilivhul1y evaluated for impairment 1049 3481 220 1054 S804

Collectively evaluated for impairment 8134 4781 5820 1481 1936 22152

Thtal allowance r1ohsises 9183 8262 6440 2$35 $96 27956

Individually evsluated for impairment 40615 $39911 4066 4057 88649

Collectively evaluated for impairment 468739 49982 850994 88025 1457740

Acquired with deteriorated credit

quality 39986 7817 2115 27564 77482

Total loans $549340 $97710 $857175 $119646 $1623871

Three Months Ended December 31 2010

Commercial Construction Consumer Mortgage Unallocated Total

In thousands

Bgimiiba1anee $6657 $10470 8448 $1546 $1172 S28293

Charge-off 799 4745 1623 390 7557
.207 _________ 31

Net Charge-offs 794 4590 1416 386 7186
1669 3406 566 1410 697

Ending Balance $7532 9286 7598 $2570 $1096 $28082
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l3eginningbalance

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Net Charge-offs

Provision for loan losses

Ending Balance

Year Ended December 31 2010

Commercial Construction Consumer Mortgage Unallocated Total

In thousands

$5468 11436 10772 $1093 $1303 $30072

1264 11274 7086 656 20280
28 31 768r __________

1236 10913 6318 648 19115
3300 L763 3A44 2125 207 l7l$
7532 9286 7598 $2570 $1096 28082

December 31 2010

Commercial Construction Consumer Mortgage Unallocated Total

In thousands

Individually evaluated for impairment

Collectively evaluated for impairment

Total allowance for loan losses

Indidvaffiated fiWirnpairthent

Collectively evaluated for impairment

Total los

32f 96t9 484 4690
444222 45605 715701 88771

$478502 $15224 $7l85 $93461

109073

1294299

$1403372

The following is summary of activity in the allowance for loan losses

December 31 2009

Impaired loans are evaluated based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans original

effective interest rate or at the loans observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

Impaired loans are specifically reviewed loans for which it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due

according to the terms of the loan agreement specific valuation allowance is required to the extent that the estimated value of an

impaired loan is less than the recorded investment FASB ASC 10-10-35 formerly known as SFAS No 114 Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of Loan does not apply to large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans such as consumer

installment loans and which are collectively evaluated for impairment Smaller balance conimercial loans are also exclude4 from the

application of the statement Interet on impaired loans .is reported on the cash basisas received when the full
recovery

of principal

and interest is anticipated or after full principal and interest has been recovered when collection of interest is in question

Impaired loans by class for 2011 and 2010 are shown below

Imp oan bftowince
Commercial loans

SBAioais

Construction loans

Indiiecthaiis

Installment loans

First mortgage loans

Second mortgage loans

Ldans

l8tl8 5603 253 1221 8S
5724 3683 7345 1349 1096 19197

7532 9286 758 257W 09 28082

Balance at beginning dfyiar

Provision for loan losses

Loans charged-off

Recoveries on loans charged-off

B1ance at end of year

In thousands

33
28800

881

$WiZ

Decem6er 31 2011

Unpaid Amortized Related

Principal Cost Allowance

December 31 2010

Unpaid Amortized Related

Principal Cost Allowance

In thousands

8726 8721 860 $3138
$916 798 189

54967 37399 3481 68670
3526 S26 147 484

209 210 73

3050 2870 540 3047
27 837 514 586

$ii $6361 $84 $$3457

3108 $1307

444l SGI

50077 5603

4g4 253

3033 716

576 505

________
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Coa1loans

SBA loans

Conjn loans

Indirect loans

First mortgage loans

Secgç4

984

____________
97

___________
$7354

Year Ended December 31 2010

Cash basis

Interest Interest

Income Income

Average Recognized Recognized

Impaired on Impaired on Impaired

Loans Loans Loans

927
1_

4Jt

73

28

December 312011

Unpaid Amortized Related Unpaid

Principal Cost Allowance Principal

ImptIfans wttb AIlowaæ

Commercial loans $11064

SRk1
Construction loans 6951

Installment loans 1534Figg
Second rnoae loans 63iW

December 31 2010

Amortized Related

Cost Allowance

11041

19542

In thousands

$11024 $11053

16102

2512 21790

330

1c113

62 97

$50055

Amortized cost reflects charge-offs that have been recognized plus other amounts that have been applied to reduce net book balance

The average impaired loans and interest income recognized are summarized below

Year Ended December 31 2011

Cash basis

Interest Interest

Inonie Income

Average Recognized Recognized

Impaired on Impaired on Impaired

Loans Loans _Loans

In thousands

fl973 10 4112

19497 996 13835

23O7 373 66734

767 76 677

60 1105

2996 58 2608

4J ________________

$94186 $1633 $89490 $1559

The Bank uses an asset ality ratings system to assign numeric indicator of the credit quality and level of existing cräit

risk inherent in loan These ratings are adjusted periodically as the Bank becomes aware of changes in the credit quality of the

underlying loans The following are definitions of the asset ratings

Rating High Quality Loans rated are of the highest qualit/ This ategory
indudes loans that have been made to

borrowers exhibiting strong profitability and stable trends with good track record The borrowets balance sheet indicates strong

liquidity and capital position Industry outlook is good with the borrower performing as well as or better than the inistry Little

credit risk appears to exist

Rating Good Quality rated loan represents good business risk with relatively little credit risk apparent

lating Average Quality rated loan represents an average business risk and credit risk within normal credit

standards

Rating Acceptable Quality rated loan represents acceptable
business and credit risks However the risk exceeds

normal credit standards Weaknesses exist and are considered offset by other factors such as management collateral or guarautors

Rating Special Mention special mention asset has potential weaknesses that deserve managements close attention

If left uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the Tepayment prospects for the asset or deterioration in

the Banks credit position at some future date Special mention assets are not adversely classified and do not expose the Bank to

sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification

Rating Substandard Assets Subtandard Asset is inadequate1yprotected by the current sound worth and paying

capacity of theobligor or of the cqllªteral pledged if any Assets so classified will-have well-defined weakness or weaknesses that

jeopardize
the liquidation of the debt They are characterized by the distinct possibility

that the Bank will sustain some loss if the

deficiencies are not corrected
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Rating Doubtful Assets Doubtful Assets have all the weaknesses inherent in one classified Substandardwith the added

characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts conditions and values

highly questionable and improbable

Rating Loss Assets Loss Assets are considered uncollectable and of such little value that their continuance as recorded

assets is not warranted This classification does not mean that the Loss Asset has absolutely no recovery or salvage value but rather

that itis not practical or desirable to defer charging off this substantially worthless asset even though partial recovery may be realized

in the future

The table below shows the weighted average asset rating by class as of December 31 2011 and 2010

Weighted Average Asset Rating

December 31

2011 2010

Commercial 1oan 3.87 3.87

SBA loans
4.37 4.36

Construction loans 4.96 5.06

Indirect loans 3.01 3.03

Installment loans 353 3.56

First mortgage loans 3.09 3.05

Second mortgage loans 3.18 3.18

The Bank uses FICO scoring to help evaluate the likelihood borrowers will pay their credit obligationsas agreed The

weighted-average FICO score for the indirect loan portfolio included in consumer installment loans was 742 and 726 at December

31 2011 and 2010 respectively

The Bankhas loans outstanding to various executive officers directors and their related interests Management believes that

all oftheseloans were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms including interest rate and collateral

as those prevailing at the time for comparable transaptions with other customers and did not involve more than normal risks The

following is summary of activity during 2011 for such loans

Amount

In thàusands

Loan balances at January 2011 $4033

Additions

New loans 390

Less Loan repayments
337

Loan balances at December 31 201 $4086

Other Real Estate

There were write-downs totaling $5.0 million in 2011 $4.2 million in 2010 and $3.9 million in 2009 on other real estate

owned recorded in other operating expenses There were proceeds from sales of $1.9 million $14.1 million and $17.2 million from

other real estate owned by the Company in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively resulting in net gains on sales of $851000 $727000

and $68000 in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Real estate owned consisted of the following

Legacy

Commercial 8.559 5371

Residential 5000 6398

Lots 14968 15159

Gross other real estate 28527 26928

Valuation allowance 7469 6403
Total real estate owned

2011 2010

In thousands

December 31

$21058 $2525
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Decatur First Bank Acquisition

December 31
2011

In thousands

Residential 4571

Lots 2244

Gross other real estate 9468

Valuation 11owance

Total real estate owned $9468

Gains on sales and capitalized costs related to real estate owned are summarized below

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

In thousands

1qesoestateawned ______ _______
Capitalized costs of real estate owned 36 $395 $411

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are summarized as follows

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

LaM 48i 4$16

Bui1dins and improvements 27347 18432

p$eqttfpment ________ If738

53321 41986

1tctiu1ated dep eMibn and altlGrtizatiotl ____________
Premises and equipment net $28999 19510

Deposits

Time deposits over $100000 as of December 31 2011 and 2010 were approximately $329 million and $246 million

respectively Maturities for time deposits over $100000 as of December 31 2011 in excess of one year are summarized in the table

below

Amount

In thousands

May
One to two years

40J98

1woo three years
2O4S4

Three to five years
67524

Total
$128206

Related interest epense was approximately $5 million $5 million and $10 million for the years ended December 2011

2010 and 2009 respectively Included in demand and money market deposits were NOW accounts totaling approximately $93

million and $70 million at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Brokered deposits obtained through investment banking firms under master certificates totaled approximately $19 million

$62 million and $99 million as of December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively and were included in other time deposits

okered deposits outstanding at December 31 2011 were acquired in 2009 and had original maturities of 24 to 84 months Brokered

deposits outstanding at December 31 2010 were acquired in 2009 2008 and 2005 and had original maturities of 18 to 84 months
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The weighted average cost of brokered deposits at December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was 2.63% 3.45% and 4.30% respectively

and related interest expense totaled $1.2 million $3.6 million and $6.0 million during 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Short-Term Borrowings

Short-term debt is summarized as follows

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

12000

FHLffFbed Rnte credit Ad.vatice with intt 2112

FHLB Convertible Advnce with ititezest at 3.24% maturing April 2012

FHLI3 FixedRateCrditAdvance 1$OflG

SBA seeured bnowings at an average Othigt1th da __________ _________
total short-term birrowings $53081 $32977

Short-term borrowings mature either overnight or on remaining fixed maturity not to exceed one yetr Overnight

repurchase agreements consist primarily of balances in the transaction accounts of commercial customers swept nightly to an

overnight investment account All short-term repurchase agreements are collateralized with investment securities having market

value equal to or greater than but approximating the balance borrowed Term fixed rate advances with the FHLB are collateralized

with pledged qualifying real estate loans dail rate line ofreditadvance with the FHLB is line collateralized with pledged

qualifying real estate loans which may be increased or decreased dailyand may be drawn on to the extent of available pledged

collateral It reprices daily and bears rate comparable to that of overnight Federal funds

The Company had certain borrowings at December 31 2010 secured by SBA loans which are result of transfers of SBA

loans to third parties As seller the Company had made certain representations and warranties with respect to the originally

transferred loans and the Company has not incurred any material losses with respect to such representations and warranties

Consistent with the updated guidance on accounting for transfers offinancial assets because the Company warrants the borrower will

make all scheduled payments for the first 90 days following the sale of certain SBA loans all Sales were accounted for as secured

borrowings which results in an increase in Cash for the pr9ceeds of the borrowing and an increase in Other Short-Term Borrowings on

the Consolidated Balance Sheet When the 90 day warranty period expires the secured borrowing is reduced loans are reduced and

gain or loss on sale is recorded in SBA lending Activities in the Consolidated Statement of Operations During 201.1 this 90 day

warranty period was discontinued and the transfers were immediately recorded as sales

At December 31 2011 and 2010 the Company had collateralized line of credit with the FHLB which required loans

secured by real estate investment securities or other acceptable collateral to bbrrbw up to maximum of approximately $223 million

and $195 million respectively subject to availableqialifying pledged collateral At December3 2011 and 21O the Company had

contingent line Of credit collateralized with consumer loans with the Federal Reserve Batik of Atlanta Discount Window In

addition the Company had an unused term repurchase Une ayailable with another financial institution at December 31 2011 and 2010

the borrowing amount is dependent upon the market value of securities available to transfer and the agreed upon Buyers Margin

Amount as defined in the repurchase line The Company had securities with an aggregate market value of $3.2 million and-$602000

available under the repurchase line at December 31 201 and 2010 respectively Finally the Company had $62 million and $47

million respectively in total unsecured Federal funds lines available with various financial institutiofis as of December 31 2011 and

2010 The weighted average rate on short-term borrowings outstanding at December 31 20lj 2010 and 2009 was 1.30% 2.17%

and 2.74% respectively

FHL1 Fixed Rate Credit Advancç with i$i4$ n3tipg Januy 202

2500
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10 Subordinated Debt and Other Long-Term Debt

Subordinated Debt and Other Long-term Debt are summarized as follows

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

Subordinated Debt

Fixed rate 30-ear capital pass-through
securities with interest at 10.875% payable semi

annually redeemable in whole or part on or after March 2Ol0 at declining redemption

price ranging from 105.438% to 100% through March 2020 10625 10825

Fixed rate 30-year trust preferred securities with interest at 11.045% payable -semi-annuallY

redeemable in whole or part on or alter July 19 2010 at deciixiing redemptionprice

ranging from 105.523% to 100% through July 19 2019 10309 10309

Floating rate 30-year capital securities with interest adjusted quarterly at three-month LIBOR

plus 3.10% with rate at December 31 2011 and2OlO of 3.67% atid 3.40% respectively

With interest payable quarterly redeemable in whole or pact on çr after June 26 20084 at

redemption ptie of 100%
154464 15464

Floating rate 30-year capital
securities with interest adjusted quarterly at

three-nonth
LIBOR

plus 89% with fate at Decemb 31 2011 aid 2010 of 2.45% and 2.19% respectively

with intdrest payable quarterly
redethnable in whole or part on or aftefMarch 172010 at

redemption price of 100%
1-0310 10310

Floating rate 3-year capital ecurities with interest flied at 6.62% until September 15 2012

when theinterestxatewill become variable and adjusted quarterly at three-mouth LIBOR

plus 1.40% with interest payable quarterly redeenab1e in whole or part on or after

September 15 2012 at redemption price of 100% 20619 20619

Sllb9rdinated debt
67521 674527

Long-Term Debt

FHLB three year
Fixed Rate Advance with interest at .76% maturing July 16 2013 25000 251X0

FFIL four year Fixed Rate Advance with interest at 3.2875% thating Maràli 12 2012 5000

FIHLB tbre er FixedRateCied1t MV$IIG wh 6% ttaigAprt1 2012 15000

AO _________
$120027 $142527

flk4r

Long-ternt debt

Total subordinated debt and long-term debt
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Subordinated debt and other long-term debt note maturities as of December 31 2011 are summarized as follows

Amount

In thousands
2012

2013
52500

2014

2015

2016

.Thereafter
67527

Tothi
$l2Q027

The Company has five business trust subsidiaries that are variable interest entities FNC Capital Trust FNCCTI Fidelity

National Capital Trust FidNCTP Fidelity Southern Statutory Trust FSSTI Fidelity Southern Statutory Trust II FSSTII
and Fidelity Southern Statutory Trust III FSSTIII collectively the Trust Subsidiaries During 2000 FNCCTI and FidNCTI
and during 2003 2005 and 2007 FSSTI FSSTII and FSSTIII respectively issued common securities all of which were purchased
and are held by the Company totaling $2 million and are classified by the Company as other assets and trust preferred securities

totaling $67.5 million classified as subordinated debt which were sold to investors with 30-year maturities In addition the $2
million borrowed from the business trust subsidiaries to purchase their respective common securities is classified as subordinated debt
The trust preferred securities are callable by the business trust subsidiaries on or after defined periods The trust preferred security

holders may only terminate the business trusts under defined circumstances such as default dissolution or bankruptcy The trust

preferred security holders and other creditors if any of each business trust have no recourse to the Company and may only look to the

assets of each business trust to satisfy all debts and obligations

The only assets of the Trust Subsidiaries are subordinated debentures of the Company which were purchased with the

proceeds from the issuance of the common and preferred securities FNCCTI and FidNCTI have fixed interest rates of 10.875% and

11.045% respectively while FSSTI and FSSTII.have current interest rates of 3.67% and 2.45% respectively and reprice quarterly at

interest rates set at 3.10% and 1.89% respectively over three-month LIBOR FSSTIII currently has fixed rate of 6.62% until

September 15 2012 when it will be repriced quarterly at 1.40% over three-month LIBOR The Company makes semi-annual interest

payments on the subordinated debentures to FNCCTI and FidNCTI and quarterly interest payments to FSSTI FSSTII and FSSTIII
which use these payments to pay dividends on the common and preferred securities The trust preferred securities are eligible for

regulatory Tier capital with limit of 25% of the sum of all core capital elements All amounts exceeding the 25% limit are

includable in regulatory Tier capital in the aggregate amount of 50% of the sum of all core capital elements see Note

Regulatory Matters

The equity investments in the subsidiaries created to issue the obligations the obligations themselves and related dividend
income and interest

expense are reported on deconsolidated basis in accordance with the consolidation guidance in ASC 810-10-15
with the investments in the amount of $2 million reported as other assets and dividends included as other noninterest income The
obligations including the amount related to the equity investments in the amount of $67.5 million are reported as subordinated debt
with related interest expense reported as interest on subordinated debt

In November 2007 the Company entered into $25 million three year FHLB European Convertible Advance collateralized

with pledged qualifying real estate loans andmaturing November 2010 The advance bears interest at 4.06% with one-time FHLB
conversion option in November 2008 which was not exercised Under the provisions of the advance the FHLB had the option to

convert the advance into three-month LIBOR based floating rate adyance This advance was reclassified to short-term borrowings in

the fourth quarter of 2009 In 2010 this advance was restructured to take advantage of historically low interest rates The maturity
date was extended to July 16 2013 and the interest rate was lowered to 1.76%

On March 12 2008 the Company entered into $5.0 million five
year FHLB European convertible advance collateralized

with pledged qualifying real estate loans and maturing March 12 2013 The advance had an interest rate of 2.395% at December 312011 The FHLB had the one-time option on March 12 2010 to convert the interest rate from fixed rate to variable rate based on
three-month LIBOR plus sprad charged by the FHLB to its members for an adjustable rate credit adi/ance with the same remaining
maturity which it did not exercise

On March 12 2008 the Company entered into $5.0 million five year FHLB European convertible advance collateralized

with pledged qualifying real estate loans and maturing March 12 2013 The advance had an interest rate of 2.79% at December 31
2011 The FHLB has the one-time option on March 14 2011 to convert the interest rate from fixed rate to variable rate based on
three-month LIBOR plus spread charged by the FHLB to its members for an adjustable rate credit advance with the same remaining
maturity

On April 2008 the Company entered into $2.5 million five
year FHLB European convertible advance collateralized with

pledged qualifying real estate loans and maturing April 2013 The advance had an interest rate of 2.40% at December 31 2011
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The FHLB had the one-time option on April 2010 to convert the interest rate from fixed rate to variable rate based on three-

month LIBOR plus spread charged by the FHLB to its members for an adjustable rate credit advance with the same remaining

maturity which it did not exercise

On March 2009 the Company entered into $15 million four year FHLB Fixed Rate advance collateralized with pledged

qualifring real estate loans and maturing March 11 2013 The advance had an interest rate of 2.90% at December 31 2011

If the Bank should decide to prepay any of the convertible advances above prior to conversion by the FHLB it will be subject

to prepayment penalty However should the FHLB receive compensation from its hedge parties upon prepayment that

compensation would be payable to the Bank less an administrative fee Also should the FHLB decide to exercise its option to convert

the advances to variable rate the Bank can prepay
the advance on the conversion date and each quarterly interest payment date

thereafter with no prepayment penalty

There was no indebtedness to directors executive officers or principal holders of equity securities in excess of 5% of

shareholders equity at December31 2011 or 2010

11 Income Tax

Income tax expense benefit attributable to pretax income consists of

Current Deferred Total

In thousands

Year ended December 31 2011

6425 $1294 5131Federal

409 394 15
State

6834 $1688 5146

Year ended December 312010
188 $3620 $4568Federal

169 169State

8188 $3789 $4399

Year ended December 31 2009

Federal 5833 3241 $2592

State 683 680 1363
6516 2561 $3955

Income tax expense differed from amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate to pretax income

as result of the following

2011 2010 2009

Amount ______ Amount Amount

Dollars in thousands

Taxes at statutory rat $5790 35.0% $5086 35.0% $2655 34.0%

Increase reduction in income taxes resulting from

State income tax expense net of Federal income
11fl flSi gqq 11.5

toeiieIit Lax .. ..
Cash surrender value of life insurance 378 2.3 394 2.7 341 4.4

Tax exempt income 245 1.5 244 1.7 295 3.8

Other net 30 0.2 61 0.5 235 3.1

Income tax benefit expense $5146 31.1% $4399 30.3% $3955 50.6%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

at December 31 2011 and 2010 are presented below
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December 31

2011 2010

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

In thousands

Allbwaned ftuau loes $10511 $it2l5

Accelerated depreciation
1444

Deferred loan fees net 844 462

Deferred compensation 1458 1289

Other real estate 3129 2590

Deductible prepaids
266

State tax caryfQrwc1 686 1676

Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities available-for-sale 2274

Reseve for Smtgag1bans 24fl 992

Other 1607 928 964
_________

Total $Z1l3 $4912 $18ISS _________

There is no valuation allowance provided at December 31 2011 and 2010 for any of the deferred tax assets based on

managements belief that all deferred tax asset benefits will be realized At December 31 2011 the Company had $2.6 million in

gross state tax credit carryforwards which expire as follows $257000 in 2012 $373000 in 2013 $815000 in 2014 $411000 in

2015 $551000 in 2016 $40000 in 2017 $25000 in 2018 $40000 in 2019 and $43000 in 2020

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to the possibility of tax audit in numerous jurisdictions in the U.S until the applicable expiration of

the statutes of limitations For Federal and state purposes the Company is no longer subject to tax examinations by tax authorities for

tax years before 2006

Effective January 2007 the Cmpany adopted FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes which updated ASC

740-10-05 The reconciliation of our gross unrecognized ta benefits is as follows

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

Beginning balance

Gross increases to tax positions in prior periods

Gross creases to ta poitirns in prior periods

Gross inŁreases to current period tax positions

Reductipus due to expiration of statute of limitations ___________ __________

Ending Balance
__________ _________

Unrecognized tax benefits related to federal and state tax positions may decrease by range of $91000 to $314000 by

December 31 2012 due to tax years closing during 2Q12 The Company accrued approximately $314000 and $21000 for the

payment of interest at December 31 2011 and 201 0respectively For financial accounting purposes interest and penalties accrued if

any are classified as other expense There are no unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2011 that if recognized would impact

the Companys effective tax

12 Employee Benefits

The Company maintains 401k defined contribution retirement savings plan the Plan for employees age 21 or older

Employees contributions to the Plan are voluntary The Company matches 50% of the first 6% of participants contributions in

Fidelity Southern Corporation common stock For the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the Company contributed

$896450 $760083 and $566766 respectively net of forfeitures to the Plan

The Companys 1997 Stock Option Plan authorized the grant of options to management personnel for up to 500000 shares of

the Companys common stock All options granted have three to eight year terms and vest ratably over three to five years of

continued employment No options maybe or were granted after March 31 2007 under this plan

The Fidelity Southern Corporation Equity Incentive Plan the 2006 Incentive Plan permits the grant of stock options

stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units and other incentive awards Incentive Awards The maximum

number of shares of our common stock that may be issued under the 2006 Incentive Plan is 2250000 shares all of which may be

stock options Generally no award shall be exercisable or become vested or payable more than 10 years after the date of grant

841

294

280

44

21 71

318 20

70
$336 $21
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Options granted under the 2006 IncentivePlan have four year terms and vest ratably over three years of continued employment There

were no options granted during 2011 and 2010 under the 2006 Incentive Plan During 2011 the Company recorded charge of

$119000 related to 16768 incentive shares awarded to numerous individuals based on longevity These shares were immediately

vested On January 22 2010 Fidelity granted 154078 restricted shares of common stock under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan The

stock was granted at $4.50 per share vests 20% per year and will be fully vested after January 22 2015 Incentive awards available

under the 2006 Incentive Plan totaled 1705459 shares at December 31 2011

The
per

share weighted fair value of stock options is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing modeL Expected

volatilities are based on implied volatilities from historical volatility of the Companys stock The Company uses historical data to

estimate option exercise and employee termination within the valuation model All option grantees are considered one group for

valuation purposes The expected term of options granted is derived from the output of the option valuation model and represents the

period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding The risk-free rate period within the contractual life of the option is

based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant The fair values of the options granted were based upon the

discounted value of future cash flows of options using the following assumptions

Expected term of the options

Expeoted forfeiture

Expected dividends

Expected volatility

2011 2010 2009
/fl ----- -V --

summary of option activity under the plan as of December 31 2011 and changes during the year then ended is presented

below

_____

atTaiqryl D1
Granted

Exereisto

Forfeited

Qutstaxiding ateeinber 31 2011

Exercisable at December 31 2011

There were no options granted in 2011 and 2010 There were 334 options exercised in 2011 for an exercise price of$8.57

per share.- There were no options exercised in 2010 or 2009 There were no tax benefits realized from option expenses during the

years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009

summary of the status of the Companys nonvested share options as of December 31 2011 and changes during the year

then ended is presetited below

Weighted

Number of Average

share options
Grant-Date

Fair Value

Nonves44a1ry IAU
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

-- -- .-

summary of the status of the Companys nonvested restricted stock as of December 31 20.11 and changes during the year

then ended is presented below

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

$839

Weighted

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Term

Number of

share

options

42239

334

121000

37U0
370905

Aggregate

Intrinsic Value

857 --

18.70

5.30 1.50 $290000
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Number of

shares of

Restricted

Stock Grant Price

54çl78 -$4.50

Granted

Vested

Forfeited 10000 4.50

Nnvested at December 31 2011 J44078

As of December 31 2011 there was $416011 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based

compensation arrangements granted under the 2006 Incentive Plan The cost is expected to be recognized over weighted average

period of 3.1 years
The total fair value of shares vested during the years

ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $108000

$233000 and $236000 respectively The Company has policy of issuing shares from the Companys authorized and .unissued

shares to satisfr share option exercises and expects
toissue an insignificant amount of shares for share option exercises during 2012

13 Commitments and Contingencies

The approximate future minimum rental commitment as of December 31 2011 for all noncancellable leases with initial or

remaining terms of one year or more are shown in the following table

Amount

In thousands

202 2717
2013 2520

2014

2015 1263

2016

Thereafter 5513

Total l4677

Rental
expense

for all leases amounted to approximately $2851000 $2894000 and $2859000 in 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively net of sublease revenues of zero zero and zero in 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Due to the nature of their activities the Company and its subsidiaries are at times engaged in various legal proceedings that

arise in the normal course of business some of which were outstanding at December 31 2011 The Company evaluates any potential

loss contingencies based on information available including advice of counsel and assessment of available insurance coverage The

Company establishes accruals for litigation and claims when loss contingency is considered probable and the related amount is

reasonably estimable Individual accruals are periodically reviewed and may be adjusted as circumstances change

For certain matters hen able to doso the Company estimates loss contingencies for possible litigation and claims whether

or not there is an accrued probable loss Company estimates that it is reasonably possible it could incur losses in excess of amounts

accrued in an aggregate amount up to approximately $2 million as of December 31 2011 with it also being reasonably possible that

the Company could incur uo losses Due to the inherent unpredictability of outcomes of litigation and claims any amounts accrued or

included in this aggregate amount may not represent the ultimate loss and therefore may be significantly different than the amounts

accrued or included

The Bank was named as defendant in putative state-wide class action in which the plaintiffs allege that overdraft fees

charged to customers constitute interest and as such are usurious under Georgia law The case asserts claims for usury conversion

and money received for alleged injuries suffered by the plaintiffs as result of the Banks assessment of overdraft charges in

connection with its POS/debit and automated-teller machine cards used to access customer accounts Plaintiffs contend that such

overdraft charges constitute interest and âre.therefore subject to Georgia usury laws The Bank contends that such overdraft charges

constitute non-interest fees and charges under both federal and Georgia law and are otherwise exempt from Georgia usury limits

While it is difficult to predict or determine the outcome of these proceedings it is the opinion of management and its counsel that the

ultimate liabilities if any will not have material adverse impact on the Companys consolidated results of operations or its financial

position
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The Federal Reserve Board requires that banks maintain cash on hand and reserves in the form of average deposit balances at

the Federal Reserve Bank based on the Banks average deposits At December 31 2011 the available credits exceeded the reserve

requirement and only minimal balances were maintained to provide positive reserve balance

In 2007 the Company recOrded charge of $567000 pretax for its proportional share of settlement of the Visa litigation

with American Express reserve for the lawsuit between Visa and Discover Financial Services and the incremental liability for

certain other Visa litigation under our indemnification obligation as Visa member bank In 2008 this accrual was reversed after the

successful public offering of Visa stock As of December 31 2011 the Company had $152000 accrual recorded for its proportional

share of additional litigation expense related to its Visa indemnification obligation

14 Shareholders Equity

Generally dividends that may be paid by the Bank to FSC are subject to certain regulatory limitations In particular under

Georgia bankifiglaw applicable to Georgia state chartered commercial banks such as the Bank the approval of.the GDBF will be

required if the total of all dividends declared in any calendar year by the Bank exceeds 50% of the Banks net profits for the prior year

or if certain other provisions relating to classified assets and capital adequacy are not met At December 31 2011 and 2010 the

Banks total shareholders equity was approximately $205 million and $188 million respectively FSC invested no capitaLin the

Bank during 2011 and 2010 in the form of capital infusions

On December 19 2008 as part of the Treasurys Capital Purchase Program Fidelity entered into Letter Agreement Letter

Agreement and Securities Purchase Agreement Standard Terms with the Treasury pursuant to which Fidelity agreed to issue and

sell and the Treasury agreed to purchase 48200 shares the Preferred Shares of Fidelitys Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual

Preferred Stock Series having liquidation preference of $1000 per share and ten-year warrant the Warrant to purchase

up to 2266458 shares of the Companys common stock no par value Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.19 per share for

an aggregate purchase price of $48.2 million in cash The Preferred Shares qualify as Tier capital under risk-based capital guidelines

and will pay cumulative dividends at rate of 5% per annum for the first five years and 9% per annum thereafter The Preferred

Shares may be redeemed after December 19 2011 at the stated amount of $1000 per share plus any accrued and unpaid dividends

The Preferred Shares are non-voting except for class voting rights on matters that would adversely affect the rights of the holders of

the Preferred Shares

Pursuant to the terms of the Letter Agreement the ability of Fidelity to declare or pay dividends or distribute its common

stock is subject to restrictions As long as the Preferred Shares are outstanding dividend payments are prohibited until all accrued and

unpaid dividends are paid on such preferred stock subject to certain limited exceptions

Also under current Federal regulations the Bank is limited in the amount it may loan to its non-bank affiliates including

FSC As of December 31 2011 and 2010 there were no loans outstanding from the Bank to FSC

Earnings per share were calculated as follows

For the Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

In thousands except per share data

U98
3293 3293 3293

81On

12il6 1O456 97S6

264 443 670

__________________ _________________

1385 12266 10426

0.66 0.63 0.69

0.59 O69

Average number of shares for 2011 and 2010 includes participating securities related to unvested restricted stock awards

In January April July and October of 2009 the Company issued stock dividend equal to one share for every 200 shares

owned as of the record date In January April July and October 2010 the Company issued stock dividend equal to one share for

every
200 shares owned as of the record date In January and April 2011 the Company issued stock dividend equal to one share for

Nb4Jp$
Less dividends on preferred stock and accretion of discount

NnItssailtoshatuho1der

Averag cotumon shares outstanding

Effect of stock dividends

Ave

Average common shares outstanding dilutive

Earnings per
share basic



every 200 shares owned as of the record date. In January 2012 the Company issued stock dividend equal to one share for
every 60

shares owned on the record date Basic and diluted earnings per share for prioryears have been retroactively adjusted to reflect these

stock dividends as shown below

At December 31 2009 there were 2312128 ten-yearwarrants associated with the preferred stock issued to the U.S
Treasury under the TARP Capital Purchase Program to purchase shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $3.19

per share 10000 options at $16.01 11905 options at $16.80 7500 options at $18.47 129000 options at $18.70 and 350167 options
at $4.60 which would have been included in the calculation of dilutive earning per share except that to do so would have an anti-

dilutive impact on earnings per
share for 2009

15 Components of Other Comprehensive Income Loss

SFAS No 130 Reporting Comprehensive Income which updated ASC 220-10-05 establishes standards for reporting

comprehensive income loss Comprehensive income loss includes net income and other comprehensive income losswhich is

defined as non-owner related transactions equity The only other comprehensive inconie loss item is unrealized gains or losses
net of tax on securities available-for-sale

The amounts of other comprehensive income loss included in equity with the related tax effect and the accumulated other

comprehensive income loss are reflected in the following schedule

January 2009

Uuralize4majke4 isfor tliç pep4
Less adjustment for net gains included in income

December 31 2010

Uealizd market djutnnent for the prip4
Less adjustment for net gains included in income

December 31 2011

16 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Effective January 2008 the Companyadopted the provisions of SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements which
updated ASC 820-10-05 for financial assets and financial liabilities with the exception of the application to non-financialassets and
liabilities measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis such as other real estate This guidance establishes common definition of
fair value and framework for measuring fair value under U.S GAAP Fair value is an exit price representing the amount that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants The guidance
establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities level measurements and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs level measurements The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical unrestricted
assets or liabilities

Basic EPS previously reported

Effect of stock dividend

Restated asicEPS

Dilutive BPS previously reported

Effect of stock dividend

Restated d1utia EPS

2010

$0.64

0.01

$0.57

0.01

$056

2009

80.70
0.01

0.01

8069

Unrealized nart adjustiç pr theperiod

Less adjustment for net gains included in income

Deceiher 3j 2Q09

Gain/Loss Tax Expense
Before Tax IBenefit

in thousands

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income/Loss

$1333

i95
3292

$L161
2016

$55

Q56
5308

2291

842

$6324

1078

5246

I94
871 1420

32i1 458

82403

410
81993

392i
668

$3710
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Level Quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs that are observable either directly for substantially the full

term of the asset or liability

Level Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and

unobservable i.e supported by little or no market activity

financial instruments level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value

measurement Fair value enables company to mitigate the non-economic earnings volatility caused from financiaL asets and

financial liabilities being carried at different bases of accounting as well as to more accurately portray the active and dynamic

management of companys balance sheet

In accordance with SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities which is now
codified in ASC 825-10-25 the Company has elected to record newly originated mortgage loans held-for-sale at fair value The

following is description of mortgage loans held-for-sale as of December 31 2011 and 2010 for which fair value has been elected

including the specific reasons for electing fair value and the strategies for managing these assets on fair value basis

Loans Held-for-Sale

In 2009 the Company began recording mortgage loans held-for-sale at fair value The Company chose to fair value these

mortgage loans held-for-sale in order to eliminate the complexities and inherent difficulties of achieving hedge 5aeeounting and to

better align reported results with the underlying economic changes in value of the loans and related hedge instruments This election

impacts the timing and recognition of origination fees and costs as well as servicing value Specifically origination fees and costs

which had been appropriately defrred under SFAS No 91 Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with

Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases now codified inASC 10-20-25 and peviouslyeognized as part

of the gain/loss on sale of the loans are now recognized in earnings at the time of origination Interest income on mortgage loans

held-for-sale is recorded on an accrual basis in the consolidated statement of operations under the heading Interest income-loans

including fees The servicing value is included in the fair value of the mortgage loanheld-for-sale and initially recognized at the time

the Company enters into Interest Rate Lock Commitments IRLCs with borrowers The mark to market adjustments related to

loans held-for-sale and the associated economic hedges are captured in mortgage banking activities

Valuation Methodologies and Fair Value Hierarchy

The primary financial instruments that the Company carries at fair value include investment securities IRLCs derivative

instruments and loans heldfor-sale Classification in the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments is based on the criteria set forth

in SFAS No 157 now codified in FASB ASC 820-10-35

Debt securities issued by U.S Government corporations and agencies debt securities issued by states and political

subdivisions and agency residential mortgage backed securities classified as available-for-sale are reportedat fair value utilizing

Level inputs For these securities the Company obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing service The fair

value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes market spreads cash flows the U.S Treasury yield

curve live trading levels trade execution data market consensus prepayment speeds credit information and the bonds terms and

conditions among other things The investments in the Companys portfolio are generally not quoted on an exchange bet are actively

traded in the secondary institutional markets

The fair value of mortgage loans held-for-sale is based on what secondary markets are currently offering for portfolios with

similarcharacteristics The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include market trade pricing from brokers and

the mortgage-backed security markets As such the Company classifies these loans as Level

The Company classifies IRLCs on residential mortgage loans held-for-sale which are derivatives under SFAS No 133 now

codified in ASC 815-10-15 on gross basis within other liabilities or other assets The fair valueof these commitments while based

on interest rates observable in the market is highly dependent on the ultimate closing of the loans These pull-through rates are

based on both the Companys historical data and the current interest rate environment and reflect the Companys best estimate of the

likelihood that commitment will ultimately result in closed loan As result of the adoption of Staff Accounting Bulletin No 109

4SAB No 109 the loan servicing value is also included inthe fair value of IRLCs Because these inputs are not transparent in

market tradesIRLCs are considered to be Level assets

Derivative instruments are primarily transacted inthe secondary mortgage and institutional dealer markets and priced with

observable market assumptions at mid-market valuation point with appropriate valuation adjustments for liquidity and credit risk

For purposes of valuation adjustments to its derivative positions under FASB ASC 820-10-35 the Company has evaluated liquidity

premiums that may be demanded by market participants as well as the credit risk of its counterparties and its own credit if applicable

To date no material losses dueto counterpartys inability to pay any net uncollateralized position has been incurred
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The credit risk associated with the underlying cash flows of an instrument carried at fair value was consideration in

estimating the fair value of certain financial instruments Credit risk was considered in the valuation through variety of inputs as

applicable including the actual default and loss severity of the collateral and level of subordination The assumption used to estimate

credit risk applied relevant information that market participant would likely use in valuing an instrument Because mortgage loans

held-for-sale are sold within few weeks of origination it is unlikely to demonstrate any of the credit weaknesses discussed above and

as result there were no credit related adjustments to fair value at December 31 2011

The following tables
present financial assets measured at fair value at December 21 2011 and 2010 on recurring basis and

the change in fair value for those specific financial instruments in which fair value has been elected The changes in the fair value of

economic hedges were also recorded in mortgage banking activities and are designed to partially offset the change in fair value of the

financial instruments referenced in the tables below

Debt securities issued by U.S G9ventppaj4gencies
Debt securities issued by states and political subdivisions

Commercial mortgage-backed securities-Agency

Mortgage lqps ki-for-sale

Other AssetsW

Other LiabilitiegO

Assets Measured

at Fair Value

December 31
2011

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2011

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Assets Level Level Level

In thousands

62699

197 15

174705

4300

90907

Dbt securities issued by t3uvernmeri cozorations and agencies

Debt securities issued by states andpolitical subdivisiois

Residehtial gage4sske cuiiti4- Agticy

Mortgage loans held-for-sale

Other Assets

Other Liabi1ities

Assets Measured

at Fair Value

December 31
2010

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2010

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Assets Level Level Level

In thousands

$26336

11330

123812

155029

627
446

For Items Measured at Fair Value Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Option Fair Value
Gain Loss related to Mortgage Banking Activities

Year Ended Three Months Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31 December December 31 December 31
2011 2010 2009 31 2011 2010 2009

In thousands

Murtgage loans held-for-sale $4$9S $1942 $4O $671 $4548 $1 368

The tables below present reconciliation of all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs level during the quarter and year ended December 31 2011 and 2010

62699

19715

l747O5

4300

90907

3612

1528
3612

1528

26136

11330

123glZ

155029

66fl

446

This amount includes mortgage related interest rate lock commitments and derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk Interest rate lock commitments were recorded on
gross basis
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Quarter Ended December 31

2011 2010

Other Other Other

AssetsW LiabilitiesW Assets1

In tiwusands

Other

Liabilities1

Beginning Balance

Total gains losses included in eamings2

Issuces
Settlements and closed loans

Expirations

Total gains losses included in other comprehensive

income

Ending iance

6467 2624 2768 714

312 1528 6627 446
6033 1590

434 2624 117.8 710

.S 3612 1528 6627 446

Includes Mortgage related interest rate lock commitments and derivative financial instruments entered into hedge interest rate risk

Amounts included in earnings are recorded in mortgage banking activities

Represents the amount included in earnings attributable to the changes in unrealized gains/losses relating to IRLCs and derivatives still held at period end

2011 2010

Other Other Other

Liabilities Assets1 Liabilities

3612 1s2g 627 $446

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets

for Identical

Total Assets Level

Ytar Ended December 31

Beginnirg$a1ance

Total gains losses included in earnings

Issuances

Settlements and closed loans

xpirtkrns

Total gains losses included in other comprehensive

income

Ending Balance

Other

Assets

6627

13644

8818
7841

In thousands

446

4384
178

3124

$1778

13130

4114
4167

55

3911
52

3468

Includes Mortgage related interest rate lock commitments and derivative financial instruments entered into hedge interest rate risk

Amounts included in earnings are recorded in mortgage banking activities

Represents the amount included in earnings attributable to the changes in unrealized gains/losses relating to IRLCs and derivatives still held at period end

The following tables present the assets that are measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis by level within the fair value

hierarchy as reported on the consolidated statements of financial position at December 31 2011 and 2010

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2011

Impaired loans

ORE

Mortgage servicing rights

SBA servicing rights

Significant

Other

Observable

Inputs Level

In thousands

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs Level

$59318

30526

11456

5736

Valuation

Allowance

-.- 5931S $4315
30526 7469
11456 2785
5736 213
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2010

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets Other Significant

for identical Observable Unobservable Valuation

Total Assets Level Inputs Level Inputs Level Allowance

In thousands

Impaired loans 61235 $61235 $8632
ORE 20525 20525 6403
Mortgage servicing rights 5495 5495 85
SBA servicing rights 2624 2624 203

Impaired loans are evaluated and valued at the time the loan is identified as impaired at the lower of cost or fair value For
collateral dependent loans fair value is measured based on the value of the collateral securing these loans and is classified as Level
in the fair value hierarchy Collateral may include real estate or business assets including equipment inventory and account
receivable The value of real estate collateral is determined based on an appraisal by qualified licensed appraisers hired by the

Company If significant the value of business equipment is based on an appraisal by qualified licensed appraisers hired by the

Company otherwise the equipments net book value on the business financial statements is the basis for the value of business

equipment Inventory and accounts receivable collateral are valued based on independent field examiner review or aging reports
Appraised and reported values may be discounted based on managements historical knowledge changes in market conditions from
the time of the valuation and managements expertise and knowledge of the client and clients business Impaired loans are evaluated
on at least quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly

Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets Subsequently foreclosed assets

are carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value less estimated selling costs Fair value is based upon independent market prices
appraised values of the collateral or managements estimation of the value of the collateral When the fair value of the collateral is

based on an observable market price or current appraised value the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level
When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the

appraised value and there is no observable market price the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level Appraised
and reported values may be discounted based on managements historical knowledge changes in market conditions from the time of
the valuation and managements expertise and knowledge of the client and clients business

SBA servicing rights are initially recorded at fair value when loans are sold service retained These assets are then amortized
in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income On monthly basis these servicing assets are assessed for

impairment based on fair value Management determines fair value by stratifying the servicing portfolio into homogeneous subsets
with unique behavior characteristics converting those characteristics into income and expense streams adjusting those streams for

prepayments present valuing the adjusted streams and combining the
present values into total If the cost basis of any loan

stratification tranche is higher than the
present value of the tranche an impairment is recorded

Mortgage servicing rights are initially recorded at fair value when mortgage loans are sold servicing retained These assets
are then amortized in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income On monthly basis these servicing assets
are assessed for impairment based on fair value Management determines fair value by stratifying the servicing portfolio into

homogeneous subsets with unique behavior characteristics converting those characteristics into income and
expense streams

adjusting those streams for prepayments present valuing the adjusted streams and combining the present values into total If the
cost basis of any loan stratification tranche is higher than the

present value of the tranche an impairment is recorded

Management makes certain estimates and assumptions related to costs to service varying types of loans and pools of loans
prepayment speeds the projected lives of loans and pools of loans sold servicing retained and discount factors used in calculating the

present values of servicing fees projected to be received No less
frequently than quarterly management reviews the status of all loans

and pools of servicing assets to determine if there is any impairment to those assets due to such factors as earlier than estimated
repayments or significant prepayments Any impairment identified in these assets will result in reductions in their carrying values
through valuation allowance and corresponding increase in operating expenses

The following tables
present the difference between the aggregate fair value and the

aggregate unpaid principal balance of
loans held-for-sale for which the fair value option has been elected as of December 31 2011 and 2010 The table also includes the
difference between

aggregate fair value and the aggregate unpaid principal balance of loans that are 90 days or more past due as well
as loans in nonaccrual status
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SFAS 107 Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments SFAS 107 now codified in ASC 825-10-50 requires

disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments whether or not recognized in the balance sheet for which it is

practicable to estimate that value In cases where quoted market prices are not available fairvalues are based on settlements using

present value or other valuation techniques Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used.including the

discount rate and estimates of future cash flows In that regard the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison

to independent markets and in many cases could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument ASC g25-Lo-50

excludes certain financial instruments and all non-financial instruments from its disclosure requirements Accordingly the aggregate

fair value amounts presented do not represent theunderlying value of the Company

December 31

Aggregate

Fair Value

December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Aggregate Aggregate

Unpaid Fair value Unpaid

Principal Over/under Principal

Balance unpaid Aggregate Balance

Under FVO principal Fair Value Under FVO

Lothis held-for-sale

Past due loans of 90 days

Nqnaccrual loans

8909117 $88255

In thousandr

$2652 $155029 $156971

Fair value

over/under

unpaid

principal

1942

2011

Carrying Fair

Amount Value

2010

Carrying Fair

Amount Value

In thousands

Financial 1nstrments Asset
Cash and due from banks 54873 54873 47242 47242

F1ial funds sold 14Ii 24i 511

Investment securities available-for-sale 261419 261419 16 1478 161478

Investment securities held-to-maturity S86 92
Investment in FHLB stock 7582 7582 6542 6542

Tora1joans ....J 129764 16GO788 1$8lT li9404
Total financial instrumentsassets $1936735 $1700109

Non t149870 I02fl
Total assets $2234795 $1945300

Financial 1nstruinentsL1abUitIe

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 8- 269590 269590 185614 $185614

Interest-bearing deposits 1601926 1609865 1427634 L43355S

Total deposits 1871516 1879455 1613248 1619172

Sho-tenn brming 32P 3ZV7

Subordinated debt 67527 58582 67527 63279

Other 1ong-tqidebt 520 5232 7500 457
Total financial instruments liabilities 2044624 $2043625 1788752 $1190885

Non-financial mst ment 11ai14Jpd barhqJ4rs

equity
15654g

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $2234795 $1945300

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for cash due from banks and Federal funds sold

approximate the fair values of those assets For investment securities fair value equals quoted rnarketprices if available If quoted

market price is not available fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities or dealer quotes

Ownership in equity securities of bankers bank FHLB stock restricted and there is no established market for their resale

The carrying amount is reasonable estimate of fair value

Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics Loans are segregated by type The fair

value of performing loans is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows through the remaining maturities using estimated market

discount rates that reflect the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the loans along with market risk premium and liquidity discount

Fair value for significant nonperforming loans is estimated taking into consideration recent external appraisals of the

underlying collateral for loans that are collateral dependent If appraisals are not available or if the loan is not collateral dependent

estimated cash flows are discounted using rate commensurate with the risk associated with the estimated cash flows Assumptions
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regarding credit risk cash flows and discount rates are judgmentally determined using available market information and specific

borrower information

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturities such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits savings interest-bearing

demand and money market accounts is equal to the amount payable on demand The fair value of time deposits is based on the

discounted value of contractual cash flows based on the discount rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for short-term debt approximate those liabilities fair

values

The fair value of the Companys long-term debt is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similarissues

or on the current rates offered to us for debt of the same remaining matunties

For off-balance sheet instruments fair values are based on rates currently charged to enter into similaragreements taking

into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties credit standing for loan commitments and letters of credit

Fees related to these instruments were immaterial at December 31 2011 and 2010 andthecarryiæg amounts represent reasOnable

approximation of their fair values Loan commitments letters and lines of credit and similarobligations typically have variable

interest rates and clauses that deny funding if the customer credit quality deteriorates Therefore the fair values of these items are

not significant and are not included in the foregoing schedule

This presentation excludes certain financial instruments and all non-financial instruments The disclosures also do not

include certaininthngible assets such as customer relationships deposit base intangibles and goodwill Accordingly the aggregate

fair value amounts presented do not represent the underiyingvalueof the Company

17 Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is apartyto financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the

financing needsof its customers and to reduce its own exposureto fluctuations in interest rates These financial instruments which

include coimnitments to extend credit and letters Of credit involve to varying degrees elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess

of the amount recognized in theconsolidated financial statements The contract or notional amounts of these instruments reflect the

extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by customers for commitments to extendcredit and

letters of credit is represented by the contractual or notional amount of those instruments The Company uses the same credit policies

in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for recorded loans Loan commitments and other off-balance sheet

exposures areevaluated byCredit Review quaiterly and reserves are provided for risk as deemed appropriate

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers as long as there is no violation of any condition

established in the agreement Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other terminatiOn clauses and may require

payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment amounts

do not necessarily represent future cash requirements The Bank evaluates each customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis

The amount of collateral obtained ifdeemed necessary by the Bank upon extensionof credit is based on managements credit

evaluation of the borrower Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable inventory property plant and equipment and

income-producing commercial properties

Standby and import letters of credit are commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of customer to

third party The credit risk involved in issuing letters of creditis essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to

customers The Bank holds collateral supporting those commitments as deemed necessary

The Companyhas undertakencertain guarantee.obligations for commitments to extend credit and letters of credit that have

certain charactenstics as specified by FASB Interpretation No 45 Guarantor Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for

Guarantees Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others an interpretation of FASB Statements No 57 and 107 and

rescission of FASB Interpretation No 34 now codified in ASC 460-10-05 As noted in Note 15 the fair value of creditand letters of

credit are insignificant to the Company
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Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk at December 31 2011 are summarized as follows

Financial Instruments Whose Contract Amounts Represent Credit Risk

December 31

2011

In thousands

Loan commitments

Commercial real estate construction and land development 33211

çpmipeci1
78392

SBA 11190

Home equity
41835

Mortgage loans
116733

Lines frelit

Standby letters of credit and bankers acceptances
.41 36

Fe4r44in
Total loan commitments $287035

18 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company maintains risk management program to manage interest rate risk and pricing risk associated with its

mortgage lending activities The risk management program includes the use of forward contracts and other derivatives that are

recorded in the financial statements at fair value and are used to offset changes in value of the mortgage inventory due to changes in

market interest rates As normal part of its operations the Company enters into derivative contracts to economically hedge risks

associated with overall price risk related to IRLCs and mortgage loans held-for-sale carried at fair value under ASC 825-10-25 Fair

value changes occur as result of interest rate movements as well as changes in the value of the associated servicing Derivative

instruments used include forward sale commitments and IRLCs All derivatives are carried at fair value in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets in other assets or other liabilities gross loss of $4.1 million for the year ended Debember 31 2011 associated with the

forward sales commitments and IRLCs are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in mortgage banking activities

The Companys risk management derivatives are based on underlying risks primarily related to interest rates and forward

sales cotumitments Forwards arecontracts for the delayed delivery or net settlement ocan underlying instrument such as mortgage

loan inwhich the seller agrees to deliver on specified future date either specified instrument at specified price or yield or the net

cash equivalent of an underlying instrument These hedges are used to preserve
the Companys position relative to future sales of

loans to third parties in an effort to minimize the volatility of the expected gain on sale from changes in interest rateand the associated

pricing changes

19 Certain Transfers of Financial Assets

The Company .has transferred certain residential mortgage loahs SBA loans and indirect loans in which the Company has

continuing involvement to third parties The Company has not engaged in securitization activities with respect
tositchloans All such

transfers have been accounted for as sales bythe Company The Companys continuing involvement in such transfers has been

limited to certain servicing responsibilities The Company is not required to provide
additional financial support to any of these

entities nor has the Company provided any support it was not obligated to provide Servicing rights may give rise to servicing assets

which are initially recognized at fair value subsequently amortized and tested for impairment Gains or losses upon sale in addition

to servicing fees and collateral management fees are recorded in noninterest income

The majority of the indirect automobile loan pools and certain SBA and residential mortgage loans are sold with servicing

retained When the contraetually specific servicing fees on loans sold servleing retained are expected to be more thanadequate

compensationto servicer for performing the servicing capitalized servicing asset is recognized based on airvahie When the

expectedcost5 tO servicer for performing
loan servicing are not expected to adequatelycompensate servleer acapitalized servicing

liability is recognized based on fair value Servicing assets and servicing liabilities are amortized over the expected lives of the

serviced loans utilizing the interest method Management makes certain estimates and assumptions related to costs to service varying

types of loans and pools of loans prepayment speeds the projected
lives of loans and pools of loans sold servicing retained and

discount factors used in calculating the present values of servicing fees projected to be received

At December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 the total fair value of servicing for mortgage loans was $11.6 million $6.3 million

and $977000 respectively The fair value of servicing for SBA loans at December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 was $7.1 million $3.8

million and $3.5 million respectively To estimate the fair values of these servicing assets consideration was given to dealer

indications of market value where applicable as well as the results of discounted cash flow models using key assumptions and inputs

for prepayment rates credit losses and discount rates Carrying value of these servicing assets is shown on the following page
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December 31

Mortgage servicing

SBA servicing

Indirect serVIcing

Residential Mortgage Loans

2011 2010

In thousands

$11456 $5495

5736 2624
521 4O5

$17713 $8524

There are two primary classes of loan servicing rights for which the Company separately manages the economic risks

residential mortgage and SBA Residential mortgage servicing rights and SBA loan servicing rights are initially recorded at fair value

and then accounted for at the lower of cost or market and amortized in proportion to and over the estimated period that net servicing
income is expected to be received based on projections of the amount and timing of estimated future net cash flows The amount and

timing of estimated future net cash flows are updated based on actual results and updated projections Fidelity periodically evaluates
its loan servicing rights for impairment

The Company typically sells first lien residential mortgage loans to third party investors including Fannie Mae Certain of

these loans are exchanged for cash and servicing rights which generate servicing assets for the Company The servicing assets are

recorded initially at fair value As seller the Company has made certain standard representations and warranties with respect to the

originally transferred loans The Company estimates its reserves under such arrangements predominantly based on prior experience
To date the Companys actual buy-backs as well as asserted claims under these provisions have been de minimus

During 2011 and 2010 Fidelity sold residentialmortgage loans withunpaid principal balances of $907.3 million and $457.5

million respectively on which Fidelity retained the related mortgage servicing rights MSRs and receives servicing fees At

December 31 2011 and 2010 the approximate weighted average servicing fee was 0.25% of the outstanding balance of the residential

mortgage loans The weighted average coupon interest rate on the portfolio of mortgage loans serviced for others was 4.36% and

4.43% at December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

The following is an analysis of the activity in Fidelitys residçntial MSR and impairment for the years ended December 31
2011 and2OlO

ReidentiaiMotgage $eiv1cing Rights

Carrying value January

Adaitions

Amortization

Impairment net

Carrying value December 31

ltnpakment

Balance January

ddiitns
Recoveries

Balance December31

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

$5495 $875

10211 4995

1550 373
2700

$11456 $5495

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010

Fidelity uses assumptions and estimates in determining the impairment of capitalized MSRs These assumptions include

prepayment speeds and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved and comparable to assumptions used by market

participants to value and bid MSRs available for sale in the market At December31 2011 the sensitivity of the current fair value of

the residential mortgage servicing rights to immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes inkey economic assumptions are included in the

accompanying table

In thousands

85

140
$2785

83

S56
554
85
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December 31 2011

Dollars in thousands

Residenti1 MtŁ%iflgRights

Fair Value of Residential Mortgage Servicing Rights
$11571

Composition of ResidentialLoans Serviced for Others

uMatj inortgag Iâ1W 98%

Adjustable-rate mortgage loans
2%

otajcj
100%

251 year

692%

Effect on fair value of 10% increase 286

Effectn fait vaiu tfa 20% iiierese 559

Wighted Awerage Discount Rate
8.55%

Effect on fair value of 10% increase 615
1169

The sensitivity calculations above are hypothetical and should not be considered to be predictive of future performance As

indicated changes in value based on adverse changes in assumptions generally cann9t be extrapolated.because the relationship of the

change in assumption to the change in value may not be linear Also in this table the effect of an adverse variation in particular

assumption on the value of the MSRs is calculated without changing any other assumption while in reality changes in one factor may

result in changes in another for example increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments which may magnify or

counteract the effect of the change

Information about the asset quality of mortgage loans managed by Fidelity is shown below

Deember 31 2011

Unpaid Delinquent days

Principal 30 to 89 90 Charge-offs

In thousands

LoaiMPlittfO1id $1319369 $2461 607

Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sale 90907

Mottgage LoàBul4$br$nVet1flnt 3687 637 9Li

Total Residential Mortgages Serviced $1447163 $3098 $1518 $487

SBA Loans

Certain transfers of SBA loans were executed with third parties These SBA loans which are typically partially guaranteed

or otherwise credit enhanced are generally secured by business property such as inventory equipment and accounts receivable As

seller the Company had made certain representations and warranties with respect to the originally transferred loans and the Company

has not incurred any material losses with respect to such representations and warranties

Consistent with the updated guidance on accounting for transfers of financial assets because the Company warrants the

borrower will make all scheduled payments for the first 90 days following the sale of certain SBA loans all sales were accounted for

as secured borrowings which results in an increase in Cash for the proceeds of the borrowing and an increase in Other short-term

borrowings on the Consolidated Balance Sheet When the 90 day warranty period expires the secured borrowing is reduced loans are

reduced and gain or loss on sale is recorded in SBA lending activities in the Consolidated Statement of Operations During 2011

this 90 day warranty period was discontinued and the transfers were immediately recorded as sales

During 2011 and 2010 Fidelity sold SBA loans with unpaid principal balances of $93.9 million and $24.5 million

respectively Fidelity retained the related loan servicing rights and receives servicing fees At December 31 2011 and 2010 the

approximate weighted average servicing fee was 0.9 1% and 0.89% respectively of the outstanding balance of the SBA loans The

weighted average coupon interest rate on the portfolio of loans serviced for others was 4.69% and 4.24% at December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively
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The following is an analysis of the activity in Fidelitys SBA loan servicing rights and impairment for the years ended
December 31 2011 and 2010

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

$2624 $2405

3773

651 582
10 lt8

$5736 $2624

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

Balance January 203
Additions

Recoveries 332
__________________

Balance Deeeniber3l

SBA loan servicing rights are recbrded oii-the CónsolidatedBalance Sheet at the lower of cost ormarket and are amortized in

proportion to and over the estimated period that net servicing income is expected to be received based on projections of the amount
and timingof estimated future net cash flows The amount and timing of estimated future net cash flows are updated based on actual

results and updated projectiôns Fidelity periodically evaluates its loan servicing rights for impairment

Fidelity uses assumptions and estimates in determining the impairment of capitalized SBA loan servicing rights These

assumptions include prepayment speeds and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved and comparable to assumptions used

by market participants to value and bid servicing rights available for sale in the market At December 31 2011 the sensitivity of the
current fair value of

the
SBA loan servicing rights to immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes in key economic assumptions are

included in the accompanying table

December 31 2011

Dollars in thousands

SBanSviengRits
Fair Value of SBA LoanServicing Rights 7053

Composition of SBA Loans Serviced for Others

BA4i
Adjustable-rate SBAloans

Total

VjgMed Average Raiiing term 24 yea

PtŁpaiçnt speed
Effect on fair value of 10% increase 571
Effect on fair value of 20% ineres 72

Weighted Average Discount Ra4te

Effect on fair value of 10% increase

The sensitivity calculations above are hypothetical and should not be considered to be predictive of future performance As
indicated changes in value based on adverse changes in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the

change in assumption to the change in value may not be linear Also in this table the effect of an adverse variation in particular

assumption on the value of the SBA servicing rights is calculated without changing any other assumption while in reality changes in

one factor may magnify or counteract the effect of the change

SBA JoauServ1ch1g lights

Carrying value January

A4dItions

Amortization

I4ipainnentNet4

Carrying value December 31

95

t7
89

100%
lOQi

4.83%

589
166
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Information about the asset quality of SBA loans managed by Fidelity is shown below

Indirect Loans

December 31 2011

Unpaid Delinquent days

Principal 30 to 89 90 Charge-offs

In thousands

$3964 2ft6

4123 11597 475

$8087 $14313 $475

The Bank purchases on nonrecourse basis consumer installment contracts secured by new and used vehicles purchased by

consumers from franchised motor vehicle dealers and selected independent dealers located throughout the Southeast portion
of the

indirect automobile loans the Bank originates is sold with servicing retained Certain of these loans are exchanged for cash and

servicing rights which generate servicing assets for the Company The servicing assets are recorded initially at fair value As seller

the Company has made certain standard representations and warranties with respect to the originally transferred loans The amount of

loans repurchased has been de minimus

20 Other Assets Other Liabilities and Other Operating Expenses

Other assets and other liabilities at December 31 2011 and 20.10 consisted of the following

December 31

2011 2010

In thousands

OtIerM$ets

Receivables and prepaids

Prepaidtxes

Prepaid FDIC Insurance

Deferred tax assets net

Commonstock of trust preferred securities subsidiaries

In$tihØ1t it Georgia tax credits

Florida bank charter

Servicing assets

Fair value of mortgage-related derivatives

Core depositintangible

Other

Tptal

Other Liabilities

aythles and accrued expenses

Taxes payable

Other

Total

2520
40

7316

16224

2027

1013

1289

17713

3612
979

4538

9492

3180

7684

$20356

2592

91

9735

16529

2027

1050

1289

8524

6627

3459

$5123

3963

2185

6916
$13064

Other expenses for the years ended December 31 2011 2010 and 2009 consisted of the following

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

In thousands

OIlier Operat1itgixpensŁ

Employee expenses

ATMeheckeardfees

Advertising and promotion

Stationery printing and supplies

Other insurance expense

Other operating expenses

Total

1029
583

1125
809

1274

7173

$11993

997

995

746

1067

4687

$9002

831

481

738

624

688

3739

$7101

SBA $Łrvied for Others Pof1iq
SBA Loans Held-for-Sale

SBA Loans Held-fbr-hivestine

Total SBA Loans Serviced

$169264

12943

132487

$314694
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21 Condensed Financial Information of Fidelity Southern Corporation Parent Company Only

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31

Assets

Cash

Investment in bank subsidiary

hwestments in and amounts lue t1orn noti-bank subsidiaries

Subordinated loans to subsidiaries

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Long-term debt

Other liablitjes

Total liabilities

SIarbolders Equitj
Preferred stock

Conun stock

Accumulated other comprehensive gain loss net of tax

RettIrej1 earnings

Total sharehoIdrs equity

TiaflIabilihardho1dŒs equity

67527 67527

1381 1338

68908 68865

46461 45578

74219 57542

3710 458

4289Q 36933

167280 140511

$236188 $209376

65

848

136

1049

88
3921
t516
2405
13SO

$11398

2011 2010

In thousands

17917

109

205034

2478

10000

650

$236188

81
109

188175

2363

10000

$209376

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

Condensed Statements of Operations

Interest Income

Deposits in bank

Subordinat$ 1qan tabank

Total interest income

I$erest Epense Long-term 4ebL

Net Interest Expense

Noninterest Income

Lease income

Dividedsonsubsj4rjes

Management fees

Other

Total noninterest income

Noninterest Expense

Loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

Incoieta bei
Income before equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries

Equitnin uæ4iatrihàted income of subsldiaries

Net Income Loss

In thousands

48 14 45

45 349 403

393 363 .448

4477 4485 45633

4084 4122 4185

65 65

635

134

834

986

4274
1613
2661
12794

$10133

600

138

803

878

4260
169
2641

214

$3855
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Condeiied Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009

In thousands

ÔünjActMtfes
Net income loss

Equity undittibuted nonie fubidiaries

Proceeds from sale of land

IteaSe daOihet assets

Increase in other liabilities

Other

Net cash flows used in provided by operating activities

etiig ActjvIt

Net increase in loans tO and investment in subsidiaries

Netcash flows used hi investing actIvties

Financing Activities

1snce Qptefert4tdc

Issuance of Common Stock

teferred dividends id
Common dividends paid

et cash flosiiddby ud in.l flnticg aótiviiies

Net increase decrease in cash

bgngd
Cash end of year

43

2300

11398 10133 3855

13803 12194 114
80

2972 2451
74 205

385 4807

Item Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants On Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term

is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13 a-i 5f and Sd-i 5f Under the supervision and with the participation of management including

the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on the framework set forth in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based on that evaluation management concluded

that our internal control over fmancial reporting was effective as of December 31 2011

The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2011 has been audited by Ernst Young

LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is included elsewhere herein

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 3a-l 5b under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Fidelity carried oilt an evaluation with the

participation of the Companys management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the

effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as defined under Rule i3a- 15e under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as of the end of the period covered by this report Based upon that evaluation Fidelitys Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer concluded that Fidelitys disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required

to be disclosed by us in the reports
that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and

communicated to management including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer as appropriate to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in Fidelitys internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended December 31

2011 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect Fidelitys internal control over financial reporting

14736

L410
265

9761

17917

2406 516

13
372 6704

774 I448
8156 7784
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Fidelity Southern Corporation

We have audited Fidelity Southern Corporations and subsidiaris internal control over financial reporting as of December31 2011
based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Fidelity Southern Corporations and subsidiaries management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reportmg and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board UnitedStates Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control qver
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over

financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companysinternal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparaiion of financial statements for exterial purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositionsof the assetsof the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparatIon of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect

on the financial statements

Because of its inherentlimitations internal control over financial repoiting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subjectto the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Fidelity Southern Corporation and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2011 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the

consolidated balance sheets of Fidelity Southern Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 201 land 2010 and the related

consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December

31 2011 and our report dated March 27 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Atlanta Georgia

March 27 2012
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Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate
Governance

The information required by Item 10 is incorporated
herein by reference to the infontiation that appearsunder the headings

Election of Directors Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance Code of Ethics and Meetings and

Committees of the Board of Dirçtors in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholders Proxy

Statement Pursuant to instruction to paragraph of Item 401 of Regulation S-K information relating to the executive officers

of Fidelity is included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Conflict of Interest/Code of Ethics Policyof the registrant is set forth on our website at www.fidelitysouthern.com

Item ii Executive Compensathrn

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated herein by teference to the information that appears under the headings

Executive Compensation Compensation Committee Report and Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

in the Companys Proxy Statement

Item 12 Security Ownershipof CertainBeneficialOwners and Management andRelated Stockholder Matters

The informationrequired by Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the information that appears
under the heading

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial.Owriers and Management in the Companys Proxy Statement Information relating to the

Companys equity compensatiqn.plans is included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading Equity

Compenstion Plan Inforiation.

Item 13 certain Relationships and ReIaed Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the information that appears
under the headings

Election of Directors and Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions in the Companys Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to the information that appears
under the heading Fees

Paid byTidelity to Ernst Young in the Companys Proxy Statement

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

Documents filed as part of this Report

Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules are omtte4as the required information is inapplicable or the

information is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto in Item above

Exhibits

The exhibits filed herewith or incorporated by reference to exhibits previously filed with the SEC are set

forth in Item 15b

Exhibits

The following exhibits are required to be filed with this Report by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

Exhibit No Name of Exhibit

2a Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated as of October 21 2011 by and among the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation Receiver of Decatur First Bank Decatur Georgia Fidelity Bank and the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation acting in its corporate capacity incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Fidelity Southern

Corporations Form 8-K filed October 21 2011
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3a Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Fidelity Southern Corporation as amended effective December

16 2008 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3a to Fidelity SouthrnCorporations Form 10-K filed March

162009

3b Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of Fidelily Southern Corporation incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 3.1 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed November 18 2010

3c Bylaws of Fidelity Southern Corporation as amended incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3b to Fidelity

Southern Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2007

3d Amendment to Bylaws of Fidelity Southern Corporation incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to Fidelity

Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed November 18 2010

4a See Exhibits 3a and 3b for provisions of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation as amended and

Bylaws which define the rights of the shareholders

4b Tax Benefits Preservation Plan dated as of November 19 2010 between Fidelity Southern Corporation and Mellon

Investor Services LLC as Rights Agent incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Fidelity Southern

corporations form 8-K filed November 18 2010

0a Fidelity Southern Corporation Defined COntribution Master Plan and Trust Agreement and related Adoption

Agreement as amended incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10a to Fidelity Southern Corporations

Registration Statement on Form 10 Commission File No 0-22374

10b Amended and Restated Supplemental Deferred Compensation Plan incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to

Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 25 2006

0c Fidelity Southern Corporation 1997 Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference from Exhibit to Fidelity

Southern Corporations Proxy Statement dated April 21 1.997 for the 1997 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

10d Fidelity Southern Corporation Equity Incentive Plan dated April 27 2006.incorporated by reference from Exhibit

10.1 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-KfilŁd May 2006

0e Forms of Stock Option Agreements for the Fidelity Southern Corporation Equity Incentive Plan dated April 27
2006 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filedJanuary 18
2007

0f Employment Agreement among Fidelity the Bank and James Miller Jr dated as of January 18 2007

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 22 2007

10g Employment Agreement among Fidelity the Bank and Palmer Proctor Jr dated as of January18 2007

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 22 2007

10h Executive Continuity Agreement among Fidelity the Bank and James Miller Jr dated as of January 19 2006

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 25 2006

10i Executive Continuity Agreement among Fidelity the Bank and H. Palmer Proctor Jr dated as of January 19 2006

incorporated reference from Exhibit 10.4 to FidelitySouthern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 25 2006

10j Executive Continuity Agreement niong Fidelity the Bank and Stephen HBrolly4atŁd as qf.May 22 2006

incorporated by reference frpm Exhibit 10j to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 10-K filed March 16 2009

10k Executive Continuity Agreement among.Fidelity the Bank and David Buchanan dated as of January19 2006

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 25 2006

10l Form of 2010 Incentive Compensation Plan among Fidelity the Bank and James Miller Jr Palmer Proctor

Jr Stephen Brolly and David Buchanan dated as of January 22 2009 incorporated by reference from Exhibit

99.2 99.3 99.4 and 99.5 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 27 2010

10m Director Compensation Arrangements incorporated by reference for Exhibit 10j to Fidelity Southern

Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005

10n Warrant to Purchase up to 2266458 shares of Common Stock dated December 19 2008 incorporated by reference

from Exhibit 4.1 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed December 19 2008

10o Letter Agreement dated December 19 2008 including Securities Purchase Agreement Standard Terms
incorporated by reference therein between the Company and the United States Department of the Treasury

incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed December 19 2008
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10p Form of Senior Executive Officer Agreement incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Fidelity Southern

Corporations Form 8-K filed December 19 2008

0q Amendment to employment agreement among Fidelity the Bank and James Miller Jr dated as of January 21

2010 incorporated by tefereæce from Exhibit 99.2 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 27

2010

0r Amendment to employment agreement among Fidelity the Bank and Palmer Proctor Jr dated as of January 21

2010 incorp6rated by reference from Exhibit 992 to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed January 27

2010

10s Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 26 2011 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Fidelity

Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed May 62011

10t Registration Rights Agreement dated May 26 2011 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Fidelity

Southern Corporations Form 8-K filed May 26 2011

0u First Amendment to the Fidelity Southern Corporation Equity Incentive Plan incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 99a to Fidelity Southern Corporations Form S-8 filed June 17 2011

21 Subsidiaries ofFidelitySouthem Corporation

23 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

24 Powers of Attorney included on signature page hereto

31.1 Certification of ChiefExecutive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 5d-14 as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer plirsuapt toSecuritiesE-xchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 5d-14 as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Ox1ey Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Actof 2002

99.1 Principal Executive Officers Certificate pursuant to 31 CFR 30.15 relative to the participation
of Fidelity Southern

Corporation in the Capital Purchase Program

992 Principal Financial Officers Certificate pursuant to 31 CFR 30.15 relative to the participation of Fidelity Southern

Corporation in the Capital Purchase Program

101 The following materials from Fidelity Southern Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2011 formatted in XBRL extensible Business Reporting language the Consolidated Balance

Sheets ii the Consolidated Statements of Operationsiii the Consolidated Statemçnts of Shareholders Equity

iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and related notes to the financial statements Pursuant to Rule

406T of Regulation ST the XBRL-related information in this Exhibit is furnished and not filed for purposes of

Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934

Indicates director and management contracts orcornpensatoryplans or arrangements

Financial Statement Schedules
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reqjrements ofection 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchaige Act of 1934 Fidelity Southern Corporation
has duly cased this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunip duyauthorized

FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPOTION

By Is JAMES MILLER JR

JAs MILLER JR

ChiefExecutive Officer and

Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

By Is STEPHEN BROLLY

STEPHEN BROLLY

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

March 27 2012
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POWER OF ATTORNEY A1D SIGNATURES

Know all men by these presnts that each person
whose signature appears

below constitutes and appoints James Miller

Jr and Stephen Brolly or either of them as attorney-in-fact with each having the power Of substitution for him in any and all

capacities to sign any amendments to this Report on Form 10-K and to file the same with exhibits thereto and other documents in

connection therewith with the Securities ànd Exchange 2ommission hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys-

in-fact or his substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to tke requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of Fidelity Southern Corporation and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature
Title

/s/ JAMES MILLER JR

James Miller Jr

Is STEPHEN BROLLY

Stephen Brolly

Is DAVID BOCKEL

Major General Ret David Bockel

Is WM MILLARD CHOATE

Wm Millard Choate

Is DONALD HARP JR

Dr Donald Harp Jr

Is KEVIN KING

Kevin King

Is WILLIAM LANKFORD JR

William Lankford Jr

Is PALMER PROCTOR JR

Palmer Proctor Jr

Is CLYDE SHEPHERD III

Clyde Shepherd III

Is RAI.TKN SMITH JR

Rankin Smith Jr

Chairman of the Board and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial

and Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

March 27 2012

Date
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No Name of Exhibit

21 Subsidiaries of Fidelity Southern Corporation

23 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 3a- 14 and 5d-14 as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rules 3a-14 and 5d- 14 as adopted

pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief ExecUtive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Principal Executive Officers Certificate pursuant to 31 CFR 30.15 relative to the participation of Fidelity Southern

Corporation in the Capital Purchase Program

99.2 Principal Financial Officers Certificate pursuant to 31 CFR 30.15 relative to the participation of Fidelity Southern

Corporation in the Capital Purchase Program
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION

FIDELITY BANK

James Miller Jr

Chairman and CEO
Fidelity Southern Corporation

Fidelity Bank

LionMark Insurance Company
Board Member

Berlin American Companies
Interface Inc

American Soffware

Major General Ret David Bckel
Executive Director

Georgia Military Affairs

Coordinating Committee

Georgia Chamber of Commerce

Wm Millard Choate
President

Choate Construction Company

Dr Donald Harp Jr

Minister Emeritus

Adjunct Professor

Candler School of Theology

Emory University

Kevin King Esq

Attorney at Law

William Lankford Jr

Managing Member
Moore Stephens Tiller LLC

Palmer Proctor Jr

President

Fidelity Southern Corporation

Fidelity Bank

Secretary and Treasurer

LionMark Insurance Company

Clyde Shepherd Ill

President

Plant Improvement Co Inc

President

Toco Hill nc

Rankin M- Smith Jr

Owner and Manager
Seminole Plantation

Robert Rutland

Founder Director Emeritus

Chairman and CEO
Greyland Development Group

Senior Management

James Miller Jr

Chairman and CEO
Fidelity Southern Corporation

Fidelity Bank

LionMark Insurance Company

Palmer Proctor Jr

President

Fidelity Southern Corporation

Fidelity Bank

Secretary and Treasurer

LionMark Insurance Company

Stephen Brolly

Chief Financial Officer

Fidelity Southern Corporation

Fidelity Bank

LionMark Insuranceçompany

David Buchanan

Vice President

Fidelity Southern Corporation

Executive Vice President

Fidelity Bank

President

LionMark Insurance Company

Boards of Directors



OFFICES

Banking Services

Mailing Address

P.O Box 105075

Atlanta GA 30348

404 639-6500

Internet Banking

www.LionBank.com

Telephone Banking

404 248-LION

888 248-LiON outside Atlanta

Buckhead
3490 Piedmont Road NE

Suite 124

Atlanta GA 30305

404 814-8114

Canton Road
830 Old Piedmont Road
Marietta GA 30066

404 553-2501

Conyers

1945 GA Highway 138 North

Conyers GA 30013

404 553-2300

Crabapple

10920 CrabappleRodd
Roswell GA 30075

404 553-2175

Decatur

160 Clairemont Avenue
Decatur GA 30030

404 553-20

Dunwoody
1425 Dunwoody Village Parkway

Dunwoody GA 30338

404 553-2100

JacksoniilIe FL

9802 Old Baymeodows Road
Jacksonville FL 32256

904 996-1000

Jones Bridge

10905 Jones Bridge Road
Johns Creek GA 30022

404 553-2525

Lake Oconee
1010 Park Place Boulevard

Greensboro GA 30642

706 453-9887

Lawrenceville

415 Grayson Highway

Lawrenceville GA 30046

404 553-2476

Madison

1681 Eatonton Road
Madison GA 30650

706 342-423d

McDonough
1375 Highway 20 West

McDonough GA 30253

770 914-4300

Merchants Walk

1223 Johnson Ferry Road
Marietta GA 30068

404 553-2376

Newnan
102 Newnon Crossing Bypass

Newnan GA 30265

404 553-2325

Northiake

2255 Northlake Parkway

Tucker GA 30084

404 553-2050

Peachtree center

260 Peachtree Street

Suite 100

Atlanta GA 30303

404 553-2600

Peachtree Corners

3500 Holcomb Bridge Road
Norcross GA 30092

404 553-2150

Perimeter Center

Perimeter Center East

Atlanta GA 30346

404 553-2075

Perimeter West

135 Perimeter Center West

Atlanta GA 30346

404 553-2200

River Exchange

2080 Riverside Parkway

Lawrenceville GA 30043

404 553-2125

Roswell

1325 Hem bree Roqd
Roswell GA 30076

404 553-2451

Sandy Springs

225 Sandy Springs Circle

Sandy Springs GA 30328

404 553-2250

Southiake

1267 Southlake Circle

Morrow GA 30260

404 553-2225

Sugarloaf

1115 Old Peachtree Road NW
Suwanee GA 30024

678 512-7000

Terrell Mill

1642 Powers Ferry Road SE

Suite 230

Marietta GA 30067

404 553-2450

Toco Hill

2936 NorfhDruid Hills Road
Atlanta GA 30329

404 553-2275

Vinings

3020 Paces Mill Road
Suite 150

Atlanta GA 30339

404 553-2401

Winder

20 Wst May Street

Wirder GA 30680

404 53-2000

Operations Center

Atlanta

Corporate Square

7th Floor

Atlanta GA 30329

404 639-6500

Mortgage Services

404 248-5466

888 248-5466

SBA Loan Production OfficØ

404 553-2350

888 513-2860

Credit Insurance

LionMark Insurance Company
404 639-6872

Investment Services

404 248-5466

888 248-5466

Investment services offered exclusively through Invest Financial corporation member of FINRA/SlPc an independent broker/dealer and are not FDIC

insured or insured by any Federal Government agency are not deposits or guaranteed by Fidelity Bank or any bank are subject to risk and may lose value



Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan

Fidelity Southern Corporations Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend

Reinvestment Plan was established to provide shareholders with an easy way
to purchase shares of stock This Plan allows shareholders to make initial

direct stock purchases of $1000 to $10000 It also allows shareholders to

reinvest their quarterly dividends and make cash investments in Fidelitys

common stock for minimum of $100 up to $10000 per transaction and

$200000 per year Go to www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd

Executive Offices

3490 Piedmont Road N.E

Suite 1550

Atlanta GA 30305

404-639-6500

Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm

Ernst Young LLP

Atlanta GA

Legal Counsel

Baker Donelson Bearman

Caldwell Berkowitz PC

Atlanta GA

Financial Information

Shareholders and others seeking financial information about Fidelity may call

Martha Fleming at 404-240-1504 write her at 3490 Piedmont Road N.E
Suite 1550 Atlanta Georgia 30305 or go to www.fidelitysouthern.com and

see Investor Relations for more information concerning Fidelitys products and

services news releases financial information and other material relating to

Fidelity Southern Corporation

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City New Jersey 073 10-1900

866 203-4394

201 680-6578 Outside U.S and Canada

800 231-5469 TDD phone Hearing Impaired

201 680-6610 TDD phone Hearing Impaired Outside U.S and Canada

www.bnymellon.conilshareowner/equityaccess

As Fidelity Southern Corporation shareholder you are invited to take

advantage of our convenient shareholder services or request more information

about Fidelity Southern Corporation

Computershare our transfer agent maintains the records for our registered

shareholders and can help you with variety of shareholder related services at

no charge including

Change of name or address

Consolidation of accounts

Duplicate mailings

Dividend reinvestment enrollment

Market Price Common Stock

2011

Fourth Quarter 6.84

Third Quarter 7.14

Second Quarter 8.31

First Quarter 8.66

1Adjusted for stock dividends

As of March 2012 there were approximately

600 shareholders of record In addition shares of

approximately 1750 beneficial owners of Fidelitys

common stock were held by brokers dealers and

their nominees

Equal Opportunity Employer

Fidelity Southern Corporation is an equal

opportunity employer All matters regarding

recruiting hiring training compensation

benefits promotions transfers and all other

personnel policies will continue to be free from all

discriminatory practices

2010

Fourth Quarter

Third Quarter

Second Quarter

First Quarter

Low

5.66

5.95

6.15

6.70

Low

5.94

5.84

5.52

3.17

Main Office Number

404-639-6500

Illgk

7.10

7.24

8.91

5.76

Telephone Banking
404-248-LION 5466
888-248-LION 5466

Online Banking

www.LionBank.com

Kilpathck Stockton LLP

Atlanta GA

Electronic Access via MLInksM

We invite you to join Fidelity Southern

Corporation in its commitment to being an

environmentally responsible corporation For

your convenience electronic access to your

financial statements and shareholder

communications is now available with MLinksM

Access your important shareholder

communications online 24 hours day days

week within secure customized mailbox

You can review and print your Investment Plan

Statements Investor Activity Reports Forms

1099 notification of ACH transmissions

transaction activities and other selected

correspondence

Enrollment in MLinksM is quick and easy Just

log onto Investor ServiceDirect at

www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/equityaccess

and follow the step-by-step instructions

You may also send mail to

Computershare at

Fidelity Southern Corporation

do Computershare

Box 358015

Pittsburgh PA 15252-8015

Transfer of stock to another person

Additional administrative services
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION
3490 Piedmont Road NE

Suite 1550

Atlanta Georgia 30305

NOTICE OF ANNTJAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
ToBeHe1donApril262012

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Fidelity Southern Corporation be

held at One Securities Centre 3490 Piedmont Road NE Suite 1550 Atlanta Georgia

30305 on Thursday April 26 2012 at OOp for the following purposes

To elect mne directors to serve until their successors are duly elected and

qualified at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders in 2012

To approve the Amendment to the Companys Equity Incentive Plan

To ratify the appointment of Ernst Young LLP as the Companys
independent registered public accoimtmg firm for the fiscal year ending

December 31 2012

An advisory non-binding vote on executive compensation and

To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual

Meeting or any adjournment thereof

Only shareholders of record at the close of busmess on March 2012 will be

entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof

Proxy Statement and Proxy are enclosed Whether or not you plan to attend

please vote your shares by completing signing dating and returmng the enclosed

Proxy as soon as possible in the postage-paid envelope provided

If your shares are held in street name that is held for your account by broker

or other nominee you will receive instructions from theholder of record that you must

follow for your shares to be voted

Also enclosed is copy of Fidelitys 2011 Annual Report to Shareholders

mcludmg Form 10-K

By Order of the Board of Directors

Martha Flemmg

CorporateSecretary

March28 2012
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FIDELITY SOUTHERN CORPORATION

3490 Piedmont Road NE
Suite 1550

Atlanta Georgia 30305

PROXY STATEMENT

GENERAL INFORMATION

The enclosed Proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Fidelity Southern Corporation

Fidelity or Company in connection with the Annual Meeting ofharehO1ders Annual Meeting to be held at

One Securities Centre 3490 Piedmont Road NE Suite 1550 Atlanta Georgia 30305 on Thursday April 26 2012 at

00 pm and at any adjournment thereof This Proxy Statement the enclosed Proxy Card and Fidelitys 2011 Annual

Report to Shareholders including its Form 10-K are being mailed to our shareholders on or about March 28 2012

Your vote is very important For this reason the Board pf Directors is xequesting that you pennit your

common stock Common Stock to be represented at the Annual Meeting by the individuals named on the enclosed

Proxy Card If no specification is made the proxies received by the Company will be voted for all of the nominees for

director named in this Proxy Statement and upon such other matters as may proper1 come before the Annual Meeting

or any adjournment thereof according to the best judgment of the Proxy Committee e1ectd by the Boardof Directors

and composed of Wm Millard Choate and Palmer Proctor Jr

The presence of majority of the votes entitled to be cast at the Annual Meeting represented in
person or by

Proxy will constitute quorum The nine nominees receiving the highest vote totals will be elected as directors of

Fidelity majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting is required to approve all other proposals unless the vote

of greater number is required by law

Who Can Vote

Each shareholder of record at the close of business on March 2012 is entitled to notice of and to vote at the

Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof Each share of Fidelity Common Stock entitles the shareholder to one vote

on any matter coming before meeting of Fidelity shareholders On March 2012 the record date for the Annual

Meeting there were 13751907 shares of Fidelity Common Stock outstanding and eligible to vote The enclosed Proxy

Card shows the number of shares that you are entitled to vote If you own any shares in Fidelitys Direct Stock

Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan the Employee Stock Purchase Plan or the 401 Plan the enclosed Proxy

Card includes the number of shares you had in that plan on the record date for the Annual Meeting as well as the

number of shares registered in your name

HowDolCasIMy Vote

If you are the record owner of your shares either in certificates book-entry or in the Direct Stock Purchase

and Dividend Reinvestment Plan the Employee Stock Purchase Plan or the 401K Plan you have the following

voting options

By mail by completing signing dating and returning the enclosed Proxy Card or

By attending the Annual Meeting and voting your shares in person

Even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting we encourage you to vote your shares by Proxy

If you provide specific voting instructions your shares will be voted as instructed If you hold shares in your

name and sign and return Proxy Card without giving specific voting instructions your shares will be voted for the

proposals at the Annual Meeting If you hold your shares in your name and do not return valid Proxy Card and do not

vote in person at the Annual Meeting your shares will not be voted



If you hold your shares in brokerage account or through another nominee your broker or nominee the

record holder is forwarding these Proxy materials to you along with voting instructions The record holder is required

to vote your shares in accordance with your itistructions ifyou do not give the record holder instructions the record

holder has the authority to vote your shares on certain routine matters At the Annual Meeting the ratification of

auditors is deemed routine which means that the record holder can vote your shares if you do not timely provide

instructions Although most brokers and nominees offer telephone and Internet voting availability and specific

procedures will depend on their voting arrangements Please follow their directions careflully

Every vote is important Please vote your shares promptly

WhatAmiVotingOn

There are four proposals that will be presented for your consideration at the Annual Meeting

To elect nine directors

To approve the Amendment to the Companys Euity Incentive Plan

To ratify the appointment of Ernst- Young LIP as the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm for the fical- year ending December 312012 and

An advisory non-binding vOte On exectitive compensation

Other business may be addressed at the Annual Meeting if it properly comes before the Annual Meeting

However we are not aware of any such other business

Can Change My Vote

If you are record owner you may revoke your Proxy and change your vote at any time before voting begins

on any proposal You may do this by either giving our CorporateSØcretary written notice of your revocation

submitting new signed Proxy Card with later date or by attending the Annual Meeting and electing to vote in

person However your atiendance at the Annual Meeting will not automatically revoke your Proxy you must

specifically revoke your Proxy If your shares are held in nominee or street name you should -Contct your broker or

other nominee regarding the revocation of proxies

What Quorum is Needed to Hold the Annual Meeting

In order to conduct the Annual Meeting majority of Fidelity shares entitled to vote must be present in person

or by Proxy This is called quorum If you returna valid- Pràxy or elect to vote in person at the Annual Meeting you

will be considered part of the quorum

Abstentions withheld votes and broker tion-votes willbe-includedin the calculation of the number of votes

represented in person or by Proxy at the Annual Meeting in dterminiiig whether the quorum requirement is satisfied

What are Broker Non-Votes

broker non-vote occurs when brokeraje firmbafilc or other nominee does not vote shares -that it holds in

Street name on behalf of beneficial owner because the beneficial owner has not provided votinginstruCtions to the

nominee with respect to nondiscretionary item to be voted upon Proposals and are non-discretionary items for

which nominee will not have the discretion to vote without voting instrttctions from the beneficial owner Proposal

is discretionary item for which nominee will have the discretion to vote even without voting instructions from the

beneficial owher Broker non-vote shares willbe inclUdedin the number of shares considered-present at the meeting for

the
purpose

of determining whether there is quorum The-effect of broker non-vote on the outcome ófthe vote on

proposal will depend on the applicable voting standdfor the proposal For instance if.the approvaiof the proposal

requires the affirmative vOte of majority of the outstanding shares broker nonvote would have the effect ofa
negative vote in determining the outcome of the vote on the proposal On theother hand if the approval of the-proposal

requires the affirmative votdof the majority of the shares resent in person or represented by Proxy at the meeting and

entitled to vote on the proposal broker non-vote being shares not entitled to vote would not have any effect on the

outcome of the vote on the proposal



What Vole is Needed

The nine nominees for director receiving the highest vote totals will be elected asdirectors of Fidelity All

other matters will be decided by the affirmative vote of.the majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting

What is our Voting Recommendation

Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the four proposals

Proxy Cards that are timely signed dated and returned but do not contain instructions on how you want to vote

will be voted in accordance with our Board of Directors recommendation

Proxy Solicitation

Fidelity will bear the expenses of soliciting proxies including the cast o.fpreparingand mailing this Proxy

Statement Fidelitywill furnish solicitation materials tobanks brokerage h9uses and other custodians nominees and

fiduciaries for forwarding to beneficial owners of shares of the common stock and normal handling charges may be

paid for such forwarding service In addition directors officcrs ando.ther employees of Fidelity who will not be

additionally compensated therefor may solicit proxies in person or by telephone email or other means

Notice Regarding the Availability of ProxyMaterials

We have posted materials related to the 2012 Annual Meeting on the Inteinet The following materials are

available on secure Internet website located at https//materials.oroxvvote.com/3 16394 This website is compliant with

regulatory standards and does not utilize tracking cookies or Site visit intelligence tracking

This Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting and

Fidelitys 2Q11 Annual Report to Shareholders including its Form 10-K filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

PROPOSAL 1-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Shareholder Nominees

of the Nominating Committee is to consider proposed nominatiQns for membership on the Board of

Directors properly submitted by shareholders who own at least 1000 shares of Common Stock of Fidelity and have held

the stock for at least one year Any proposed nomination by shareholder for consideration by the Nominating

Committee must include the proposed nominees name and qualifications and statement to the effect that the proposed

nominee has agreed to the submission of his/her name as candidate for nomination as director The proposed

nomination should be sent to the Chairman of the Nominating Committee of Fidelity Southern Corporation 3490

Piedmont Road NE Suite 1550 Atlanta Georgia 30305 In order to timely consider any candidatethe shareholder

must submit the recommendation on or before November immediately preceding the next annual meeting of

shareholdçrs None of our qualifying shareholders nominated any prospective nominees to our Nominating Committee

for-consi4eration at the Annual Meetg

identifying and Evaluating Nominees for Director

The Nominating Committee utilizes variety of methods for identifying and evaluating nominees for director

Nomineesfov directorate selected for their character judgment diversity of experience acumen ability to work with

others and their ability to act for the benefit ofFidelity and its shareholders The Nominating Committee evaluates the

totality of themerits of each prospective nominee and does not restrict itself by establishing minimum qualifications or

attributes The Nominating Committee has written po1icyregarding diversity that seeks to provide the Board with

depth of experience and differences in viewpoints andsldlls The Nominating CQmrnittees Director Qualification

Standards and Procedure.for Identifying and Evaluating Candidates is available under the Investor Relations section of

our website at www.fldelitvsouthern.com



The name of any candidate for nomination as director may be submitted to the Nominating Committee by

shareholders as described above and directors The Nominating Committee will review the qualifications of each

can4idate submitted and conduct such inquiries as it determines appropriate There is no difference in the manner by

which the Nominating Committee evaluates prospective nominees for director based on the source from which the

individual was first identified The Nominating Committee recommends by majority vote of its members to the

entireBoard of Directors those candidates it believes will best serve Fidelity and its shareholders meet the

qualifications set forth in the director qualification standards and have such other requisite skills and knowledge

deemed necessary by the Nominating Committee of director of Fidelity

The number of directors is currently set at nine by resolution of the Board of Directors The number of

directors may be increased or decreased from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors or of the shareholders

but no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the tern of an incumbent director The terms of office for directors

continue until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors are elected and qualified

Fidelitys Board of Directors has determined that each member of its Board other than James Miller Jr

Chief ExOcutive Officer of Fidelity and if Palmer Proctor Jr President of Fidelity were independent during 2011

as dafined in the NASDAQ Marketplae Rules

In the event that any nominee withdraws or for any reason is not able to serve as director the Proxy will be

voted for such other persoii as may be designated by the Board of Directors as substitute nominee unless the Board of

Directors or shareholders bs resolution provide for lesser number of directors but in no event will the Proxy be voted

for more than nine nomineOs Management has no reason to believe that any nominee will not serve if elected

Nominating Committee Report

The Nominating Committee reviewed the qualifications of the director nominees found them to meet the

criteria for directorsestablished by the Nominating. Committee and recommended the slate to the Board of Directors as

director nominees for election at the 2012 Annual Meçting of Shareholders

Major General Ret David Bockel Chairman

Clyde Shepherd III

Raiikin Smith Jr

Information About Nominees for Director

The following information as of March 2201.2 has been furnished by the respective nOminees for director

All nominees for election to the Board of Directors set forth in this Proxy Statement currently serve as directors of

Fidelity Except as othejwise indicated each nominee has been engaged in his present principal employment in the

same position for more than five years Asscried below the Nominating Committee has determined that each

nominee is qualified to serve on the Board after giving consideration to the Companys business operations and

corpOrate structure

Year

First Business Experience During Past

Name Age Elected Five Years and Other Information

James Miller Jr 71 1979 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Fidelity since

1979 President ofFidelity from 1979 to April 2006 director of

Fidelity Bank wholly owned subsidiary of Fidelity since 1976
Presidentof Fidelity Bank from 1977 to 1997 and from December

2003 through September 2004 and ChiefExecutive Officer of

Fidelity Bank from 1977 to 1997 and from December 2003 until

present Chairman of Fidelity Bank since 1998 Chairman of

LionMark Insurance Company wholly owned subsidiary since

November 2004 Chairman of Berlin American Companies and

other family investment companies since 1977 director of

Interface Inc carpet and fabric manufacturing compaiiy since

2000 and of American Software Inc sofhizare development

company since 2002

.4



Year

First Business Experience During Past

Name Age Elected Fjve Years and Other Information

Mr Millers education and experience as an attorney experience

running company in Germany in addition to the years of

experience employed as an executive officer of Fidelity serving on

Fidelitys Board of Directors as well as serving on the boards of

various community organizations and public companies qualify him

to serve as director

Major General Ret David 67 1997 Executive Director Georgia Military Affairs Coordinating

Bockel Committee Georgia Chamber of Commerce since October 2011
Executive Director Reserve Officers Association of the United

States 63000 member organization headquartered in Washington

D.C from November 2009 to September 2011 Deputy Executive

Directors from October 2003 to November 2009 USOof Georgia

board member since February 2012 A1director of Fidelity Bank

since 1997

Major General Ret Bockels previous experience as founder and

head of an advertising company his military experience

commanding 18000 soldiers with responsibility for military

facilities and equipment over five states and his current position

qualify him to serve as director

Wm Millard Choate 59 2010 Founder and President of Choate Construction Company
commercial construction and interior construction firm with offices

headquartered in Atlanta Georgia since 989 director of

Fidelity Bank since April2010

The experience Mr Choate received founding his company and

establishing all operations procedures banking insurance and

bonding relationships marketing preconstruction estimating and

technology in addition to his degrees in economics and business

qualify him to serve as director

Dr Donald Harp Jr 73 2008 Adjunct Professor Candler School of Theology Emory University

since September 2008 Minister Emeritus of Peaàhtree Road United

Methodist Church since July 2008 Senior Minister of Peachtree

Road United Methodist Church from 1988 to July 2008 director

of Fidelity Bank since 2008

Dr Harp brings to the Board of Directors his experience of over 20

years managing $7 million church budget and 60 member staff as

well as his membership on many non-profit boards and experience

as mayor pro-tem of city with budget and other management

responsibilities which qualify him to serve as director

Kevin King 64 1998 An attorney in Georgia from 1972 to present Of Counsel Isenberg

Hewitt P.C Atlanta Georgia from January 2011 to August

2011 director of Fidelity Bank since 1998

Mr Kings qualifications to serve as director include degrees earned

in accounting and law and various business and legal positions over

40 years including executive vice president/general counsel

member of several for profit and non-profit boards and as lawyer

in private practice

Wi1lim Lankford Jr 62 2010 Member of Moore Stephens Tiller LLC from 1979 to present

Managing Member from 1990 to September 2009 director of

Fidelity Bank since January 2010



Year

First Business Experience During Past

Name Age Elected Five Years and Other Information

Mr Lankfords position as CPA with broad accounting tax and

business experience gained from being in public practice for 39

years qualify him to serve as director

Palmer Proctor Jr 44 2004 President of Fidelity since April 2006 Senior Vice President of

Fidelity from January 2006 to April 2006 Vice President of Fidelity

from April 1996 to January 2006 President of Fidelity Bank since

October 2004 Director and Secretary/Treasurer of LionMark

Insurance Company wholly owned subsidiary since November

2004 director of Fidelity Bank since 2004

As an executive of Fidelity and Fidelity Bank Mr Proctor offers

expertise in financial services and unique understanding of our

markets operations and competition which qualify him to serve as

director

Clyde Shepherd III 51 2003 President Plant Improvement Co Inc highway construction/real

property lessor company located inAtlanta Georgia since 199.7

President or Vice President/Secretary of Toco Hill Inc real

estate/lessor and investment company located in Atlanta Georgia

since 1983 Manager and partner of WCS Investment Partnership

LLLP an active invetent holding company located in DeKalb

County and Walton County Georgia since 2003 director of

Fidelity Bank since 1998

Mr Shepherds extensive business experience as head of highway

construction investment and real property lessor companies as

well as degrees earned in the fields of finance and economics

qualify him to serve as.a direcor

RatikinM Smith Jr 64 1987 OWner and ManagerSeniinole Plantation ashooting preserve

located in Thomasville Georgia since 1991 Chairman of the

Board of Trustees of Thomas University from January 2009 to

January 2011 and Trustee from 2004 to present member of the

Board of Advisors of the Farmers Merchants Bank Monticello

FL since March 2011 Director of Archbold Medical Foundation

from 2005 to present director of Fidelity Bank since 1987

Mr Smith brings to the Board of Directors his many years of

experience as member and executive of various organizations

which qualify him to serve as director

Meniber of the Executive Committee cf the Board of Directors

Member of the Compensation Committee Of the Board of Directors

Member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Member of the Notni titig Committee of the Board of Directors

There are no family relationships between any director exeCutive officer or nominee for director of Fidelity or

any of its subsidiaries

Recommendation

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR each of the above nominees for director Unless marked to

the contrary Proxy Cards received by the Company will be voted FOR this proposal



PROPOSAL 2- APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE
COMPANYS EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

Equity Incentive IIan Summasy

General Information The Board of Directors adopted the Fidelity Southern Corporation Equity Incentive Plan

the Plan on January 19 2006 and the shareholders of Fidelity approved the Plan on April 26 2006 The purpose of

the Plan is to assist Fidelity in recruiting and retaining employees and directors by enabling them to receive awards and

pariicipate in the future success of Fidelity

The Board of Directors adopted an amendment to the Plan on March 17 2011 and it was approved by the

sharehOlders on April 2820 11 the Pirst Amendment The First Amendment increased the number of shares of

Fidelitys Common StOck to 2250000 extended the term of the Plan by an additional five years for awards other than

inceiivestoc1c options deleted Fidelitys ability to award restricted stock units increased the number of shares that

mayibeissied in the aggregate pursuanvto awards Qther than options to 750000 modified certain provisions of the Plan

ceiatiiig to incentive awards and added specific..iangnage addressing compliance with Section 409A of the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986 as amended

Amendment The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors the CommitteC has recommended

that Fidelity adopt an anndthentto the P1n the SecOnd Amendment to provide for the following changes to the

Plan

Increase the number of shares of FidelitysConinion Stock that may be issued under the Plan from

2250000 to 5O00000 and

Increase the number of shares authorized under the Plan that may be issued in the aggregate pursuant

to awards other than options from 750000 to 1000000

The Committee believes that these changes are necessary and appropnate to allow the Committee the

flexibility to grant awards to eligible participants based on such participants performance and other cntena established

pursuant to the Plan by the Committee The Board of Directors has approved the Second Amendment The Plan

reqiires that the second Amendment also be approved hythe Fidelity shareholders before the Second Aniendnint may
be adopted

Types of Awards The Plan as originally adopted and amended April 28 2011 permits Fidelity to grant stock

options both incentive stock optiQns ISOs and ion-qualified stock options NQSOs stock appreciation rights

SARs restriqted stock awards RestrictedStock Awards and other incentive awards Incentive Awards

Separate Written Agreements All awards granted under the Plan are governed by separate written agreements

between FidÆlityand the selected participants The rittei agreements specify when the award may become exercisable

vested orpayab No riht or interest of participant in any award will be subject to any lien obligation or liability of

the participant The laws of the State of Georgia goverii the Plan The Plan is unfunded and Fidelity will not segregate

any assets to cover awards under the Plan The Plan is not tax qualified within the mean of Section 40 1a of the

Code nor is it subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended

Term ofPlan The Plan providesthatno awards maye granted after.January 19 2021 15 years following the

effective date of the Plan and no ISOs may be granted after January 19 2016 since all ISOs must still be granted

withii1 10
years om the original date of adoption of the Plan

Administration Fidelity bears all expenses of the Plan The Compensation Committee of the Board of

Directors the Committee administers the Plan The Committee has authority to grant awards to si.ch .pesons and

upon such terms and conditions not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan as it may consider appropriate The

Committee may deiegate to one or more officers of Fidelity all or.part of its authority and duties with respect to awards

to individuals who are not subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act

Eligibility for Participation Any of Fidelitys employees including any employee of current or future

subsidiary of Fidelity an Affiliate and any member of the Board of Directors of Fidelity whether or not an

employee is eligible to receive an award except that only employees are eligible to receive ISOs



Shares Subject to Plan The Plan currently provides that the maximum number of shares of Common Stock of

Fidelity that may be issued under the Plan pursuantto awhrds is 2250000 shares All of such shares may be issued

pursuant to options Only 750000 of such shares may be issued in the aggregate pursuant to awards other than options

Under the Plan no participant may receive awards that relite to more than 125000 shares in any calendar year The

maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be issuçd pursuant to awards the per individual limits on

awards and the terms of outstandirrg.awards will be adjusted as is equitably required in.the event of corporate

transactions .and other appropriate events The proposed Second Amendment provides for the following

the maximumnumber of shares of Fidelity Common StOck that maybe issued under the Plan pursuant

to awards is 5000000 shares and

the maximum number of such shares that may be issued in the aggregate pursuant for awards other

than options is 1000000 including the other than option shares awards previously approved for the

Plait

Options stock option Ønitles the participant to purchase from Fidelity stated number of shªresof its

Comnion Stock The Committee will designate whether the option is an ISO or NQSO and specify the number of

shares of Common Stock subject to the .option In the case of ISOs the aggregate fair market value dŁttmined as of

the date of grant of Common Stock with respect td which an ISO may- become exercisable for the first time during any

calendar year cannot exceed $100000 If this limitation is exceeded the ISOs which cause the limitation to be

exceeded will be treated as NQSOs The exercise price per share Of Common Stockniay not be less than the fair market

value of the Conimon Stock on the date the-option is granted With respect tO an ISO granted to patticipatit who

beneficially owns more than 10 percent of the combined voting power of Fidelity Or any Affiliate determined by

applying certain attribution rules the exercise price per share may not be less than 110 percent of the fair market value

of the Common Stock on the date the option is granted.- The exercise price niay be paid in cash or if the agreement so

provides by tendering shares of Common Stock or some other method of payment

Stock Appreciation Rights ASAR entitles the tarticipant to receiver upon exercise the excess of the fair

market value on that date of each share of CommOn Stock subj Oct to the exercised portion of the SAROver the fair

market value of on the date of the gratit of the SAR SAR can be granted alone or in tandem with an

option SAR granted in tandem with an option is called Corresponding SAR and entitles the participant to exercise

the option or the SAR at which time the other tandem award expires The Committee will specify the number of shares

of Common Stock subject to SAR and whether thØSAR is Corresponding SAR No participant may be granted

Corresponding SARs in tandem with-ISOS which are first exercisable in any calendar year for shares of Common Stock

having an aggregate fair market value 4eterinined as of the date of grant that exØeeds $100000 Corresponding

SAR may be exercised only to the extent that the related option is exercisable and the fair market value of the Common

Stock exceeds the exercise price of the related option As set forth in an award agreement the amount payable as

result of the exercise of SAR may be settledincªsh COhimonStock ora combination of each

Restricted Stock Awards Restricted Stock Award is the grant or sale of shares of Common Stock which

may be subject to forfeiture restrictiOns The Committee will prescribe whether the Retricted Stock Award is

forfeitable and the conditions to which it is subject If the participant must pay for Restricted Stock Awardpayment
of the award generally shall be made in cash or if the agreement so provides by some other method of payment Prior

to forfeiture participantwill have all rights of shareholder with respect tO the shares that are the subject of the

Restricted Stock Award including the right to receive dividends and vote the shares provided however the participant

may not transfer the shares Fidelity shall retain custody of the certificates evidencing the shares until they are no

longer forfeitable

Incentive wards An Incentive Award entitles the participant to receiv cash or Common Stock when certain

conditions are met NO participant may receive an Incentive Award in any calendar year with reference to specified

dollar limit of moft thai $25J000 and iiwith refereiice -to specified number of shares of Common Stock of more

than 125000 shares As set forth in the agreement an Incentive Award may be paid in cash Common Stockor

combination of each The Plan provides that the recipient of any such Award must remain actively employed until the

date all conditions for payment have been satisfied that payment will be made within seventy five 75 days after

satisfaction of all such conditions and that suchAwards may be revised to become payable upon Change in Control as

defined in the Plan



Performance Objectives The Committee hasidiac etionto establish performance conditions for when options

or SARs become exeEcisable arid Restricted Stock Awasdsbecorne vested Those performance conditions can be stated

with respect toFidelityTs an Affiliates or business units total shareholder return total shareholder return as

compared to total return on comparable basis of publicly available index net income pretax earnings

funds from.operations earnings before interestexpensetaxes depreciation and amortization operating margin

earnings per share return on equity capital assets or investment operating earnings working capital

ratio of debt to shareholders equity and revenue An award that is intended to become exercisable vested or

payable on the achievement of performance conditions means that the award will not become exercisable vested or

-payable solely eumere continued employment or scrvice However such an awardin addition to performance

conditions may be subject to continued employment or service by the participant Additionally the vesting exercise or

payment of an award can be conditioned on continued employment or service if it is not intended to be contingent on

perfrmnce conditions

Change in Control In the event of or in anticipation of Change in Control as defined in the Plan the

Committee in its discretion may terminate outstanding awards by giving the participants an opportunity to exercise

the awards that are then exercisable and then terminat without a1ypayinent all awards that have not been exercised

including those that were not exercisable or ii by paying the participant the value of the awards that are then vested

-exçrcisable.pr payable vitut payment for any awards that re not then vested exercisablç or payable However
awards will ilot be terminated to the extent they are to be continued after the Change in Control

Shareholder Right.s -Np pai1rcpant shall have any nghts as shareholder of Fidelity until such award is settled

by theissuarice of Common Stock othertliana Restricted Stok Award for which the participant will have the right to

receive dividends and vote the shares

Transferability Generallyeacb award is -trariferable except by will or the laws of descent and

distribution During the lifetime ofthepa4kipnt towhom the award is granted the award may only be exercised by
or payable to the participant However the Committee may provide that awards other than ISOs or Corresponding

SARs that arelated to ISOs may be transferred to certain-family members The holder of the transferred award will

be boun4 by the same terms and conditions that govepied such award during the period that it was held by the

participant xcept that such transferee may only transfer the war4 by will or the laws of 4çscent and distritution

Maximum Award Period No award shall be exercisable or become vested or payable more than 10
years

after

the date Qfgraiit An.ISO granted to participant who beneficially owns more than 10 percent of the comb.ined voting

power of Fidelity or any Affiliate determined by applying certainattributionrules or Corresponding SARthat relates

to such an ISOnay not be exercisable more than five years aftçr the date of grant

Compliance With App kable Law Np awardslialibe exercisabje vested or payable except in compliae with

all applicable Federal and atate laws and regulationinchiding without limitation tax and securities laws aiiy listing

agreement with any stock exchange to which Fidelity is party and the rules of all domestic stock exchanges on which

Fidelity sshares are listed Jn the event and the extent any award is made which is determined to be deferred

compensation within the contemplatiqn of the Code Section 409A or Treasury Department gijidance the Plan will.be

construed and applied consistçnt with that detemination

Amendment and Termination of Plan The Doard of Directors may amend or terminate the Plan at any time

provided however that no amendment may adversely impair the rights of participant with respect to outstanding

awards withotitthe participants consent Anamendtnent will be contingent on approval of Fidelitys shareholders to

the extent required by law or the rules of any stock exchange on which Fidelitys securities are then tra4ed or if the

amendment would increase the benefits accruing to participants ii permit repricing of outstanding options iii

increase the aggregate nulnber of shares of Common Stock that may be issued iv modify the requirements as to

eligiiility for participation in the Plan or change the stated performance conditions Since the Second Amendment

increaSes the number of shares authorized for issuance under-the Plan approval of the Fidelity shareholders is required

to adopt the Second Amendment

Forfeiture Provisions Awards do not confer upon any individual any right to continue in the employor

service of Fidelity orany Affiliate Alirights to any award that participant-has will be immediately forfeited if the

participant is discharged from employment or service for Cause as defined in the Plan



Markets Value of Underlying Secuitie he closing price of Fidelity Common Stock on March 2012 on the

NASDAQ NationalMarket was $6.3

Federal IncØme Tax consequences

The following disdsion Ææzesthprincipal Federal incoth tax consequences associated with awards

under the Plan The disussion is based dii la egulations ruliiigsand court decisions currently in effect all of which

are subject to chatige

ISOs Apatticipnt will not recogiuiº taxable incöhie thegrairt or exercise of an ISO participant will

recognize taxable iæcohie wheiihe or she poses ofhe thÆresOfCömmOn Stockaôquired under the ISO If the

disposition occiirsmore than yearaftei the graiit of th4SO FrnoiO than One year after itS exercise the ISO

holding period theparticipant will rogthelóiigitŒtm loss to the extent the amount realized from

the disposltiOn%xoeŒds or is les thanihe participants tax basis iirthshares of Common StOck participants tax

basis the Common Stock generally will be the amount the participant paid for the stock

IfComiiiO Stoºk acquired under an ISO isdisSosØd Ofbef4rethe expiration of th holding period

desàribód above the articipant .vill recognizeas ordinay iricone iii the
year

of the disposition the excess of the fair

market value of the Common Stocked thO date of exercisdfthØ ISO Over the exercise price Any additional gain will

be treated along-tortuorshOrt-term capital gaindependiiigon the length of time the participant held the shares

special rule applies to such disposition where the amount realized is less than the fair market value of the Common

Stock on the date Of exeitise of theISO hi that case the Ordinary iticome the participant will recognize will not exceed

the excess of the amoutitrealizedön the disposition Over the Oxercise price If the atnotint realized is less than the

exerciseprice the participant will recognize capital losslong-term ifthe stock was held more than one year and

short-term if held one year or less participant would receive different tax treatment if the exercise price were paid

by delivery of Qimmon Stack

Neither Fidelity nor any of its Affiliates will beentitIOd to Federal incoiie tax deduction with respect to the

grant or exercise of ÆnISO However in the event participant disposes of Common Stock acquired under au ISO

before the expiration of tlO ISO hOlding period duscribed above Fidelity or its Afl1iate generally will be entitled to

Federal income tax deduction equal to the amount of ordinary income the participantrecogæizes

NQSOs participant will not recogmze any taxable mcome on the grantof aNQSO On the exercise of

NQSO the participantwill recognize as ordinary income the excess Of the fair tiiarket value Of the Commoi Stock

acquired over the exercise price participants tax basis the Common Stock is the amount paid plus any amounts

included in income onexercise Thepa i$ntS holding period for the stock begins on acquisition of the shares Any

gain or loss that participant realizes on subsequent disposition of Common StockaquItd On the exercise Of

NQSO generally will be treated as long-term or short-term capital gain or loss depending on the length of time the

participant heldstiôli shaies Theamountofthn gain oriosswill equal the athount by vhich the amount italized on

the subsequent dispositioti exceeds ôiiiless than the pärticipantstax basis in his or hershares Aparticipant would

receive differenttax Weraid with Company Stock The exercise of NQSOgenerally

will entitle Fidelity ortitsAffiliate to claim Federal iiieouhe tax deduction equal tO the affiOunt of ordinary inComethe

participant recognizes If the participant is an employee that Ordinary income will constitute wages subject to

withholdmg and employment taxes

SARS participant will not recognize any taxable income at the time SARs are granted At the time of

exercise ofthe SARthe artiCipªnt will recognizeas ordinary incOme the amount of cashandthe fair market value of

any Common Stock that he or she receives Pidelityor its Affiliate will be entitled to Federal income tax deduction

eqnil to the atnount of ordinary incomCthpaikicipantreedgiiize If the prtiaipantis anemployed that ordinary

income will constitute wages subject to withholding and employment taxes

Restricted StOckAwards.A participant will recognize diiiary uiicomeon account Of Retricted Stock

Award on the first day that the sharº are eithef transferable di not subject to substantial risk of forfeiture The

ordinary income rØcognizOd willŁqnal the excOss of the fair thärket value of the CommOn Stock on stich dateover the

amount if any the participant paid for the Restricted Stock Award However even if the shares under Restricted

Stock Award are both nontransferable and subject to substantial risk of forfeiture the participant may make special

83b election to recognize income and have his or her tax consequences determined as of the date the Restricted

Stock Award is granted The participants tax basis in the shares received will be the income recognized plus the price

10



if any paid Any gain or loss that participalit realizes upni thesaleoKonimon Stock acquired pursuant to

Restricted Stock Award will be equal to the amount by which the amount realized on tJedipositicinexceeds or is less

than the participants tax basis in the shares and will be treated as long-term if the shares were held for more than one

year or short-term if the shares were held for one year or less capital gain or loss. The participants.holding period for

the stock begins on the date the shares are either transferable or not subject to substantial risk of forfeiture except that

the holding period will bçgion the date qf grant if the participan esthespecial 83b electin Fidelity or its

Affiliate will be entitie4 to Federal mcome tax deduction equal to the mary- income the paiticipirnt recognizes If

the participant is an employee that ordinary income will constitute wages subject to withholding .ao4 employment taxes

Incentive Aw/2rds participant will not recoize .any taablincome at the time an Incentive Award is

granted When the terms and conditions to which an inca lye ward.is-uject have been satisfiecI and the award is

paid the participant will -recognie as prdinary incorneh amoulit of cashand the fair market v4hieof any Common

Stcckhe oi she receives The participants holding perd in an yComiion Stock rçceivpd will begin onthe date of

receipt The participants tax basis in the Common Stock will equal the amount he or she includes ordinary.income

with respect to the Common Stock Any gain or tbt partiçipantealizes on subsequent disposition of the

Common Stock will be treated as long-term or short-term capital gain or loss depending on the participants holding

period for The amount of the gain or lqss will equal the amount by which the amount realized on

the disposition exceeds or is less than the participants tax basIs in the Common Stock Fidelity or its Affiliate will be

entitled to Fe4erai income tax deduction equal to the .arno jmt of ordinary inme.tbe prticipant recognies If tliç

participant is an employee that ordinary income will constitute wages subject ta withholding andempJQyment taxes

Limitation on Deductions The deduction for publicly-held corppration for ptheivise deductible

compensation to covered mp1oyeç genqrally is limited to one million dollars per year An individual is covered

emplo.yeeife or sheis the chief executive officer otoneofthe four highest-compesated officers rthe year other

than thechief executive cfficer The one millioji dollar limit does not apply to compensation paya1ie solely because of

the attaimnent of performance conditions that meet the requirements set forth in Section 162w of the Code and the

regulations thereunder Compensation is considered performance-based only if it is paid solely on the achievement

of one.Qrmore performance conditions acomm ttee çonisting solely of twoor more outside directors sets the

conditions cbefore payment the material te nisun4er which the compensation istp bepaiçl including

the performapce conditions are disclosed to and approved by the shareholders aiid before payment the committee

certifies in writing that the performance conditions have been met

The grant exercise vesting qr payment of an award may be postponed if Fidelityreas9nablybelieves that its

or any applicable Affiliates 4eduction with respect to such award wol4 be limited or eliminated by application of

Code Sectipn162m provided however such delay will last only until the earliest date at which Fidelity reasonably

anticipates the deduction will not be limited or eliminated under Code Section 162m or the calendar year in which the

participant separates ftom service

In addition to the limits on deductions imposed by Code Section 162m corporation cannot deduct any

that coilstitutçexcess parachute payments The recipient of the exçes parachute.paymcnt also woildbe

.stbjectto 2O%eise tax on sqch amount To te-eçtentthÆt awards .regrarited or become .exercisabJevested or

payabØbecÆuse of Change in Control such awards or theya4ue of the accelerated vesting exercis or payment may
result in an excess parachute payment Pursuan to the terms of the Plan awards or the amounts that become

exercisable vested or payable as result of the Change in Control will be reduced if the participant would be-better off

on an after-tax basis with the reduction than the participant would have been without the reduction

cfeed Compensationuks The Plan has been designed to .euable Fidelity to sthicthr awar4s that wi1 not

be subjpct to Code Section 409A which imposes restrictions and requirements .on deferred copipeulsation including the

typçs of awards that are available iiider4his Plan and increases the effective tax rate on the compensation realized

under noncompliant award

Currnt Ta Rates Longtermcapita1 gains of individuals currently are subject to FederaLincorne-tax at

maximum rate of .15 percent Short-term capital gaiis and or4inary income of individuals currently are subject to tax at

maximum rate o5 percent 1hese rates may thange and participants are encouraged to seek their own persopal tax

advice iconneetion wtb participatiop in the Plan
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Recommendation

The Board of Directors recotnmends vote FOR the approval of the Second Amendment to the Equity

Incentive Plan Un1ess marked to the contrary Proxy Cards received by the Company will be voted FOR this

proposal

PROPOSAL 3- RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF
INEPENDENTREGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors of Fidelity has appointed Ernst Young LLP as the Companys independent

registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31 2012 and is submitting suck appointment to

the shareholders for ratification

Ratification of the appointment of the independent rgistered public accounting firm requires the affirmative

vote of majority of the votes cast in person or byPrqxy by the shareholders of Fidelity at the Annual Meeting

Recommendati0n

The Board of Directors recommends that shareholders vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of Ernst

Young LLP as the Companys independent registered public accounting firm for the 2012 fiscal year Unless marked

to the contrary Proxy Cards received by the Company will be voted FOR this proposal

PROPOSAL 4- ADWSORY ONBINDING VOTE ON
EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 requires Fidelity to permit non-binding advisory vote

on the compensation of its Named Executive Officers The compensation details are described in the Executive

Compensation section of this Proxy Statement including Compensation Discussion and Analysis the tabular

disclosure regarding named executive officer compensation and the accompanying narrative disclosure

This proposal commonly known as say-on-pay proposal gives Fidelitys shareholders the opportunity to

endorse .or not endorse our executive cornpensationprogram and plicies During the time in which any obligation

arising from Fide1itys participation in the TARP Capital Purdhase Program remains outstanding the sharebolder

frequency vote will not be included

Because your vote is.advisory it will not be binding upon theBoar4 of Directors Iowever the Compensation

Committee will take into account the outcome of the yote when considering future executive compensation

The Board of Directors asks you to approve the following resolution

RESOLVED that the compensation paid to.our Named Executive Officers as disclosed in the

Compensation Discussion and Analysis the tabular disclosure regarding named executiv officer copipensation and the

accompanying narrative disclosure is hereby.appr9ved

Recommendation

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR this proposal Unless marked to the contrary Proxy Cards

receive4 by the Company will be vote4 FOR this proposal

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During 2011 the Board of Directors held eight meetings Each of the directors attended at least 75 percent of

the meetings of the Board of Directors and the meetings of the committees on which the director served Fidelity has an

Audit Committee Compensation Committee aNominating Committee and.n Executive Committee

Directors are encouraged tp attend the Annual Meetmg of Shareholders Fight directors attended the 2011

Annual Meeting of Shareholders ..
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The Board believes that our Chief Executive Officer is best situated to serve as Chairman of the BQard of

Directors because he is most familiar with our business and strategy and is therefore the most appropriate director to

lead discussions of our strategy and risk Our independent directors bring experience oversight and expertise from

outside the Company and industry while our Chief Executive Officer provides company-specific experience
and

expertise The Board believes that the combined role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer promotes effective and

thorough meetings and discussions and facilitates the flow of information between management and the Board In

2011 the Board established the position of Lead Director The Board selected Dr Donald Harp Jr as Lead

Director As Lead Director Dr Harp presides at meetings of the Board in the absence of the Chairman including the

executive sessions of the non-management members of the Board

Both the Board asa whole and its committees playan active role in Overseeing management of ourrisks The

Board regularly reviews information with members of senior management regarding ourstrategy and key areas of the

Company including operations finance legal and regulatory as well as the risks associated with each The Boards

Compensation Committee is responsible for overseeing the management of risks relating to our executive compensation

plans and reviewing the risks associated with our overall compensation practices and policies for all of our employees

The Audit Committee oversees management of financial risks The Nominating Committee manages risks associated

with the independence of the Board and potential conflicts of interest While each committee is responsible for

evaluating certain risks and overseeing the management of such risks the entire Board is regularly informed about such

risks through committee reports

Audit Committee

Fidelity has separately designated standing Audit Committee that oversees the financial and accounting

reporting process assures that an audit program is in place to protect the assets of Fidelity assures that adequate internal

controls exist oversees the internal audit function reviews the Report of Management on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting and related testing and documentation selects the independentaccountants for appointment by the

Board of Directors and evaluates their performance During 2011 the Audit Committee held eight meetings

The Audit Committee is governed by written charter approved by the Audit Committee and the Boartof

Directors The charter is available under the Investor Relations section of our website at www.fldelitvsouthern.com

The Board of Directors of Fidelity has determined that all ofthe members of the Audit Committee have

sufficient knowledgeinfinancial and accounting matters to serve on the Audit Committee in addition each member of

the Audit Committee qualifies as an audit committee financial expert as defined by Item 407d5ii of Regulation

S-K of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act The current member composition of

the AuditCommittee satisfies the NASDAQ.Marketplace Rules applicableto companies with stock listed for quotation

on the NASDAQ Global Select Market Kevin King serves as Chainti ofthe Committee

Nominating Committee

The primary functions of the Nominatmg Committee are to identi1r individuals qualified to become members

of the Board reconimend to the Board thedirector nominees for each annual meeting of the sharehôldersand fill

vacancies and new positions on the Board Fidelitys Board of Directors has determined that the members of our

Nominating Committee are independent as defined in the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules applicable to companies with

stock listed for quotation on the NASDAQ Global Select Market The Nominating Committee held twO meetings

during 2011 Major General Ret David Bockel serves as Chairman of the Committee

The Nominating Committee is governed by written charter approved by the Nominating Committee and the

Board of Directors The charter is available under the Investor Relations section of our website at

www.tldelitvsouthern.com

Compensation Committee

The prir aryfunctioiis df the Cbmpensatiöæ Committee are to piOvide assistance to the Board OfDirectorsin

fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to the determination of goals and objectives to evaluate performance

relative to those goals and objectives to determine the remuneration of all executive officers of Fidelity and each of its

direct subsidiaries and to grant equity incentives and administer the Stock Option Planand the itity Incentive Plan

In addition the Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing and evaluating compensation and benefit plans
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for all officers azul employees to ensure they are appropriate competitive an4 properly reflect Fidelitys objectives and

performance Likewise the Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing and discussing the Compensation

Discussion and Analysis and recommending its inclusion in this Proxy Statement Fidelitys Board of Directors has

determined that the members of our Compensation Committee are independent as defined in the NASDAQ Marketplace

Rules applicable to companies with stock listed for quotation on the NASDAQ Global Select Market During 2011 the

Compensation Committee held five meetings Major General Ret David Bockel serves as Chairman of the

Coniinittee

The Compensation Committee is governed by.a written charter approved by the Compensation Committee and

the Board of Directors The charter is available under the Investor Relations section of our website at

www.fldelitvsouthern.com

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is authorized to exercise any and all of the powers of the Board of Directors in the

management of the business and affairs of Fidelity except where specific power is reserved to the Board of Directors by

the Bylaws or by applicable law During 2011 the Executive Committee held three meetings James Miller Jr

serves as Chairman of the Committee

EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Objectives of Executive Compensation Program

The objectives of our executive compensation program are

to provide competitive levels of compensation which take into account not only annual but long-term

performance goals and the strategic objectives outlined in our strategic plan all designed with the

ultimate objective of improving shareholder value

to attract hire and retain well-qualified experienced ethical motivated and dedicated executives

to evaluate the perfonnance of executive officers in changing economic interest rate and credit

quality environment

.t reward executiyes based on corporate performance the attainment of long-term goals and strategic

objectives the level of each executives initiative responsibility and achievements and how

effectively risk is managed and

to pmvide competitiye financial security for executives and dependents in the event of change in

control death disability or retirement

Whal.our Executive Compensation Program is Designed to Reward

Our executive compensation program is designed to recognize and reward both corporate and individual

performance primarily through competitive salaiy arrangements annual incentive compensation plans restricted stock

awards stock option grants employment agreements deferred compensation plan life insurance programs certain

perquisites and other broad-based employee benefit plans such as our 40 1k Plan

What are the Regulatory Limits on Executive Compensation

TARP Cap ital Purchase Program On December 19 2008as part of the United States Treasury Departments

the Treasury TARP Capital Pprchae Program the CPP Fidelity entered into an Agrement the Purchase

Agreement with Treasury pursuant to which Fidelity sold 48200 shares of Fidelitys Fixed Rat.e Cumulative

Perpetual Preferred Stock Senes havmg liquidation preference of $1 000 per share the Preferred Shares and ii

issued warrant the Warrant to purchase 2266458 sharesofCommon.Stock.for an aggregate purchase price of

$48.2 million in cash

In the Purchase Agreement Fidelity agreed that until such time as Treasury ceases to own any securities of

Fidelity acquired pursuant to the Purchase Agreernent.Fidelity will take all necessary actions to ensure that its bçnefit

plans with respect to its senior executive officers comply with Section 111b of the Emergency Economic Stabilization
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Act o12008 the EESA as implemented by any guidance or regulation under the EESA and agreed not tO adopt any
1enefit plans with rŁspeàtt or which cover its senior executive officers that do nOt Æomply withthe EESAandthe

applicable exectitives have conSented to the foregoing Sectioti 111b of EESAprovides for the àecutive

compensation and corporate gàvemanc standards to include

limits on codipensÆtlorithatexclude inóedtives for certain senior executive officers of financial

institutions to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of the financial institution

required recovery of any bonus or incentive compensation paid to senior exedutive officer based on

statements of earnings gains or other critena that are later proven to be materially iriaccurate

prohibition on the financial institution from making any excess parachute payment to any senior

executive officer as defined under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code an Excess Severance

Payment during the period that Treasury holds an equity or debt position and

agreement to limit claim to federal mcome tax deduction for semor executive compensation

excess of $500000 per year

American Recovery and
Reinyemnent

Act On February 17 2009 the American Recovery and Reinvestment

Act of 2009 the ARRA was enacte1 Tcie AkRA commonly known as the economic stimulus or economic

recovery package includes wide
variçty

of programs intended to stimulate the economy and provide for extensive

infrastructure energy health and edi1CÆtiohdeeds hi additioiiARRA imposes certain additional executive

compensation and corporate expenditure limits on all TARP recipients until the institution has repaid Treasury the

amount of CPP investment which is now permitted under ARRAwithOtit penalty andwithOut the need ró raise new

capital subject to Treasurys consultation with the recipients appropriate regulatory agency The executive

compensation standards are more stringent than thOse under the CPP Qiiidance on executive ompensation was

provided by the Department of Treasury on June 15 2009 through the publication of TARP Standards for

Compensation ahd Corporate Governance fnterzm Fin-al Rule

The additional standards include

prohibition on the payment or accrual of bonus retention award or incentive compensation to

Senior Executive Officer SEO or certain highly compensated employees subject to certain

exceptions for payments made in the form of restricted stock and the amountof financial assistance

provided to the TARP recipients

prohibition on employee ompensation plans4hat would encourage manipulation of earnings reported

by the TARP recipient to enhance an employees compensation

prohibition on providing tax gross-ups to the SEO and next 20 most highly compensated employees

adoption of an excessive or luxury expenditures policy and

compliance with federal securities rules and regulations regarding the sul9tnission of non-binding

resolution on SEO cOmpensation to shareholders

How We Choose the Amounts for Each Element of Compensation

The Compensation Committee annually evaluates and recommends to the independent directors the salary and

total remuneration of James Milld Jr our Chairman and principal executive officer our principal financial officer

and urothØr two executive ifficers the Named Executive Officers The Committee evaluates data publicly

available connection with this revie and does not utilize any compensation consultants Durmg 2011 our Named
Executive Officers were Mr Miller Stephen Brolly ont Chief Financial Officer Palmer Proctor Jr our

President and David Buchanan Vice President This review is based on each executive officers individual

achievements and contributions to corporate short-term and long-term goals and objectives for the prior year as well as

the mdividtial and corporate goals and objectives for the current year As result of this qualitative review the

executive officersarºnot encouraged tc engage in excessi risk-taking that oukl threaten the value of the financial

institution the CompŁtiation COmmittee evaluates the performance Of the Chairman and President and recommends
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their compensation while the Chairmans evaluations and compensation recommendations for the other executive

officers are considered by the Compensation Committee The Cçmmittee as part of its evaluation also considers the

outcome of the say-on-pay vote by the shareholders The Companys shholders approved the say-on-pay
proposal at the last annual shareholders meeting held in 2011

The Compensation Committee also met every six months in 2011 with the member of management responsble

foriisk management to.review oir incentive compensation prçgrams for purposes of determining whether they

encourage excessive or unnecessary risk-tdng by our employees As part of its review the 2ompensation Committee

considered the yarious risks.to which Fidelity is sulject including market liquidity interest rate operational financial

crcdit quality and other risksand how Fidelitys incentive compensation programs may contribute to risk Tue

Compensation Committee aiso considered Fidelitys controls and actions taken to mitigate and monitor those risks

including the Companys clawback policy

Incomiection with suchreview the Compensation Committee concluded that Fidelitys incentive

compensation programs do not encourage Fidelitysemployees to take excessive or unnecessary risks that threaten the

value of the Company Instead the Compensation Committee concluded that Fidelitys incentive compensation

programs are designed to encourage the employees to achieve individual and corporate goals and objectives hile
continually assessing and monitoring the risks

Incentive CompensationFians Employment and Executive Continuity Agreements

Non-equity incentive compensation plans and employment and executive continuity agreements have been

provided to our-executive officers to aid in retention to encourage continuity to-provide .fornon-compete requirements

if employment isterminated and to remain competitive with the compensation programs of comparable financial

institutions

Incentive Compensation Ilans The Compensation 1Committee be1iyes that non-equity.incentive plan

compensation is valuable -clement of overall executive officer compensation to motivate xecutive officers to chieve

individual and corporate short-term and long-term or strategic goals and objectives Although çach executive officer

was eligible for 20% of his salary or annual base compensation or such other amount as determined by the

Compensation Committee as non-equity incentive compensation during 2011 no non-equity incentive compensation

was awarded

Messrs Millers and Proctors employment agreements provide that they will be eligible during 2012 for 20%
of theirbase compensation of $750000 and $460000 respectively as incentive compensation or such other amonnt as

determined by the-Compensation Committee following it5 evaluation of corporate and individual performance relative

to the executive compensation established at the beginning of the calendar year and such other.rneasuies-that the

Committee may consider in its sole discretion Because of the restnctions imposed under the ARRA this incentive

compensation will be paid if earned in accordance with the rules adoptedby Treasury un4er the ARRA

Fidelity and Fidelity Bank ehtere4 into incentrifei ompensationag-eemeni with Stephen Brolly as Gbief

Financial Officer and DavidBuchÆnan as Vice Presidentproviding that-Messrs Brolly and Buchanan willbe eligible

during 2012 for 20 of their base compensation of 50000 and $400000 respectively as incentive crnpensation or

such other amOunt asdetermined by the Compensation Committee folluwing its evaluation of.corporate an4 individual

performance relative to the executive-coiuupeusation established at the beginning of the-calendar year and such other

measures that the Committee mayconsider in its sole discretion Because of the restrictions imposed under the ARRA
this incentive compensation will be paid if earned in accordance with the rules adopted by Treasury under the ARR.A

Employment Agreements Executive officers are provided with employment and continuity agreements of

vari.ous terms to provide them assurance of compensation following change in control The greemntssee as

retentionprogri -as well-as program to provide for non-compete reqpirement Under the ARRA-an4the.rules

adopted by Treasury certain provisions described below relating to incentiye compensation and severance payments are

restricted until we have repai4the TARP fun4s ach of our Named Executive Officers have executed waivers so that

the provisions st forth in their employment agreements that do not comply with .the ARRA will not be enforced for so

long as Fidelity and Fide1ityB.ank are subject to these restrictions as described below under TARP-Related Wivers

and Agreements --- .-
--
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Fidelity atidPide1ItyBaiik entered into employment agreement With James Miller Jr as Chairman and

ChiOfExecutiOfficÆrOf Fidelity and FidolitS- Batik for three-year periodcothmeæcing January 2007 The

amended Dbethber 162008 to comply with intdmâl RevenueCode Section 409A

Section 409A amended effective January 2010 to extend the ternit of the agreement until December 31 2012 and

amended effective January 2012 to increase the annual base salary to $750000 The employment agreement

provide forabage iÆliyo75O0O0 per year and make Mr Miller eligible for 20% of his base compensation as

incentive cothnsati ioistich her amothit as determined by th Compensation Committee following itsevaluation

oitporaeahdindiviial per
OanceieiÆtive to the exedtitive cothpensation established at the beginning of the

caietidar year and suchother measures or modifióiitions àthe COmmittee at its sole discretion may considet Under the

agreement If Mr Miller empioytitant terminated by Fidelity for any reason other than for cause as defined below
death or total disability MtMl1er wiu1upoit execution of release receivean amOunt equal to three times hisbase

salary less the aggregate amount to be paid in connection with his non-compete agteetnent as described below paid

over thirty-six 36 month period and Will be eligible to continue participation in the employee benefit programs of

Fidelity for eighteen 18 mOnths after the datOdftetininatibnon the same basis as other executives Termination for

causeisdefined as thOcórnmission of feiOnt orany other crime involving moral tiirpittnde the commission of

dishoflŒsiacts intended to result inpersonal gain illegal tise of controlled substances niisappropriatiOu of Company

asse rir the breach ofany OthŁ term of the agreement such as thesolicitation Of clients thO solicitation of employees

covenants not to compete or confidentiality If such payment were to bO made under the current employmónt

agreement such payment would equal approximately $2.25 million excluding payments related to continued

participation in the employee benefit prbantPajments Made by Fidelity and Fidelity Batik for Mr Millers

employee benefit programs totaled less than $10000 in 2011

Additionally the eniloythent agreemefttprovides that upnterrnination of Mr Millers employment for

period of eighteen 18 monthth Non-CbmpetePerlod hewill not engage inacompetitive businesswithin fifty

50 mile radius of Fidelitys Buckhead location its headquarters will not solicit customers or employees of Fidelity

and will not disclose any confidential information of Fidelity In consideration of Mr Millers non-compete agreement

he Will recoiven amount equal to 60 peent60% of his base salary for each year or portion thereof during the Non
Cotpete Period In àdditiortPidelity vili maini in during Mt Millers lifetime regardless of the termination of his

employment Orethployrnent agreement for ny reasOn insurance policies in the aggregate face amount of $8 million

payable to his desigiiatedheneficiariesbr his estate

Fidelity and Fidelity Bank also entered into an employment agreement with Palmer Proctor Jr as President

of Fidelity and Fidelity Bank for three-year period commencing January 2007 The employment agreement was

amended December i6 200 to comply With SectiOn409A amended effective January 2010 to extend the term of

the agreement until December 31 2012aridathendedeffeetive hnuaiy1 2012 to increase the annual base salary to

$460000The emplyent agreementprovidesifr abase salary of $460000 per year and makes Proctor eligible

for 20% of base comDensationas hteentive compensation otuch other amount as determinedby the Compensation

Committe fOllowing its evalUation of oipofate and individual performancerelative to the executive compensation

established at thebeginni of the calendar yearimd such Other measures or modifications asthCommittOe at its sole

discretion may consider Under the agreement if Mr Proctors employment is terminated by Fidelity for any reason

otherthan forOauseas definedabove desthortotalthsabiiityMr Proctor will upon execution of release receive

an amount equal tothree thms his base sa1ary1es the aggregateanioünt be paid in connection with his non-compete

agreemendescribedbeio th t-six36 nioiith priodand will be eligible to continue articipation

in the employee benefit pr0gaih of FidelityfOr eighteen F8 months after the date of termination on the same basis as

other executives If siibh paymt were tO be made undet thecurrent employment agreement such1aymentwould

epiii apptotimately $13 8millibn excluding payMents related to continued participation in the employeebeneflt

prdgiarn Payments4nde by Fidelity and Fidelity Bank for Mr Proctors employee benefit progims totaled less than

$10000 in 2011

AdditionaIlyMr PrOctir agrees that upon termination of his employment for period of eighteen 18 months

the Non-COmete1eriod he will not engage inacbmpetitivebusinesswithin fifty 50 mile radius of Fidelitys

Btickhead location1 its hi adquarters-ssili net solicit customers or employees of Fidelity and will not disclose any

confidemial infonnatiort of Fidelit In cOnsideration of Mr Proctors non-dompete agreement he Will receive an

amount equal to40 pOfcent40% of his base salary foreach year orportiou thereof during the Non-Compete Period

hi addition FidOlitywill màintai dt1ring Mr Proctor lifetime regardless Of the termination of his employment or

employment agreement for any reason insurance policies in the aggregate face amount of $1.5 million payable to his

designated beneficiaries or his estate
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Executive Continuity Agreements Fidelity maintains executive continuity agreements with James Miller

Jr Palmer Proctor Jr Stephen Brolly and David Biehan to encourage such executive officers to continue

their employment with Fidelity following change of control Each agreement ensures that the executive will maintain

his salary following change of control for period of time up to one year with respect to Messrs Brolly and

Buchanan and upto three years for Messrs.MiUer and Proctor and will continue to have the benefit of incentive or

other programs generally available to executives If any executiveis terminated other than for cause total disability or

death during the applieable change o1 control pqiiod or the exçcutive terminates his employment for good reason the

executive will receive for period of oie yçar with respect toMesrs Brolly and Buchanan or period of three

years with respect to Messrs Miller and Proctors his.final compensation less the2aggregate amount to be paid in

connection with the executives agreement not to compete with Fidelity not to solicit its customers or employees and

to maintain the confidentiality of its confidential infrnmation Additionally each executive agrees that for period of

time twelve 12months.for Messrs.Brolly and Buchanan and eighteen 18 months for Messrs Ivliller and Proctor

the Non-Compete Penod he will not engage in competitive bllsmess vithm fifty 50 mile radius of Fidelity

Buckhead office its headquarters will not solicit customers or employees of Fidelity and will not disclose any

confidential inforinaticcr ofFidelity In cqnsideratiQnof sucll agreement ach executive will receive payment equal to

4Qpercent40% QfuS each yçaicor portion thereof dvring.th Non-Compete Period with respect to

Messrs Proctgr Brolly and ichanan3 and qul to 60 percent 60% of his kase salary for each year or portion thereof

during the .Non-Compet Priod with respect to1Mr Miller The executives will also continue to be eligible to

participate in Fidelitysbenefttpian for twelve 12 monthswitll respect toMessrs Brolly and Buchanan or eigiiteen

18rnonths with .respctto MessrsMiller and Proctor and will beçntitledto outplacement services for period up to

two 2yearsthat wiulbepaidby Fidelity with maximum cost of $00Q0 The executives will not receive

dupli.catioa of beilefits under the xecutiveContinuity Agreements and any Employment Agreement or other

agreement program or azxangpment because benefits paid under the Executive Continuity Agreement will be reduced

by anysimilar benefits paid otherwise.

If payments were to be made under the current executive continuity agreements such payments would equal

approximately $2.25 million $1.38 million $250000 and $400000 for Messrs MillerProctor Brolly and Buchanan

respectively reduced for payments-naje if any under themploynent agreements described above excluding

payments related to continued participation in the employee benefit programs and possible outplacement services as

described above Payments for employee benefit programs made by Fidelity and Fidelity Bank totaled less than

$10000 for each Named Executive Officer in 2011 The executive continuity agreements were amended and restate4

December 16 2008 in order to comply with the rules of Section 409A

Under theçxecutjvectinjj.tyagreemçts fiiai compensation is4efined asthe highest ofi the executives

compensation for t1ie12 full ca1ndar monthsimnediatcly peçe1ing tIle pange of control iithe executives annual

base salary rate payahlebyFi4eUty the Bank and any 1liatc5jl efft imnie4iately prece4ing the change of control

or iiithe executives annual base salary rate as set by Fidelity the Bank and any affiliate effective at any time during

the employment period Termnaiion for goodeason by.the.execitive is defrnçd as an uncured çvent which occurs

without the executives consent such as an adverse matetial change in responsibilities an assignment of responsibilities

inconsistent with the position of the ax tivaany.remov4 oftheexecutive froi position held ptiorto the change in

control reduction in salary or incentive compensation required relocation more than 15 miles from his currçnt place

of employment or the failure of Fidelity to continue any benefits in which the executive participated prior to the change

in control

TARP-Related Waivers an4Agreements con ection witirthe TARP CPP each of the Named Executive

Officers iexcuted waiver voluntarily waiving ay claimagainstTreasury or idelity for any changes to

compensation or benefits arrangements that are required to comply with the regulation issued .by Treasury under the

TARP CPP and acknowledging that the regulation may require modification of the compensation bonus incentive and

other benefit plans arrangements and policies and agreements collectively Benefit Plans as they relate to the period

Treasury holds any equity Or debt securities of the.Company acquired through the TARP and ii entered into senior

executive officer agreement with Fidelity amending the Benefit Plans with respect to each such Named Executive

Officer as may be necessary during the penod that Treasury çvns any debt or equity securities of the Company acquired

pursuant to the PurÆhase Agreement or the Warrant to comply with Section 111b of the EESA None of the payments

under any of our agreements with our Named Executive .Offic ers would beçonsidered Excess Parachute Payments
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What are the Elements of compensation and Ho pEach Element Fits into Overall Compensation Objectives

Annual Salary The Committee believes that the mOst important OlemŁnt of executive officer compensation to

attract retain and mOtivate executive officers in our market is annual salary which is heavily weighted in the

determination of each execntive officers tOtal compensation The Compensation Committee believed that the executive

officers acted decisively and effectively during the ecottothic problems that continued throughotit 201 and based upon

the Committeesreview of the perforntanceof the banldng indusa iæour markets and Fidelitys individual financial

performance the executive officers were given salary increases effective January 2012

Bonus The Compensation Committee dOes not prOvide4br bonus plan as an element of total executive

officer compensation although one-time discretionary bonuses have bOen awarded from time to time to certain

executive officers for achievement and superior perfbrmance

Incentive Compensation As described above each e.ecütive Officer is eligible for 20% Of his salary or other

base compensation or such other amount as determined by the Compensation Committee as incentive cothpensation

Absent the restrictions imposed under the TARP Rules such incentive compensation may be paid in the form of cash or

equity The TARP Rules restrict the ability of Fidelity tb pay incentive compenSationto certain employees other than

in the form of restricted stoôk thatcontains certain restrictions Stock options and restricted stock awards are granted to

executive officers from time to time to enhance the alignment of their obj ectives with those of shareholders in terms of

building a1ue to provide an opportunity for increased levels of ownership by executhe officers to encourage

executive officer retentiOn through lOnger-term incentives and to mailitain competitive levels of total compensation

Options are generhily awarded at the cloiing market price on the date ofgrant TheCo pensationComthitteo has never

granted options with an exercise price that is less than the closing price on the date of grant ThCoinpensatiirn

Committee will from time to time award options as an inducement to join the Company and these are generally awarded

with the date of hire as the grant date

Fidelity as TARP recipient was restricted from paying boituses or granting Stock Options to certain

execUtive officers

Other Compensation

We provide executive officers with perquisites and other personal benefits that are believed to be reasonable

and consistent with the overall compensation program to asSist with attracting and retaining.executive officers These

perquisites and benefits are periodically reviewed foreOniposition- and appropriateness Certain executive officers are

provided life insurance through split-dollar plans company automobiles and country club memberships

Fidelity has adopted certairt broad-based employee benefit plans in which executives and other officers

together with employees hae the right to participate Benefits undettheseplans are not directly Or indirectly tied to

Fidelitys performance Contributions by Fidelity to thº401k Plan are voluntary at the election of the Board of

Directors

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the annual total compensation paid by Fidelity and its subsidiarŁs for 2011

2010 and 2009 to our Named Executive Officers No bonUaes or non-equity incentive plan compensations were paid

to any Named Executive Officers in 2011 2010 or 2009
Restricted

Name and Principal Stock All Other

Position Year $a1ary Awards Compensation Total

JameaB MillerJr. 2011 $600000 $174015W $774501

Chairman and Chief 2010 600000 $112500 176685 889185

Executive Officer 2009 600000 128471 728471

Stephen Brolly 2011 200000 30002 203000

Chief Financial Officer 2010 200000 90000 5002 295002

2009 200000 6000 206000
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Includes Fidelitysmatchitig contributions of $1000 to Mr Millersaccount in the tax-qualified savings pian

401k Plan $3735 for personal use of company automobile arid $166482 for life insurance for Mr
Miller under splif-dóllar and corporate owned lifeinsurance policies based an standard IRS tables providing

the costoftŁrm lifeinsurance for comparable coverage Under the split-dollar insurance policies Fidelity

will receive upOn termination of the pOlicies proceeds equal to the insurance premiums paid plus market

yield Also includes $3284 for annual club fees based on personal use

Represents Fidelitys matching contributioii of $3000 to Mr Brollys account in the 401k.Plan

Includes Fidelitys matching contributions of $7350 to Mr Proctors account in the 401k Plan $3126 for

personal use of company automobile arid $1458 wider split-dollar life insuranóe policies based on standard

IRS tables providing the cost of term life insurance for comparable coverage in which Fidelity will receive

upon termination of the policy proceeds equal to the msurance premiums paid plus market yield Also

mcludes $1727 for annual club fees based on personal use

Includes Fidelitys matching contributions of $5200 to Mr Buchanans.account in the 40 1k Plan $1720 for

personaluse of company autopiobileand $1091 wider split-dollar life insurance policy based on standard

IRStab1esproviding the insurance for comparable coverage in which.Fidelity will receive

upon termination of the policy proceeds equal to the insurance premiums paid plus market yield

The value of the stock awards is calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 without forfeiture

amount

Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2011

There were no grants of plan-based awards to the named Executive Officers in 2011

Outstanding Equity Awards at December31 2011

The following table sets forth the outstanding equity awards at December 31 2011 for the Named Executive Officers

___________
Stock Awards

Equity Incentive

plan awards

number of

unearned shares

Option units or other

Expiration rights that have

Date not vested

07/22/2013 25000

07/22/2013 20 119600

149500

149500

Name and Principal

Position

Palmer Proctor Jr

President

David Buchanan

Vice President

Year Salary

2011 360000

2010 360O0
2009 360000

Restricted

Stock

Awards5

112500

112500

2011

2010

2009

All Other

Compensation

13661

16617

16531

80l1
8766

9434

260000

260000

260000

Total

373661

489117

376531

268011

381266

269434

Option Awards

Number of

Securities

Underlying

Unexercised

Options

Eiercsab1e

James Miller Jr 75000

Stephen Brolly 5000

Name

Option

Exercise

Price

4.60

4.60

Palmer Proctor Jr

David Buchanan

Euity Incentive

plan awards

market or payout

value of unearned

shares units or

other rights that

have not vested

$149500

75000 4.60 07/22/2013

50000 4.60 07/22/2013

25000

25000
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested

There were no option exercises and no stock awards vested for any of the Named Executive Officers for the

year ended December 31 2011.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

There is nonqualified deferred compensation plan available to executive officers to provide an opportunity to

defer amounts in addition to that which may be deferred under the 401k Plan Under the nonqualified deferred

compensation plan tie Board or its designee specifies the employees eligible to participate in the plan and the effective

date and period of each such employees eligibility to participate The amount deferred by the participant is deducted

each pay peroctin winch the participant has compensation during the period of participation Upon written notice by

December 31s each yeaç participant may increase decrease or discontinue the deferral election for .the following

year.. participants ii$erest in the value of the account is
l00/o

vested and non-forfeitable

The participants account is credited with earnings or losses determined assuming the amounts credited to the

account were invested in the investment funds the participant has selected from the funds madeavailable from time to

time under the plan for such purpose There is no current or potential future cot to the Company because the plan

cqufres the investments to match employee investment selections

Unless the participant has specified date for the commencement of distributions on the participants

termination of service with or retirement from the Company the amounts credited to the account shall be paid

commencing as soon as feasible after such termination of service or retirement provided that in the case of participant

that is key employee as defined in SectiOn 409A if the stoek of the nployeris then publicly traded on an

established securities markeVor othetwise any amOunts whichbecorne payable from this plan within the first six

months after such participants terthinatioti shallbedelayed and paidimmediately following the close of stich sixth

month or if earlier the date of sUch participants death

In no event will distribution of any part of participants account be made prior to the earliest of the

participants termination of service unless the participant has specified later date in an election then in effect ii the

date specified by the participant in the most recent election then in effect iiithe date the participant becomes disabled

iv the death of the participant or the occurrence of an unforŒseeable emergency

At the end of each year the Board or its designee deteimines whether there willbe an employer contribution

credit for the year Such determination ismade an individual participantb.asis with the Board having absolute

discretion to determine whether an individual participant will be credited with an employer contribution the amount of

such contribution and the conditions the participant must satisfy to be credited with such contribution Although the

plan provides for Company contributions there have been no Company contributions to this plan for the past five years

The following table sets forth the nonqualified deferred compensation transactions for the year ended

December 31 2111 and the aggregate balance at December 31 2011 for the Named Executive Officers

Executive Aggregate

Contributions in Earnings Aggregate Balance

Name 2011 in 2011 at 12/31/11

James Miller Jr

Stephen Brolly

Palmer Proctor Jr

David Buchanan 50653 10362 560813

There were no Company contributions to or withdrawals or distributions from this plan for the year ended

December31 2011
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Agreements with Executive Offlcers and Post-Employment Compensation

Messrs Miller Proctor Brolly and Buchanan have entered into employment and executive continuity

agreements that are described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section

There were no other arrangements or understandings between exeôutive officers or nominees for directors with

any other person who was or is to be selected as director executive officer or nominee

Tax and Accounting Considerations

The Companys compensation programs are affected by each of the following

Accounting for Stock-Based CompensationThe Company accounts for stock-based compensation in

accordance with the requirements of ASC 718 The Company also takes into consideration ASC 718 and

other generally accepted accounting principles in determining changes to policies and practices for its

stock-based compensation programs

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue CodeThis section limits the deductibility of compensation for

our chief executive officer and our other Named Executive Officers unless the compensation is less than

$1 million during any fiscal year or is performance-based under Section 162m

Section 409A of the Internal Revenue CodeSection 409A imposes additional significant taxes in the

event that an executive officer director or service provider received deferred compensation that does not

satisf.the requirements of Section 409A We believe that our plans have been designed and are operating

to appropriately comply with Section 409A

Section 111b of EESA provides for the executive compensation and corporate governance standards

to include limits on compensation that exclude incentives for senior executive officers of financial

institutions to take unnecessary and excessive.risks that threaten the value of the financial institution

required recovery of any bonus or incentive compensation paid to senior executive officer based on

statements of earnings gains or other criteria that are later proven to be materially inaccurate prohibition

on the financial institution from making any excess parachute payment to any senior executive officer

as defmed under Sction 280G of the Internal Revenue Code an Excess Severance Payment during the

period that Treasury holds an equity or debt.position and agreement to limit claim to federal income

tax deduction for senior executive compensation in excess of $500000 per year

Executive Share Ownership Guidelines

The Compensation Committee supports share ownership by ts executiyes but has not imposed.formal

ownership guidelines as of December 31 2011 Details regarding the ownership of shares by the Named Executive

Officers are set forth under Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Compensation of Nonemployee Directors

Dunng 2011 each nonemployee director of Fidelity received $10000 annual retainer paid four quarterly

installments divided qualiy btween Fidelity and Fidelity Bank ad4ition each nonernployec directorreceived

$2000 for each Fidelity and Fidelity Bank Board of Directors meeting attended and $i000 for each coimpittee

meeting attended

Director retainers and fees are reviewed periodically by the Compensation Committee and adjustments are

recommended to the Board The retainers and fees are believed tobe competitive and appropriate to attract and retain

well-qualified and committed members The nonemployee members of the Board of Directors are provided no

compensation or benefits other than retainers and fees
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The following tablesein forth the compensatiOn of honemployeedIrectOrs for the year ended December 31

9011

Fees Earned

and Paid in

Name Cash

Major General Ret David Bóckel $45000

Wm Millard Choate 4500O

Dr Donald HarpJr 43000

Kevin King 50000

William Lankford Jr 49000

Clyde Shepherd III 46000

Rankin Smith Jr 49000

Each of these directors was awarded 1000 stock.options on July 22 2008 with an option exercise price of

$4.60 an option expiration date of July 22 2013 and vesting schedule of one-third for three years beginning

July 22 2009 As of December 31 2011 none of the options had been exercised and each of these directors

had 1000 stock options vested and 1000 stock options outstanding

There were no stock options stock awards non-equity incentive plan compensation or other compensation

granted or paid for the year ended December 31 2011

James Miller Jr the Cotupanys Chairman-and ChiefExecutive Officer and Palmer Proctor Jr the

Companys President are not included in the bove table as they are employees of the Company and thus receive no

compensation for their services as directors The compensation received by Messrs Miller and Proctor as employees of

the Company is shown in the Summary Compensation Table on page 19

COMPENSATIONCOMMITTEE REPORT

The Competisation Committee has rOviewOd Fidelitys Compensation Discussion and Analysis for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2011 and has discussed the contents with managethent

based upon the review and discussiOn noted above the Compensation Committee has recommended to the

Boatd that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement for the fiscal year ended

December31 2O1 and annual repOrt on FOrm 10-K The Compensation Discussion and Analysis sets forth the

committees description of-each senior executive officer compensation plan and explanation of how each Named

Executive Officer compensation arrangement does not encourage the senior executive officers to take unnecessary and

excessive risks that threaten the valuO ofthe finantial insitution2 identification of the employee compensation plans

and explanation of how any unnecessary risks posed by the plans have been limited and explanation of how the

employee coinpensatioti plans do nOt encourage the manipulation of reported earnings to enhance the compensation of

any employee

In addition the Compensation Committee certifies that at meetings held in March and September 2011 it

reviewed with Fidelitys senior risk officer the incentive compensation arrangements with its Named Executive Officers

and has made reasonable efforts to ensure that such arrangements do not encourage these senior executive officers to

take unnecessdr and- excessive risks that threaten the value of the financial institutiofi it revieed with Fidelitys

senior rink offiCer the employee compensation arrangements and has made all reasonable efforts to limit any

unnecesatyrisks these atrangeitients pose to the financial Instiution and it reviewed the ethployee -compensation

arrangements to eliminate any features of those arrangements that would encourage
the manipulation ofreported

earnings of the financial institution to enhance the compensation of any employee

MajOr General Ret David Bockel Chairman

Wm Millard Choate

Dr Donald Harp Jr

Rankin Smith Jr
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The members of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors are Major General Ret David

Bockel Chairman Wm Millard Choate Dr Donald Harp Jr and Rankin Smith Jr No member of the

Compensation Committee is or was an officer or employee of Fidelity or any subsidiary There are no Compensation

Committee interlocks between Fidelity and other entities involving Fidelitys executive officers and members of the

Board of Directors who serve as executive officer or board member of such other entities

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Fidelity has written related person transaction policy that governs the identification approval ratification

and monitoring of any transaction that would be required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K under

the Securities Act of 1933 The BoaEd of Directors of Fidelity must approve all such transactions under the policy No

member of the Board of Directors may participate in any review or approval of transaction with respect to which such

member or any of his family members is related person

During 2011 Fidelity Bank paid $269069 to Choate Construction Company of which Mr Choate director

and member of the CompeiisationCominittee of Fidelity is the majority shareholder The Board of Directors approved

the transactions with Mr Choate abstaining determining that they were made on terms no less favorable than the terms

generally available to an unaffiliated third party under the same or similar circumstances and complied with Fidelitys

established policy After review of thefacts it has been determined that Mr Choate is still considered independent

under the NASDAQ Marketplace Rule

Fidelity Bank has had and expects to have in the future loans and other banking transactions in the ordinary

course of business with directors including our independent directors and executive officers of Fidelity and its

ubsidiaries including members of their families or corporations partnerships or other organizations in which such

officers or directors have controlling interest These loans are made on substantially the same terms including

interest rates and collateralas those.prevailing all the time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties Such

loans do not involve more than the normal risks of repayment nor present other unfavorable features As of December

31 2011 Fidelity Bank had loans outstanding to executive officers and directors and their controlled entities

aggregating approximately $4 million

CODE OF ETHICS

The Board of Directors of Fidelity has adopted Conflict of Interest Policy Code Of Ethics applicable to all of

its directors and employees including its chief executive officer and each ofits senior financial officers that complies

with applicable regulations under the federal securities laws and the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules The Code is

available under the Investor Relations section of our website at www.fldelitvsouthern.com Fidelity intends to disclose

any amendment or waiver by posting such information on its website

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AN MANAGEMENT

The following table reflects-the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned as of March 2012

by each person knownto be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of the Common Stock of Fidelity

each director each Named Executive Officer and all directors and executive officers as group

Unless otherwise indicated each of the named iiidividualsand each memberrfthe group has sole or shared

voting power or investment power with respect to the shares shown Unless otherwise indicated the address of each

person or entity named in thetable is do FidelitySouthern Corporation 3490 Piedmont Road NE Suite 1550 Atlanta

Georgia 30305

The number of shares beneficially owned by each shareholder is determined under rules promulgated by the

Securities and Exchange Conmiission The4infórnutiöh is nrt necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any

other purpose Under these rules beneficial ownership includes any shares as to which the individual has sole or shared

voting power or investment power and any shares as towhich the individual has the right to acquire beneficial

ownership within 60 days of March 2012 through the exerdise Of any stock option warrantor other right. The

inclusion in the following table of those shares however does not constitute an admission that the named shareholder is

direct or indirect beneficial owner of those shares

24



Name of Beneficial Owner

Wellington Management Cd LLP

2800 CongEess Street

BostOn MA 022 i0.ia23

The Baæc Iund Co LLC

20 North Wacker Drive

Suite 3300

Chicago IL 6O6063105

James Miller Jr

Major General Ret David Bockel

Wnt Millard Choate

Dr.Doiald Harp Jr

Kevin King

William Lankford Jr

Palmer Proctor Jr

Clyde Shepherd III

Rankin Smith Jr

Stephen Brolly

David Buchanan ______________
All Jirectors and executive officers

as group 11 persons

Less thai

Includes 75000 shares that Mr Miller has the righl to acquire pursuant to outstanding stock options 323673

shares held by Mr. Millers children grandchildren and family trust and 204 shares held by BAC
Properties Partnership liP companyofwhich Mr Miller and hiswifes estateown 40%.Also includes

94-35Oshares owæedby his wifes estate

Includes 280 shares held by Major General Ret Bockels wife

Includes 63954 shares held by Choate family partnership

Includes 1000 shares that Mr King has the right to acquire pursuant to outstanding stock options and 4712

shares held by Mr Kings wife

Includes 2043 shares held by Mr Lankfords wife

Includes 75000 shares that Mr Proctor has the tight to acquire pursuant to outstanding stock options 7812

shares held by Mr Proctors children and 10213 shares heMby Mr Proctors wife

Includes 1000 shares that Mr.Shepherd has the right to acquire pursiant to outstanding stock options and

37079 shares held by ShephercL family foundation 5365 shares held by family partnership and 1930

shares held by Mr Shepherds child

Includes 1000 shares that Mr Smith has the right to acquire pursuant to outstanding stock options and 313

shares owned by Mr..Smiths wife

Includes 5000 shares that Mr Brolly has the right to acquire pursuant to outstanding stock options

Includes 50000shares that Mr Buchanan has the right to acquire psuant to outstanding stock options

Includes 208 shares that the beneficial owners-have the right to acquire pursuant to outstanding stock

options

Secf ion 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Exchange Act requires Fidelitys directors executive officers and p.ersons who own more

than 10% of the Common Stock of Fidelity to file reports of ownership changes with the SEC To the Companys

knowledge during 2011 all reports of beneficial ownership of securities were filed timely with the SEC

AUDIT COMMITTEErREPORT

Fidelitys Board of Directors has determined that the members of our1Audit Committee -are independent as

defined in Rules 4200a and4350d of the NASDA Marketplace Rules Se .ction 1OA-3 of the Exchange Act and

have the knowledge and experietice required by Rule 4350d

Ambuætand Nature of

Beneficial Ownership Percent of Class

1309296 9.52%

1075777 7.2

3295145 23.83

28489

209581 1.52

16657

23468

9519

325299 2.35

279570 2.03

233258 1.69

42307

272030 10
1.97

4735323 33.92
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The Audit Committee has reviewed Fidelitys Annual Report on its Form 10-K and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended December 31 2011 and discussed the financial statements with management
The Audit Committee has discussed with Ernst Young LIP Fidelitys independent registered public accountants

those matters required to be discussed by Statement of Auditing Standards No 61 as amended as adopted by the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T

The Audit Committee has received and reviewed the wr ttçn disclosures and the letter from Ernst Young

required by thePublic Conpany Accounting Oversight Board Rule 3526Cornmunication with Audit Committees

Concerning Independence and the members of the Audit Crnmittee bave discussed the independence of Ernst

Young The Audit Committee has also reviewedthe Report of.Maragement on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting and Ernst Youngs Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm with management the

internal auditors and Ernst Young The AuditConirnittee has determined thatthe providing of professional services

by Ernst Young in addition to audit-related services is compatible with the maintenance of the accountants

independence

Based upon the review and discuasions noted above the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of

Directors of Fidelity and the Boardhas approved that the audited consolidated financial -statements -of Fidelity be

included in itsAnnual Report on Form 10-K-forthe fiscal year ended December31 2011 andbe filed with the SEC

Kevin King Chairman

Major General Ret David Bockel

Dr Donald -Harp Jr
William Lankford Jr

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Ernst Young audited the consolidated financial statements of Fidelity and the evaluation of Fidelitys

internal control over financial reporting as of-December 312011 Representatives-of Ernst Young are expected to be

present at the Annual Meeting and will have the opportunity -toanake a- statement if they desire to so and will be

available to respond to appropriate questions

FEES PAID BYFIDELITY TO ERNST YOUNG

The following table sets forth the fees paid by Fidelity for audit and other services provided by Ernst Young

for fiscal years 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

Audit Fees $457000 $470
Audit-Related Fees 45500 62000

TaxFees.

All Other Fees

Total -$50200 $532500

Audit fees represent fees for professional services provided in connection with the audit of the financial

statements review of the quarterly financial statements and audit services provided in connection with other

statutory or regulatory filings including the audit of managements assessment over financial reporting

Auditrelated fees consist primarily of accounting consultation employee benefit plan audits and other

attestationservices

The Audit Committee approved all audit services provided by Fidelitys independent registered public

accountants during 2011 and 2010 on case-by-case basis in advance of each engagement The Audit Committee has

delegated to the Chairman of the Audit Committee the authority to pre-approve non-audit services not prohibited by law

to be performed by Fidelitys independent registered public accounting firm and associated fees for any non-audit

service provided that the Chairman shall report any decisions to pre-approve such non-audit services and fees to the full

Audit Committee at its next regular meeting None of the fees paid to the independent registered public accounting firm

were approved by the Audit Committee after the services were rendered pursuant to the de minimis exception by the

SEC for the provision of non-audit services
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SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Shareholder proposals intended to be included in our Proxy Statement and voted on at the 2012 Annual

Meeting of Shareholders must be received at our offices at 3490 Piedmont Road NE Suite 1550 Atlanta Georgia

30305 Attention corporate Secretaiy on or before November 262012 Shareholders may also present at the 2012

Animal Meeting any proper proposal that is not disclosed in the Proxy Statenient for that meeting without prior notice to

Fidólitr As discussedin Shareholder Nominees onpage any proposed director nomination by shareholder must be

submitted on or before November immediately preceding the next Annual Meeting of Shareholders

COiICATIONSTH FELITY AND THE BOARD

The following options are available to shareholders who want to communicate with Fidelity or the Board

Tocommunicate -with tite Board of Directors addiress ommuthcatins to the Board of Directors in care of the

Corporate Secretary ofFidli at 3490 Piedmont Road NE Suite 1550Atlanta Georgia 30305 Communications that

ar intended specifically for designated director should beaddressed to the director in carg bfthe Corporate Secretary

of Fidelity at the above address The Corporate Secretary shall cause the communications to be delivered to the

addressees

To receive information about Fidelity orFidelityBank one of the following methods may be used

Fidelity Banks website located at www.lionbank.com contains product and marketing data

Fidelitys website Investor Relations section located at www.fldelitvsouthern.com contains Fidelity

financial informition in addition to Audil Compensation and Nominating Cntnnittee Charters and

Fidelitys Conflit of Interest Policy Code of Ethics Online versions of Fidelitys annual reports Proxy

Statements Forms 10-K and 10-Q press .re1eases and other SEC filings are also avaitable through this

website

Fidelitys Annhal- Report Form 10-K including the finanôial statements and the financial statement

schedules will be furnished free of charge upon written requests

To contact us please call Fidelity Investor Relations at 404 240-1504 or send correspondence to Fidelity

Southern Corporation Attn Investor Relations 3490 Piedmont Road NE Suite 1550 Atlanta Georgia 30305

OTHER MATTERS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE ANNUAL MEETING

Management knows of no matters other than matters described in this Proxy Statement that are to be brought

before the Annual Meeting If any other matter should be presented for consideration and voted upon it is the intention

of the persons named as proxies in the edelosed Proxy to vote in accordance with their judgment as to what is in the best

interest of Fidelity

By Order of the Board of Directors

Martha Fleming

Corporate Secretary

March 2B 2012
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